CLTC BOARD MEETING PACKET
November 21, 2024



Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor

Joshua F. Tenorio
Lieutenant Governor

Commission Members

Arlene P. Bordallo
Chairperson

David B. Herrera
Commissioner

Earl J. Garrido
Commissioner

Jeffrey John P. Ibanez
Commissioner

(Vacant)
Commissioner

Joseph B. Cruz Jr.
Acting Administrative Director

Rev. 09/30/2024

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.O. Box 2950 Hagatfia, Guahan 96932 Phone: 671-300-3296 Fax: 671-300-3319

CHamoru Land Trust Commission Regular Board Meeting
Thursday, November 21, 2024 at 1:00PM

CHamoru Land Trust Conference Room, 590 S. Marine Corp Drive ITC Building, Suite 223, 2nd Floor
Tamuning, Guam. Public Comments may be made at cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov
To view the meeting virtually, log on to GovGuam Live-YouTube or CLTC’s Facebook page or Google Meet
joining info Video call link: https://meet.google.com/wwi-rxau-cyc

AGENDA

l. Call to Order — Certification of a Quorum Present

Il.  Certification — Public Notice Requirements
a. Guam Daily Post (11/14/2024 and 11/19/2024)
b. Guam Public Notice Website (https://notices.quam.gov)
c. CLTC Facebook Page

lll.  Approval of Minutes - August 15, 2024 (Regular Board Meeting)

IV. Administrative Director’'s Report

V. Old Business
a. Lot 10122-15 (Global Recycling/Koku Recycling)
b. Bill 179-37
c. Lot No. 5174-REM-1, Tamuning Lease: Nicole Kelly
d. Lot 7161-R1, Public Law 37-125
e. Transcript of Meeting minutes

VI. New Business - None
VII. Public Comment(s)

VIII. Adjournment

IX. Next Meeting — Thursday, December 19, 2024 at 1:00 PM
CLTC Conference Room, Suite 223, 2" Floor
ITC Building, Tamuning, Guam 96913



https://notices.guam.gov/

C'ommu;szone;

Earl ). Garrido
Commissioner

Jeffrey John P. tbanes
Commissioner

{Vacanr)
Commissioner

Soseph 8. Cruz Je.

Acting Administrative Director

Rev. (19/300/2024

. - BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru

(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.0. Box 2950 Hagatha, Guahan 96932 Phone: 671- 300-3296 Fax: 67/-300-3319

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
ATTENDANCE SHEET

RECESSED at 6:33PM
Resumption Meeting -
December 2, 2024
at 1:00PM

Date: Thursday, November 21, 2024
1:12PM

Adjournment:

. Place of Meeting: CLTC Conference Room, 2" Floor, ITC Building

P S ———
NAM.E:." Bt A SRR (o Y i;‘ UL

Present Ahsent

@@ (fwdi b

1. Arlene P. Bordallo Chairperson
2. David B. Herrera Commissioner @] Wﬁ
3. Earl J. Garrido Commissioner 2] M

4. J. John P. Ibanez
5. (Vacant)

NAME:

Commissioner

Commissioner

CLTC STAFF (Print and Sign):

- SIGNATURE:

1. 8.

2. 9.

3. 10.
4. 11.
5. 12.
6. 13.
7. 14.




- Earl J. Garrrda;_"
Commissioner

Jeffrey John P. Thanes
Commissioner

(Vacans)
Commissioner

Joseph B. Cruz Jr.

Acting Administrative Director

Rev. 39/300/2024

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru

(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.0. Box 2950 Hagdtria, Guihan 96932

Phone: 671-300-3296 Fax: 671-300-331¢

VISITORS’ SIGN-IN SHEET

CLTC Board Meeting

Date: Thursday. November 21, 2024

CLTC Conference Room, 2™ Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning

NAME (Please Print) CONTAGT NUMBER
Vi3 \/ffé'é-xx;/ S Ja2 5
%\.{\O&F& '%Jxa \K\\d }(J ‘\V T8A-5 180
Nicoli  Jedh 673 00D 2
Conclrifn ﬂa]a 727 W2
\_) UL rl'l,{a |4 laz 671-bss 4382
Wonaekn Tlors OGN 455 Gl 2

hagsea STty

L 71 74734y

LJss ete VO U\~

7)) £6Y 66375

TOSL\ L_o\ wnke

(118589427

1/1/1,
/GJQT mCtﬂ (U{ o l/’ﬂf/d’yfﬂ’ﬂk [ f(:?@/( ]
Re r(¢ |ARREC N‘i:' _prwe\\ad?m (> \Pd‘t\e%
Yo COMH V197 7924

Joan  Boren

Toy-y




Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru

(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.0. Box 2950 Huagdtfia, Guahan 96932 Plone: 671-3600-3296 Fax: 671-300-3319

PUBLIC COMMENT

SIGN-IN SHEET
CLTC Board Meeting

Date: Thursday, November 21, 2024

b __; CLTC Conference Room, 2™ Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning
NAME (Please Print) CONTACT NUMBER
cil B Hernera B ' | )
T |\ 671 72

| .‘:::.‘- 'Ea;l J Gar;‘li‘fé . VO!n Shg\ ‘y

Commissioner

Jejﬁ.'e_v John P, !b.cwez. jum Ha B; \ O\z (ﬁ’ l J Lﬂ (g%? Uf-{' b 2,

Commissioner - .
e Boorb oua Bur Khard¥

Commissioner / /ﬁ e / /6? é_ & 7 é}?%fé

Jaseph B, Cruz Jr.

Acting Administrative Director : - -~ pf]
cting Administrative Directo P\ﬁj@ﬁ,ﬂ %W 7@7 ‘W u/

Joha Borel & MOW

Rev. 09/30/2024




Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

PO, Box 2950 Hagdtia, Guahan 96932 Phone: 671- 300-3296 Fax: 671-300-1379

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

ATTENDANCE SHEET
Recessed at 3:01PM
Date: Monday, December 02, 2024 Resumption Meeting -
1:14PM December 10, 2024
Time: Adjournment: at 1:00PM

 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: Brandiit Abeant

o 1. Arlene P. Bordallo  Chairperson El D ﬂ@&i 1“’%'7
b 2. David B. Herrera Commissioner W

Jeﬂr_ey Jo.hn P. Thanet I:I
Commissioner 3. Earl J. Garrido Commissioner % ( -
(Vacans) 4. J. John P. Ibanez Commissioner I D

Commissioher

5. (Vacant} Commissioner

Joseph B. Cruz Jr. I M
Acting Administracive Direcitor [_NWM E

CLTC STAFF (Print and Sign):

1. 8.
2. 9.
3 10.
4 11.
5. 12.
6 13.

Rev. 09/30/2024 7. 14,




Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ Chamoru

(CHamoru Land Trust Conmumnission)

P.0O. Box 2950 Hagatia, Gudahan 96932 Phone: 671- 3100-3296 Fax: 671-300-3319

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
ATTENDANCE SHEET

Date: Tuesday, December 10, 2024 (Resumption Meeting)

Time: 12:59PM Adjournment: 4:24PM

. Place of Meeting: CLTC Conference Room, 2" Floor, ITC Building

——

 SIGNATURE:

X
]

o o T

OARD OF COMMISSIONERS: Present Absent

" 1. Arlene P. Bordallo  Chairperson 8 [;! %"W&&

o ssoner 1 ) 4
Commissioner 2. David B. Herrera Commissioner L PR

il 3. Earl J. Garrido Commissioner B ’
Semmoone 4. Jeffrey J. P. Ibanez  Commissioner bl D%’”
{Vacant) 5. (Vacanti) Commissioner g Q

Commissioner

Johu T. Burch NAME /i L S
Acting Administrative Director N-AM—E' L et b 1

CLTC STAFF (Print and Sign):

CLTC STAFF (Print and Sign):

1. 8.
2, 9.
3 10.
4 11.
5. 12.
6 13.
Rev. 04/04/2024 7. 14.

CLTC COMMISSION ATTENDANCE SHEET



 Jeffrey John P. Ibaner
i - Commissioner

Vacanr)
Commissioner

Joseph B. Cruz Jr.

Acting Adminisirative Director

Rev, 0931002024

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru

(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.O. Box 2950 Hagaria, Guahan 96932

Phone: 671- 300-3296 Fax: 671-300-3319

PUBLIC COMMENT

SIGN-IN SHEET
CLTC Board Meeting

Date: Tuesday, December 10, 2024 (Resumption Board Meeting)

. CLTC Conference Room, 2" Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning

NAME (Please Print)

_ CONTACT NUMBER |

)

Duredo

/L/.,/f{;g, s Mﬁ

U520
LG 7925¢

6"))’(’»?/? (o

SP2-5752




Certification—Public Notice Requirements



GUAN DAILY POST » THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2024

GUAM

board of cccountancy

Notice of Meeting
The Guam Board of A darcy wilt hold its hly Board g on Thursday, K ber 23,
2024, 2t 600 p.m. This ﬂ'leellng i open to the wblxmlwm wm Conferenc, Aoyore
desising to Jnin the viual moeting may enter the following link k& browssr
Mesting URL:

GLUC Agafication 202339
and Lot 14-3, Tract 63007, Municipatity of Yigo. Applicant, V6 Gorum Construction tLC,

bites:usObwet room uslBSG99424 ]_Q‘M_U badMimymE7 gsFHcHsBml mydkiing. 1
Meeting 1D 85099424105 »  Passcode: FKbXcyald Date:
Time:
Gur YouTuba livestreaming events link for bl Regulay Board Meatings is avatlable on the P‘IT;."
foard's website ot http. uembed.crfpolidesfactivitieshim, Fuaet,
AGENDA Livestream:
|. CALTO ORDER V. GENERAL DISCUSSIONANNOUNCEMEHTS
I APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Segtomber 19, 2024 » NASBA - Condldate Care Guartedy Report
AL LD BUSINESS 037024 .
= Guarm " 4 Fllndum = Th (P4 L pat 'n 4F r B
» Visiting Profecnr pdate Pathway
V. NEW BLISINESS » V2024 GBUAYTD Finenoal Summary
A Heql:eﬂs fwﬂppml W1 ADJOURNMENT
\ap for Initiad Certification &
Licenzure

m

The names of app bai 16 o on the Boards website at
%ﬂr_ﬂ%ﬁm Eﬁﬁfﬂkﬁhﬁlﬂ aa._?mn, lua‘vdlh sthar Board meeting materials. Deall
% wi vl on the o ang da 1pacial

mmodstons or information may contart Ms. Anna &lague at the G (wam Baard of ﬂnwnunqr at
STV OATBYS FAR: 67)-647-00 16 of supportssambas o Jor asstt

Funding
Fersonsi requining speda) seomimadations, plesse call MO (67 1] 653 5248944670118

Thursday, November 21, 2024
5:30PM

Yigo Senios Citizen’s Center

Yigo Mayor's Office Facebook Page

ted by Daniel D. Swavely.

YIGO MUNICIPAL PLANNING COUNCIL
MUNICIPAUTY F YIGO

174 1§ Vies G o ke, Yige Gram 94729
Tel (671} 4535248 /24441 9719 » Fanc {821) 653 144

BUBLIC HEARING 1 HOTICE 1

far a Zone Change request from “A” to "R-2" Zone on Lol 14-2

Sourte provided by MAC 8 Appliant

NORTHERN SOIJ‘II'IEEN SOI1. AND WATER CONSEWMIO& DISTRICT %00

g £ Bl P2 i
. Eman! ngrmed pecthotrga mﬂgm-!mursnﬂhemgmms- 0t 1z
L4
PUSLIC ANNDUNCEMENT

Arnusad loini Board Meeting
Thursdey, Hovernbar 27, 2024 4:00pm
Unhrersity of Guam College of Haturet and Apglied Sciences Bldg Rm 104

AGENDA:
| Call vo Order & Roll Cal B Fr2005 SWCD Elecuon
i Acceplance of Meanng Agenda £ HACD Guam Representatives  Updaie
1. Approvat of Minutes - 127272023 Wb Miscellaneous Matters
¥ Dusuict Reports vin Hexl Meeling
A Nowthern Bisti ¥ Adicumment
B Southein Distinet
¥ Old Business
A Guam SWCD Lang Range Plan

B Guam Associaton of Sed and Water
Conservatian (histricls - Status
W1 New Business
A Fr2026 Budget Propesal

ThfmﬁﬁﬂBmewllnenwwugnaﬁvestreamu.. y il Indrduak
g spacil more irfott ww&hlowbmﬂmu:lmmonymymmcl
8717252014 or e ngsacd nentbemgusm@gmail com o southetnuamawddgmal cm

This af & gaxd hi’.ﬂ'}m:rmw furak by the Norther and Southenn Soll and Wates Corseneon Deslids.

Date:
Time:
Place:
Livestream:

Thursday, November 21, 2024
&00P

Yigo Senior Citizen's Conter

Yige Mayor's Office Facebook Page

mﬂ_ﬁhﬂlﬂﬂ.miﬂfﬂ Zone Change request from A" to "R-2" Zone ondol 14 2
and Let 143, Trac1 63007, Muniopatity of Yigo. Applicant, VG Gozum Construction 4LC,
represented by Damief [ Swavely.

YIGO MUNICIPAL PLANNING COUNCIL
MUNICIPALITY OF YIGO

274 79 West Gapnere Dineg, Yigo Guam 94929
Tel 1875 653 5248/ 94461 9119 o Fox [671) 450 3634

BUBLIC HEARING 2 NOTICEY

Funding Sourrs jmﬂdedbrm’cs Appftant

Ferzanis}

g spadaf please call VRO (67 1) 4535248044671 19,

YIGO MUNICIPAL PLANNING COUNCIL
MUNICIPALITY OF ¥1G0

274 19w Gaypknero Deiva, Yiga Guatn To¥19
Ted (671) 653 5148/ 94461 V119 = Far (871)453 3432

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA - NOTICE 1
4 regularYige Muricipal Flanalng Cound! meeting will be hetd on Thursday, November 21 2024, at 430
L.t the Vigo Senior Citizen's {enter Livesireamed on the Yigo Mayor's Office Focebook Page

L Call tor Drder
. Rolf Call
. Meeting Notification
i Approval of Minutes for Septamber 27, 2024,
V. 0ld Business
Kone
Vi New Business

£ MPC Resolutian regarding, GUUC Application 2023-39 for a Zone Change
from A" to *R-2" on Lot 14-2 and Lot 14-3 Tract 63007, Municipality of Yige.
Applicant, ¥G Gozum Construction, LLC represented by Daniel 0. Swavely,
Vil Announcements
il Adjousnment

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, individuals requiring special
stecnmmodations may contact the Yigo Mayor's Office a1 {671} 653.-5248 / 9444 / 9119
o email: ymayorteny@gmail.com.

Funding Seurte provided by MPC § Applicants.
Parsonis) sequiting special please call ¥ 51671} 653 520874489179

y 2, Eesn '
3&‘: Kemision thanvokken tane ' CHamore _5°
‘%’} {CHamora Land Trust Commission) §CLTC

CHamory Land Trust Commission Regular Board Meeting

CHamoru Land Trust Conference Room, 590 5. Maiine Corp Drive (TC Building, Suite

I¥.  Administrative Directors Report
V. Ol Business
a. Lot 1012215 (Globat Recycling/Xoku Recycling)
b. Bill 179.37
¢ Lot Ho. 5174 REM-1, Tamuning Lease: Nicale Kelly
d. Lot 2181-R1, Public taw 37125
e, Tianscrpt of Meeting minutes
¥l New Business - None
Vi, Public Comment{s] '
B Adjournment
K Next Meeting - Thussday, Decembei 19, 2024 at 1:00PM, CLIC Conference
Roam, Suite 223, Znd Floor, IT Building, Tamuning, Guam
In compliance with Lhe Americans with Disatilities Ad, individust g specil a0 datk

23, ind

tca

Live-YouTube or CLYC's Facebook page o1 Google Meet joining infa Videa cail link:

Call 1o Ovder -

Certification -

a. Guam Daily Post {11/14/2024 and 11/19/2024)
b. Guam Public Notice Website [https://notices.quam.gov)
¢ CLIC Faceboak Page

Approval of Minutes - August 15, 2024 [Regula Board Meeting}

or seonces should tontad Decter Tan, (67 1) 3003296 1204 ernail dertet tanfiite.guam.gov

Thursdsy, Hovember 21, 2024 at 1:00PM

Froor Tamuning, Guam. Public Comments may be made at
ov To view the ing virtually, log on to Gov

htips:imeet aocple.comivi-mau-cre
AGENDA

Certilication of 2 Queivm Present
Public Notice Requirements

This ad is paist foe by CLTC funds

FIACCIEIENS o



CLASSIFIEDS

PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION
{Kotperasion Sethision Defensot Pupbleku}
GOVERMMENT OF GUAM
779 Route d Sinajditn, Guam 949105174
Tel: (671} 4T 5-310D » Fax: {671) 477-5844
waw. gusmpdsc.org

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

fhe Public Defender Service Corporation Board of Trustees will conduct its regular meeting on Tuesday
Novembes 26, 2024 a1 12:30 p.m. via videgronference (Zoom) in the PDSE conference room, Jocated at
the MV Sinajana Commencial Building, Unit B, 779 Route 4, Sinajana, Guam 96910,

the me eu‘nF will be sireamed live on YouTube: IJJ%MML!WME.MM&MM
The lfollewing agenda is available on the PDSC website af www. UM pdee org

The Guam Developmental Disabilities Counci) will be having its Virtual Executive Committes

' Guam Developmental Disabiities Council

ef devefe kt Manhioben

Kemxedaton Guidan para @ Toorao ai' &,

JERMALSE AL FRTA

Ul LOURDES A LEON GUERRLRO  JOSILIAT TERORIO
Eaevmive [heeviar

Lhpverin Lignreran Ciaveimut Chaispet st

Meeting on Thursday November 21, 2024, 9:00am to 10:30am. Request{s) for special

arcommadation must be submitted 72 hours in advance. Funded by Grant #22316USCDD,

Administration for Cammunity Living. Broadcast I.iw_a Stream at

AGENDA

ROBERT &L ALLAN

N
o

7202 ‘61 ¥38WIAON AYTSINL « 1504 XTIV WYND

L CalltoOrder RGENDA ] Introduction/ Rall Call
1. Roll Call . Revlew of Minutes- Thursday, May 16, 2024
Il Determination of Quorum n Reports
V. Proof of Due Netice of Meeting: ’ P . .
A Notize: 5 Working Oays - Public Notices Partal PESC/Guam Daily Fost fuesday, A. Executive Birector's Repant
November 15, 2021? B. Standing Committe Report
8. Natice: 48 Hours - Public Notices PortaliPDSC/Guam Daily Post Friday, Hovember 22, €. Councit Membership Status
v pmfﬂidf Minutes: Detober 22, 2024 Reqular Meeting W, Uid Susiness -
Vi, 0ld Business A, 2022-2026 Five-Year State Plan Goals (Self-Advocacy & Community Living)
A Finangial Stalus Update | Allotment Releases [PDSC, APD, CLC ) 8. 2025 State Plan Work Plan Activities
% gepon me :gﬂs%ﬂecutive |)ire-:10r{{EXHIBI'ITAB%l C. 2025 State Pian Work Plan Updates
- Report from anaging Attorney {EXHIBI i Train: A Marmh
D. Report from CLC Managing Attomey (EXHIAT C3 E m.‘m '2 Gwe;" Tem gfor Cound
E. Executive Director Compensation & Classification (EXHIBIT D) -DFice Space Statds
F. Sixth Amendment Center Projects {EXHIBIT E} F. October 2024 National Isability Employment Awareness Month
G. Civil Moratorium - Final Resolution {EXHIBIT F) 'A New Business
Vii. New Business ) A F.2025 Budget - 1st Notice of Award $60,820
VI Exscumar oo, Donated Leave Bank poficy (EXHIBIT G) B. Public Health Workfarce Grant - No Cost Extension to Segtember 2025
A Executive Ditector Performance Evaluation {EXHIBITH) C.March 2025 Developmental Disabilities & Month
B APD Managing Attomey Perfarmance Evatuation (EXHIBITI) Wi Announcements
K. Public Discussion Vit Adjournment
X Adjournment and Nexi Meeting Date: Tuesday, December 24, 2024 5t 12:30 p.m. via Zoom/ ’ 1

YouTube/PDSC Conference Room

Copies of the agenda and meeting packe . will be available prios to the meeting at Public Defender Service

Corporation and on s websne at
Clased captioning avarlable an lvestream
Persorlsl needing special accommodations, auwiliary aids. or serares, please contact Robbie T Cal
A 4714758301 or rali@guampdsc g
Thas 3d was paid {or wnth Gevernment of Guam funds
CHIEF JUSTICE ROEERT J. TORRES
Chairman

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

The Guam Visitors Bureau {GYB} will hold 2 BOARD MEETING

located in GYB's main conference room and via Teleconference
GoToMeeting https:meet.goto.com/GUAMVISITORSBUREAU gvb-board- meeting

Thursday, November 21, 2024 at 1:30 p.m.

CHasr iy bant Taar
avad cmpn

Kumision Inaneokkon fano’ CHamorn

(CHamora Land Trust Commission) CcLre Meeting Agenda
CHarnoru Land Trust Commission Regular Board Meeting b CALLTO ORDER
Thursday, Novamber 21, 2024 at 1:00PM Il ROLLCALL

CHamoru Land Trust Conference Room, 590 5. Marine Cep Drive TC Building, Suite
223, 2nd Floor Tamuning, Guam. Public Commaents may be made at

cltc.admin@dtcguam.gey To view the meeting virtually, log on to GovGuam

Live-YouTube or CLTC's Facebook page or Gaogle Meet joining info Video call link:

1N, MINUTES OF THE PREVIQUS MEETING
* Motion 1o approve or amend minutes of the previous Board of Directors
meeting heid on 11/7/2024

hitps:/imeet.google.com/wwi-niau- IV.  CHAIRMAN'S REPORT
V. ACTION BY THE BOARD, PART 1
AGENDA # Election of 12th Board Member
1. Callto Order - Centificatien of a Querum Present VI. EXECUTIVE SESSION

= As needed regarding personnel matters

VII. ACTION BY THE BOARD, PART 2
* Discussion on Possible Leadership Transition and Possible Action
* Possible Temparary Appointment of Deputy GM as Acting GM
» Passible Initiatian of RFP Process for CEO Recraitment

Il Certification - Public Notice Requirements
a. Guam Daily Post {11/14/2024 and 11/19/2024)
b. Guam Public Notice Website {https:#notices.guam.gov)
t. CLTC Facebook Page
M. Approval of Minutes - August 15, 2024 {Regular Board Meeting)
W.  Administrative Director's Report

Y. 0ld Business VIl RECOVERY PLAN DISCUSSION
a Lot 10122-15 {Global Recydling/Koku Recycling) # Discussion on Possible Motions for Action on the Recavary Plan
b Bill 179-37

IX. OLD CORPORATION BUSINESS
* Discussion on GICC Property, if neaded

K. NEW CORPORATION BUSINESS
# Discussion on the merged recovery plan prepared by management
= Discussion and possible vote on the the Fottenham Resolution

. OTHER BUSINESS
X1 AGENDAITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

I ANNOUNCEMENTS
+ Upcoming Beard Meeting: December 5, 2024

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, dividuals requiring special acg dati KIV. ADJQURNMENT
or services should contact Dexter Tan, {671) 300-3294 x 204, email; dexterta n@citcguam.gay

¢ Lot No. 5174-REM-1, Tamuning Lease: Nicole Kelly
d. Lot 7161-R%, Publiclaw 37125
e. Transciipt of Meeting minutes
VI, New Business - None
VIl.  Pubiic Comment(s}
K. Adjournment Xl
X MextMeeting - Thursday, December 19, 2024 at 1:00PM, CLTC Conference
Room, Suite 223, 2nd Floor, ITC Building, Tamuning, Geam

Any individuals requinng special ace should contact GV a1 {471) #46-5278 for assistance

Thit ad was paid for by the Toutist Attraction Fund.

This ad is paid for by CLTC funds GUAN VISITORS AUREAU | SETRISION BISITAN GUAHAN -
407 Pyl Sen Waores faad | Tumen, Guoam 95913 1167 1p046 5778 |67 1 ads 5881 I '

g com | § s wm GUAM




CLTC Board of Commissioner Regular Meeting

&= PRINT

CLTC Board of Commissioner Regular Meeting

MEETING

g Posted on: 11/14/2024 06:00 AM
Posted by: Charlene Mayo
¢ Meeting Date: 11/21/2024 01:00 PM

Department(s):
CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION (/notices?department_id=23)

£ Division(s): CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION (/notices?division_id=174)

¥ Notice Topic(s): BOARD MEETING (/notices?topic_id=76)
& Types of Notice: MEETING (/notices?type_id=5)

i For Audience(s): PUBLIC (/notices?public=1)

~ Share this notice

AGENDA

I. Call to Order - Certification of a Quorum Present
Il. Certification - Public Notice Requirements
a. Guam Daily Post (11/14/2024 and 11/19/2024)
b. Guam Public Notice Website (https://notices.guam.gov
(https://notices.guam.gov/))
. CLTC Facebook Page
Ill. Approval of Minutes August 15, 2024 (Regular Board
Meeting)
IV. Administrative Director’s Report
V. Old Business
a. Lot 10122-15 (Global Recycling/Koku Recycling)
b. Bill 179-37
C.
d.

Lot No. 5174-REM-1, Tamuning Lease: Nicole Kelly
Lot 7161-R1, Public Law 37-125
e. Transcript of Meeting minutes
VI. New Business - None
VII. Public Comment (s)
VIII. Adjournment
IX. Next Meeting - Thursday, December 19, 2024 at 1:00 PM
CLTC Conference
Room, Suite 223, 2" Floor ITC Building, Tamuning, Guam 96913


https://notices.guam.gov/
https://notices.guam.gov/
https://notices.guam.gov/notices?department_id=23
https://notices.guam.gov/notices?division_id=174
https://notices.guam.gov/notices?topic_id=76
https://notices.guam.gov/notices?type_id=5
https://notices.guam.gov/notices?public=1

CLTC Board of Commissioner Resumption Meeting

& PRINT

CLTC Board of Commissioner Resumption
Meeting

MEETING

£ Posted on: 12/05/2024 06:00 AM

Posted by: Charlene Mayo

& Meeting Date: 12/10/2324 01:00 PM

Department(s):
CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION (/notices?
department_id=23)

£ Division{s):
CHAMORU LAND TRUST COMMISSION {/notices?division_id=174)

¥ Notice Topic{s): BOARD MEETING {/notices?topic_id=76)

Types of Notice: MEETING (/notices?type_id=5)
i For Audience(s): PUBLIC {(/notices?public=1)

 Share this notice

RESUMPTION OF REGULAR MEETING DATE / TIME: Tuesday,
December 10, 2024/1:00PM. MEETING PLACE: Suite 223, ITC
Building 590 S. Marine Corps Dr. Tamuning. To view the meeting
virtually, log on to GovGuam Live-YouTube or CLTC's Facebook
page or Google Meet joining info Video call link:
https://meet.google.com/wwi-rxau-cyc: Public Notice: The Guam
Daily Post on November 14, 2024, CLTC's Facebook Page, and on
CLTC's website at https://dIm.guam.gov/chamoru-land-trust-
‘commission/in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities
Act, individuals requiring special accommodations or services
should contact (671) 300-3296 x 204,



Call to Order—Certification of a Quorum
Present



Approval of Minutes



Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru

(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

P.0. Box 2950 Hugatia, Guahan 96932 Phone: 671- 300-1296 Fax: 671-300-3319

REGULAR MEETING
CLTC Conference Room
Suite 223, ITC Building, Tamuning, Guam
Thursday, August 15, 2024

Public Notice: The Guam Daily Post on August 08,2024 and August 13, 2024

PRESENT:

Commission Members

A. Bordallo, Chairperson
E. Garrido, Commissioner
D. Herrera, Commissioner
N. Miller, OAG

- Commissioner

Eart I, Com{m’ssion E. Management and Staff
PG Joseph Cruz, Acting Administrative Director
Attorney Norman Miller, OAG

T Glenn Eay, Land Agent lll
Commissioner Jhoana Casem, Land Agent 1|
Jessica Dayday, Land Agent [l
A Cecer) Dexter Tan, PC 1
OMMISSIONEr -
Lydia Taleu
e E!Ieen Chargualaf
Acting Administrative Director Pierce CEI stro

Tata Communication
Attorney Jehan'ad Martinez
Attorney |sa Baza

Lang Benson

Sportsland Shooting Range
John Sablan
Taylor Sablan

Guam Motorsports Association
Hans Ada
Ryan Castro

Rev. 04/(14/2024

Meeting Minutes Compited by C. Mayo (CLTC)



Call to Order

Madam Chair A. Bordallo called to order the meeting of the August 15, 2024, Regular Board
meeting at approximately 1:00 pm.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: CHamoru Land Trust Conference Room is located at 590 S. Marine
Corp Drive ITC Building, Suite 223, 2™ Floor Tamuning, Guam. Public comments may be made at
cltc.admin@cltc.guam.qov. To view the meeting virtually, log on to GovGuam Live-You Tube or
CLTC’s Facebook page or Google Meet joining info Video call. Link https://meet.google.com/dth-
pczj-nbk?hs=224. This meeting is now called to order. Certification of a quorum present.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Public notice requirements from Guam Daily post was published on
August 08, 2024 and August 13, 2024. Guam Public Notice Website notices.guam.gov CLTC
Facebook page.

Roll Call

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Mr. David Commission D. Herrera.

Commission D. Herrera: I'm here.

Madam Chair A, Bordallo: Commissioner Commission E. Garrido.

Commission E. Garrido: Here.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: What is that noise?

CLTC Staff J. Casem: I'm sorry it's Pierce online.

Approval of Minutes

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Approval of Minutes of February 15, 2024, that's a regular meeting
and there was a resumption meeting on February 22, 2024, Are there any corrections to be made
for these two meetings?

Commission E. Garrido: Yes.
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Commissioner Commission E. Garrido you're recognized.

Commission E. Garrido: This is in regards to the February 8, 2024; it was our... it's a sixty-two
(62) page report. So, starting on fifty-four (54), the speaker under “Public Comments” we need to
correct from Carlos Madam Chair A. Bordallo to Carlos Camacho. All notation showing under
Carlos Madam Chair A. Bordallo should be corrected and that's from page fifty-two (52) to sixty-one
(61).

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Any other corrections?
Commission E. Garrido: On the other report. The one | had just spoken about is the Resumption

Meeting. On the Regular Meeting which was February 15, 2024, on page forty-nine (49) under my
last second to the last comment there where it says ... “Bernice in your last appearance here with

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 2



the board back in January you mentioned your family had land in Anderson if you recall | asked you
if you can produce a deed that validates that the work frame should be claimed.”

Commission D. Herrera: Page fifty (50)? Sixty-two (62)?

Commission E. Garrido: Forty-nine (49) on the Regular Meeting report.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: | need a motion.

Commission E. Garrido: | think there’s one more.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: One more?

Commission D. Herrera: That's forty-nine (49) and fifty-six (56)?

Commission E. Garrido: The forty-nine (49) the word frame should be claimed. The other one an
the Resumption Meeting it should be page fifty-two (52) to sixty-one (61). Carlos Madam Chair A.
Bordallo should be Carlos Camacho. | guess that's all | have for now Madam Chair. Oh wait, okay
on page fifty (50) on my initial comment there in the middle of the page it says Madam Chair | feel it
would be... it says here in the print pretty mature. That should be premature.

Commission D. Herrera: Page fifty (50)?

Commission E. Garrido: Yeah. middle sentence, middle of the page my comment. Madam Chair |
feel we would be ... it says here “pretty mature”, it should be “premature”. That's all | got for now
Madam Chair. | move those corrections be made.

Commission D. Herrera: | second motion.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: All in favor for the corrections.

All: Aye.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Motion carried.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: So, we're going to go right into on the agenda because our legal
counsel is not present right now. On section six (6) of F, this has to do with Manuel Aguon.

AAD J Cruz: Madam Chair, if | may maybe can you consider tabling this item. The daughter of
Mr. Aguon was not able to provide a power of attorney. Given that she will not be able to speak on
Mr. Aguon’s behalf;, Mr. Aguon is currently off island.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Okay so we'll go back then to, since the presence of our lawyer is
here, we continue with our regular agenda Administrative Director's Report, Mr. Cruz.

Director’s Report:

PENDING APPLICATIONS:

AAD J Cruz: Good afternoon, Chairwoman Madam Chair A. Bordallo, Commissioner Commission
D. Herrera and Commissioner Commission E. Garrido. The first item on our report is pending
applications also known as moving the line. On January 18, 2024, the board had decided to
remove four out of five applicants that we had initially informed to commence the lease award
process and the removal was due to non-compliance of the ninety (90) days given to provide the
information needed to facilitate the lease award. What we'll be sending them another letter
providing them the opportunity to appeal the board's decision as authorized in the Act. The one

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg.3



applicant that was not terminated we will be sending him another letter to provide the ... provide
information because he's claiming that he has lease property already. Based on our records he
doesn’t have any leased property. We're going to be requesting for information will substantiate his
claim that he is utilizing CLTC property; from there we'll determine what we're going to do if in the
event that he’s unable to provide information to substantiate his claim we’'ll be sending him a letter
to provide the information needed to facilitate the lease award.

NUMBER SIX (6) APPLICANT:

AAD J Cruz: The next item still within the pending applications is the number six (6) applicant
which a grandchild was named as the successor for the original applicant. Because now, because
of the enactment of Public Law 37-74, we'll be, we'll be bringing that to the board next month for
specific actions to take place. In addition to that the staff already had been doing like a precursory
review of the next forty-eight (48) applicants so they've been with the assistance of our summer
interns that we recently just had they were able to contact forty-eight (48), the next forty-gight (48)
applicants and did inform them to ensure that their information, their contact information, telephone
numbers, mailing address are up to date and the importance of that information to facilitate the
lease award. We anticipate to send them the letters to initiate the lease award sometime within the
next couple of weeks. So that would be the next forty-eight; so, the five (5) and forty-eight (48) is
fifty-three (53).

LAND INVENTORY:

AAD J Cruz: The item on my report is the land inventory. The staff in this responsible for this
project has completed their task for Track 9210 and in addition to that in preparation for us to
commence our lease award the staff had, had also identified six (6) tracks of property in the north,
central and south for residential and agriculture. I'm not too sure if you were provided a copy of the
maps.

Commission D. Herrera: Was that electronic?

Acting AD J Cruz: | think they just printed the copy. So, for residential they've identified Tract 113
Dededo Lot 190-1 Dededo, and Tract 10123 Yigo. Please keep in mind that Tract 10123 Yigo from
the previous was identified for the use of affordable housing.

Commission E. Garrido: For what?

AAD J Cruz: Affordable housing. For agriculture the lots and tracks that were identified is Lot
10122 now known as Tract 10316 Dededo, Lot 8 Inalahan and Tract 15344 Block 1 and 2
Mangilao. So, as we go through the process of commencing the lease award, we would present the
lessee or the applicants who are next in line to be awarded a lease and the specific areas that will
be awarded to them will be presented to the board for their approval. Also, during the, during the
review and determining what, what tracts of land and lots of land that were decided internally to be
presented to the board we considered the distance and availability of power and water. So, for
example like tract 10123, that lot is located in front of Paradise Meadows. Tract 10090-1 is the ot
located right across lronwood Estates in Dededo. So those are the things we considered in
determining or choosing the lots to present to the board.

Commission D. Herrera: What was the [ot number again?
AAD J Cruz: Lot 10090-1
Commission D. Herrera: 10090-1 that's next to lronwood?
AAD J Cruz: Yes, correct.

Commission E. Garrido: Not dash 1 dash 17

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 4



AAD J Cruz: Dash 1, dash 1 sorry.

Commission D. Herrera: Size, we have a size?

AAD J Cruz: It's in the packet in what was just given to you. | believe it's like 30 some acres, 30
plus acres.

Commission D. Herrera: 10123 size of property?

AAD J Cruz: | don't know, but i believe it could consist of one hundred —sixty-six (166) lots.
Commission E. Garrido: These are all residential lots, right?

AAD J Cruz: Residential and agriculture.

Commission E. Garrido: No, but this set.

AAD J Cruz: Yeah, yeah, it's labeled in the front for residential leasing so just ....

Commission D. Herrera: [Inaudible]...... | remember that this one started back in 2013 right, and
then from 2013 up to 2018 correct, 2018 now we had request for proposal. | know we request for
interest, yeah interest so, and | know the status of that one basically kind of with it all.....
[inaudible], so any plan for us to start the RFP?

AAD J Cruz: We, we would bring that, that back to the table.

Commission D. Herrera: Correct. Okay.

Cross Talk+++++++

Commission E. Garrido: Does this have access [inaudible]

AAD J Cruz: Not, not specifically within the tract, or lot itself but it's within a reasonable distance.
So, like for instance 10123 | just found the document | was looking for so TRI which is the
developers of Paradise Meadows had made an agreement with the government for to provide some
services but in exchange the government will provide an easement. So, the sewer line and the
power and the runs right through that easement. So, tract 10123 is the right of that easement and

to the left. So, it's within distance a reasonable distance.

Commiission E. Garrido: So, these subdivisions are broken down into 1,000 square meters or
2,000 square meters?

AAD J Cruz: When tract 10123 was rezoned they had measured the lots | believe at 500 square
meters which meets the minimum density requirement if there’s sewer.

Commission E. Garrido: Yes.

AAD J Cruz: So, that's where we're at with that. The others only have schemes. Only 10123
went through the rezoning process.

Commission D. Herrera: Can we add in addition to 10123 the [inaudible] MOU?
AAD J Cruz: Yes, yes.

Commission D. Herrera: We have......

CLTC Regular Masting Minutes of August 15, 2024

Pg. 5



AAD J Cruz: Yes, we'll, we'll get further into that. | have that in my report because we, | recently
had discussions with GWA so, I'll, I'll touch, touch on that too.

Commission D. Herrera: And the property has not been surveyed or subdivided down to 500
square meters.

AAD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: No, no survey yet?

AAD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: Are we planning to survey that under our expense?

AAD J Cruz: No, we're, we're going to discuss with Attorney Miller the, the agreement that has
been made TRI, the developers of Paradise Meadows because that's one of the conditions in the
agreement to, to survey and also to maintain the part that will be shared with our constituents and
Paradise Meadows. But we'll discuss that with Attorney Miller and how we approach that.
Commission D. Herrera: Today?

Commission E. Garrido: When you say maintain the parts, you mean the easement?

AAD J Cruz: There's an area that has been identified for a park.

Commission E. Garrido: Oh, | thought you said parts.

AAD J Cruz: No, the park.

Commission D. Herrera: Are we going to discuss that today with Attorney Miller?

AAD J Cruz: ['ll, I'll discuss it with him and then we can bring it back to you so we have a plan of
attack of how we'll going to approach this.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay. 101237

AAD J Cruz: Yes, yes.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

AAD J Cruz: And for the agreement that was made between CLTC and TRI.
Commission D. Herrera: And then we have that copy also in the future.
AAD J Cruz: Yes.

Commission D. Herrera: So, just so that we understand. The first fifty-eight (58) would be
biocked into this 1667

AAD J Cruz: No, no. It would be; so, what we're going to do for the initial phase of the lease
tssuance is we're putting together a checklist with the recent passage of |, | don’t remember the
public law, but if an applicant is not able to provide or to convince; provide information to CLTC to
determine whether they'll comply with their lease terms were able now to move to the next

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 6



applicant. That's one. We're also rewriting the NOA document which is the notice of intent to
award document. What we've been encountering is people who were awarded leases from 10 to
20 years ago are coming in today to decline their lease and want to relocate. So, to prevent all of
that, the reason why we chose different municipalities and different areas is because an applicant is
able to decline the first two but must choose the third. So, on that Noa we're going to list three (3)
and they'll decline two (2) and choose one and that would resolve that wanting to relocate later; we
just put it to rest. So, yeah, we've been having a lot of people coming in who were awarded leases
ten (10), twenty (2) years ago who want to relocate somewhere else, and you know they, they
haven’t used their what is it, three choices.

Commission D. Herrera: and the property has been developed by them or just left open?

AAD J Cruz: It varied. They may have put some improvement into it some of them didn't do
anything, some of them may have surveyed although even though they surveyed, they want to
move.

Commission D. Herrera: So, we can have a listing of those also.
AAD J Cruz: Yes, ves.
Commission E. Garrido: Is that in our mandates that we allow them to three choices?

AAD J Cruz: They're allowed, they're allowed to deny the first two and then if they deny the third
one then they get removed from the waiting list.

Commission E. Garrido: No, but there's no timeline for them to make that decision?
AAD J Cruz: It wasn't specific so ......

Commission E. Garrido: | mean you know like you're saying that 20 years later they're saying
they’re not satisfied with that property and they want to relocate.

AAD J Cruz: Correct. So, you know to address that loophole, | guess we’re putting it on within our
NOA and resolving that issue.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay,

COMPLIANCE:

AAD J Cruz: The next item on my report is compliance. The compliance team has finished their
inspections of Tract 9210. | know that at the most recent public hearing, | mentioned in the
legislature we're issuing twenty (2) to twenty-five (25) notice of least term violations. The exact
number is forty-two (42) which would also be going out next week. So, there’s forty-two (42)
lessees within Tract 9210 that have a lease violation; could be multiple structures, the storage of
junk cars, white goods, things of that nature. But, we're, we're hoping to get it out by next week.
Those lessees in violation will be given just like every other lessee 60 days to resolve or address
their violations. If in the event that they should not be able to fully resolve the issue but there is
progress, we normally give them an additional thirty (3), sixty (60) days but. .....

Commission D. Herrera: On the violation?
AAD J Cruz: Yes, correct.
Commission D. Herrera: In addition to the violation, the GRF tract lot 7161-R1, the violations that

accumulated that ended up on the eviction some of the violations was the shortcut between 71 64
right 1-2-3-4-5.  So that violation and that violation is the rights of way that went from the

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 7



neighboring company to 7161-R1. So, that violation is that part of our.... Because we were
victimized by that action that the GRF know authorized the what's that you know the access from
those two properties. That's number 1. Number 2 the clearing and grading authorization again
that’'s another violation that they have not gone through the Guam Land Trust Commission, the
Department of Parks and Recs, the Department of Environmental Protection Agency.

Commission E. Garrido: They didn’t get the proper permits, that's what he's saying. | guess this
would be more directed to Attorney Miller; what can we do to put that company on notice that
cleared that access without the authorization from CHamoru Land Trust? They, they built an illegal
road.

AAG Miller: Commissioner | guess the best answer | have for you at the moment is 1 don’t know
enough, [, I don't know your properties by lot number.

Commission E. Garrido: No this is the raceway. The private company in the back there.
AAG Miller: So, that's... |, | assume that's what we were talking about.
Commission D. Herrera: That's the one that we presented last ..... [inaudible]

AAG Miller: |, without having all of the historical documents in front of me, | assume but don't
know that your tenant had no legal authority to consent to anybody else using your property.
Having said that, you've taken the property back and so the, it would be entirely within your rights to
simply put up a fence and close that, that, close that access off and that should be the end of that
discussion. | mean we don't have to... there's nobody to send a notice of violation to we don’t have
to wait for anybody to tell us how they plan on fixing the problem. It's at this point it's our problem
because it's our land. We control it now. So, if, if a new fence needs to go up then you can simply
direct staff to secure the property and do what needs to be done to accomplish that.

Commission D. Herrera: How about the violation that when it was expanded was like almost over
50 feet and the vegetation there were basically ifit trees then there was no, you know clearance
from the Regulatory Agencies again. Same, same property that we're talking about the neighboring
property. So, so that's a violation to, to the Land Trust property and because we're trustees. It's a
damage to property so, although there was no lease between Guam Racing Federation and
CHamoru Land Trust of that neighboring lot; the neighboring lot is under the jurisdiction of the
CHamoru Land Trust Commission. So, again it's, it's a damage to the CHamoru Land Trust
inventory.

AAG Miller: The problem the CHamoru Land Trust faces, | would anticipate in, in this
circumstance is that our remedy would be to sue the tenant; sue the former tenant in this case for
damages. My understanding is while the former tenant you know may have been a corporate entity
of one kind or another if it had any money, it probably doesn’t have any money taday and so sure |
mean we, we could go file a lawsuit, go win a lawsuit but it's not going to accomplish much because
there’s.... the, the purpose of a lawsuit is to get the resources necessary to fix the problem the
other party created, and if the other party simply doesnt have any resources kind of what's the
point of the lawsuit.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, | have a point. So, the same party is the same one that was
coming in to continue the operation under the same non-profit organization, that's just one part.
The second part is that there's a lot of illegal backfilling that we witness in area and they may claim
that the material that they imported to backfield the area that they have over, they say that's it's
over graded. We're saying technically it's over extracted based on the contract that we have; that
just one the back filing and also the other issue that ever since | got on board in 22, is the
nonpayment of entrance fee and all those other components. So, the same arganization that's
reapplying they’re saying that they have removed or replaced the officers, but still under that you

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 8



know Federation. So, so of course our question is that when can we apply for the lawsuit for those
violations that we were victimized on because the statute of limitation is going to run out if you don't
make an application and start putting it in front of the courts.

AAG Miller: Well again, it sounds like the first thing that needs to be accomplished and can be
accomplished without any lawyers or any legislation or anything like that, it's the simple way to
secure the property is wherever, wherever people are illegally accessing the property is to fix the
fence or build the fence.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

AAG Miller: Separate from that is the, by all means we can evaluate the let's... they call them
opportunities, a lawsuit might create... again the you know the ... as, as a lawyer the best client you
can ever have is the client who says | don't care what it costs, | don't care if | ever get make a
dollar, dam it we're going to we're just going to sue for the sake of suing to make a point. Though
you love those clients but generally speaking before we sue anybody, we want to, we want to make
a thorough evaluation of if we sue; are we going to get anything at the end of the day because if
we're not then again what was the point? But, that's not for me that's not a decision for me to
make, that is a decision for you all to make, and, and so if you would like the Attorney General's
office to evaluate the cost and benefits of, of a civil lawsuit on the commission’s behalf if you'll send
the Attorney General a letter to that point, we will begin the process of as | said of examining the
costs and the benefits.

Commission D. Herrera: Yes, and we do have about 600 pages of a report from the beginning.
AAG Miller; Yes.

Commission D. Herrera: from the cradle to grave window from the beginning of the process when
they activated the contract all the way to 2018 and was it about 600 pages? | mean really, it's
paper stack of this high and that includes the regulatory requirement that was supposed to be
monitored by the GEDA, the Guam Environmental Protection Agency to monitor the tax rebate of
about seven (7), six (6) million rebate that was injected into that project. So, was the CHamoru
Land Trust victimized by that? What we see is what we were experiencing; we've been on that last
month with and you've noticed the amount what. ...

AAG Miller: Again, |, yes, I'm and I'm aware of the, of the reports and the evidence you have in
the file. That, that's very useful in terms of evaluating if we were to sue, would we be successful?
What I'm suggesting is that a second question we also need to address is what is success and if
success means somebody's going to send you a check to fix the problems that, that the lawsuit
identifies, is there anybody out there who can write that check?

Commission D, Herrera: Now, in addition to that question was CHamoru Land Trust a victim from
this Federation, and the question here is that the same Federation is coming before the victim again
to continue operation on the same property that were described?

AAG Miller: Well, you know that, that raises a sort of a completely different path. We can pursue it
is whether the... whether you know, whether should we enter into a license or a lease or whatever
a new contract with a new operator of the Raceway. You know we, we have the opportunity to
write into that lease or license sort of whatever, whatever terms you all think necessary and
appropriate, and so, even if you know the, the new tenant's perspective is I'm not responsible for
what happened in the past. We could certainly say as a condition of granting the new lease well we
won't know judgment on who is responsible, but as part of the new lease you have a new
responsibility to fix some of these problems.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

ro. 9



Commission D. Herrera: So, how does that resolve the victims when they were perpetrated the
victim which is the Land Trust Commission I'm saying?

AAG Miller: Well, |, | guess you know the......
Commission D. Herrera: Because that's not been resolved.

AAG Miller: What, what we would need to do is as part of that evaluation is really you know
identify for you all exactly what claims exactly what bad Acts, we think we ¢an go to court and prove
and get recovery for and you input is essential in us putting down on paper all the bad Acts the
government thinks has occurred.

Commission E, Garrido: Norman,
AAG Miller: Yes.

Commission E. Garrido: Before, before we go start talking about civil suits, is the Attorney
General currently looking into that Raceway debacle of the.... [inaudible]

AAG Miller: what | know today is that ...
Commission E. Garrido: And if you did are you allowed to disclose it?

AAG Miller: Well, what, what | can disclose is the Office of Public accountability has provided a
report on what they believe occurred at the Raceway property that OPA puts out is copied to the
Attorney General's Office and there are other people in the Attomey General's Office not me, who
look at every single one of those reports and evaluate whether there's something there that the, if
the Attorney General should pursue.

Commiission E. Garrido: Has that analysis been done or is it ongoing?
AAG Miller: That's not my... | don’t work with those people.

Commission E, Garrido: Is there, is there possibility for you to like get some insight without
violating your, your lines of ethics?

AAG Miller: Well as we're all aware you know there, there's over the past several months there's
been a robust discussion over what various attorney at the Attorney General's office should know
and who they should talk to and who they, what they should know and what they shouldn’t talk
about. |think and the folks who get those OPA repont, reporis and evaluate those OPA reports; |
don't, | don't have anything to do with what those people do. If you would like to get the office to
provide you with, with as much insight as possible again simple make that request to the Attomey
General, and you know he can put together the right people who can share with you as much
information as, as is possible. But, we, that's a different group of people and, and I'm supposed to
not interact with those peaple.

Commission E. Garrido: If 'm not mistaken the previous attomey that was assigned to us was
instructed to try and find out if there is a pending investigation on that matter and maybe you can
check if that was ever filed or requested with the AG. Another thing that | want to get some insight
from you the private company that was involved there what is their liability? Since you're talking
about since we're having this discussion of.....

Commission D, Herrera: Is that Federation? That was there?

Commission E. Garrido: No, The private company.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 10



AAG Miller: Well, there's from.... again I, | think that | think most productive way to for you all to get
the information you'd like to know about what the other foiks in the office may or may not be doing
is, is to ask just send an email send a letter up to the office to the Attorney General. Tell him you'd
like a briefing on you know as much information as the offices is prepared to provide and, and he
can get the, the right investigators, the right attorneys in the room with you all. You can ask
whatever questions you have. They'll answer it for the best of their ability, but you know everything
I know and, and that's on purpose for me not to know hardly anything about what may be going on
there, But, to move on to you second question, generally speaking and, and this is true; not just in,
in this particular situation but in, in you know, we've been talking about all these other notices of
violations that are going out. CHamoru Land Trust is not a regulator; it's a landlord and the trust's
ability to write wrongs that have occurred on its property is largely limited to enforcing the terms of
its lease; or telling people who don't have lease to get off your property and, and clean it up on their
way out. Just to, to use the example you all were, were talking about earlier you know there, there
are other agencies withing the government of Guam that, that issue permits for various kinds of
activity. Guam EPA, DPW, Department of Land Management. The people who the agencies that
issue permits are also the agencies that have the authority to enforce their rules against people
who are doing things that require a permit but who didn’t get a permit. So, | guess just to use the
most obvious example if, if there were, if there were mining occurring without the appropriate
mining permits then the agency that issues mining permits is the agency that would have the legal
authority to go after them.

Commission D. Herrera: So, to add to that on the extraction and mining and clearing and grading,
that was the loophole that was being used; it was a clearing and grading. But in addition to what i
wanted to point out is that still the landlord was victimized ......

AAG Miller: Sure.

Commission D. Herrera: From that loophole, the clearing and grading versus cutting 50-60 foot.
We, we stood in Route 15 and we looked in.

AAG Miller: Oh and, and there you know ....

Commission D. Herrera: And, we saw, and you're saying that's a cliff.

AAG Miller: There, there is you know a legal definition of cut and grade and there is a different
legal definition of mining and it, it is there, there is a you know it's not a complicated issue to make
to say well you may, you can call it anything you want to, but the law says cut and grade means
you're only moving this much of the earth and as soon as you move more than this much, now
that's mining and you have to have the appropriate mining permit.

Commission D. Herrera: So, who's the regulatory body that monitors that occurred in the last five
(5) to ten (10) years? And, Land Trust was somehow blinded by that loophole.

AAG Miller: | don't know for sure; I'm going to and | would... it would be, | wouldn’t want to guess.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, so | want to parallel that to the findings that had from last month
with the encroachment from the Med... Pharm met so we found out that Pharm Med encroached.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: MedPharm.

Commission D. Herrera: MedPharm. So that violation because we're landlords, we have no
authority to provide the Attorney General for compensation or resolution as being victims?

AAG Miller: No., I'mnot ......

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 11



Commission D. Herrera: So, separating the landlord and the regulatory requirement and we're not
a regulatory bady right. That's what we were saying so......

AAG Miller: But | think you MedPharm is a, is an interesting you know, sort of example of a you
know a much better case scenario for the commission, first of all you have, you have the legal
authority today, without any; you don't need a lawyer, you don't need a judge to secure your
property. Put up a fence around the four (4) corners of your property and say with big “NO
TRESPASSING” sign and you can get that, you can take control of the property by the time the sun
goes down,

Commission D. Herrera: That's controlling it.

AAG Miller: Now, separate from that is where, where you have a party who, who has obviously
trespassed on your land, who has obviousiy misused your land and has the resources to do
something about it. That's a party where it's there’s a fairly straight forward lawsuit.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

AAG Miller: That says not only you know, not only were you trespassing and you know you owe
us something for trespassing, but you are also polluting our property and this is what you owe us to
fix the, the environmental issues you created on our property. The, you know, there are probably
several potential lawsuits out of the Raceway. The issue though is always if |, you know if | sue
somebody, does somebody have a dollar to try and fix the problem?

Commission D, Herrera: |Is the private individual in that Federation sheltered from personal
liability?

AAG Miller: Perhaps.

Commission D. Herrera: Because when we visited the Raceway last month, we, we have placed
a large chain and a large heavy- duty padlock and what was, what did you see when we came
there on the front gate?

AAG Miller: No chain no padlock.

Commission D. Herrera: There, so that's, does warrant a trespassing violation? | mean, it's just
an analogy or a but I'll just end my comment on that 7161 and we can entertain more but, there was
no chain, no padlock. So, thank you thank you Attorney Miller.

Madam Chair A, Bordallo: [ just have one question. The bill that 325-37, authorizing us to lease
the property of Lot 7161-R1 in Yigo.

Commission D. Herrera: You're asking me or the attorney? 7161 is up for subdivision or lease or
permit lease or ......

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: No, it’s, it's particularly for drag race and we have to think on that's not
yet settled.

Commission D. Herrera: You're right, yeah.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: It can pass by the legislature faw.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 12



AAG Miller: What | understand about that particular piece of legislation is that it authorizes and
directs the trust to enter into a five (5) year lease with this particular tent, Guam Motorsports
Association and that's about all it does. There are ......

Commission D, Herrera: Authorized the commission.

AAG Miller: Yes, but there, there are if, if that bill were to pass and be signed in the form in which |
last looked at it which admittedly was a couple of weeks ago. There are still many open questions
about exactly what the terms of the lease would look like and we would, we would have to sit down
with Guam Motor Sports Association and try and work through as many of those, excuse me,
issues as we could but you know before we, before we did that we would visit with you all and get
your direction as to what you know, what were the issues you wanted to see covered in that lease.
The, the legislature has the authority to specify a few things but there, there are Iots of pieces and
parts to any commercial lease that we would have to work for.,

Commission E. Garrido: Since we're on that subject matter, since we're on that subject matter |
was not very comfortable with the part of that bill that says we will be given $300,000.00 to get that
property into shape for operation and as a taxpayer {'m totally against that and, as a board member
if | was given that $300,000.00, | would prefer to use that for infrastructures on our residential lease
tenants. What can we do to try and have that amended before this bill goes any further?

AAG Miller: Well, | frankly that, that's a job for you all as, as the, as the commissioners who the,
the political managers of the Trust is, is to communicate that perspective to the Guam Legislature
and, and frankly on, on any of the terms of, of that bill what do you like, what do you dislike, what
would you rather see that bill look like and you know but, whatever, whatever eight (8) senators
want to at the end of the day whatever eight (8) senators want to write into that bill and the governor
15 okay with. That’s what we're going to do, but again, one of the, one of the many open questions
in that particular draft of the legislation is well what, what do you do with the $300,000.007?

Commission E. Garrido: Well, the way it's written into the bill is, is to restore the property.

AAG Miller; What does that mean?

Commission E. Garrido: Make it, make it functional?

AAG Miller: For who?

Commission E. Garrido: People they're referring to that will take that will be a part......

AAG Miller: Well, it what it, what it does is it, is it, but it's for that’s for you all to resolve.
Commission E. Garrido: Does it give us the leverage to take all the good parts of that bill and
open up an RFP for the lease of that property for those specific purposes of drag racing, drift
racing, motorcross?

Commission D. Herrera: Attorney, I'd like to add in to what Earl was saying is that your question
was to who, right? and to who here is company a, or so if we approve this then what the eight (8)
senators are doing technically is that they're bypassing the sole source requirement. What I'm
saying sole source requirement.

Commission E. Garrido: No, they're making it the sole source the way it's being presented.

Commission D. Herrera: That's what I'm saying right.

Cross Talk

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 13



Commission D, Herrera: So, there’s a sole source requirement right, based on the procurement
rules and regulations for the procurement law? This thing is doing like you're saying is that it
circumvents the sole source requirements and then circumvents the RFP.

Commission E. Garrido: No, they're circumventing the [inaudible)

Madam Chair A. Bordalio: Right,

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, but....

AAG Miller: It's probably not very productive for me to speculated but, the bill says you give the
CHamoru Land Trust $300,000.00 for the purpose of cleaning and preparing the ot and this is the
important phrase “for public use”. That phrase can mean....

Commission D. Herrera: For sports.

AAG Miller: No, it says for public use.

Commission D. Herrera: For motorsport, public use.

AAG Miller: No. Says for public use.

Commission D, Herrera: So, | can put a firing range in there, then we can, we want it to. It's for
the public firing range of | mean you know this is a [inaudible] specific right, because no it's open
for anybody and anybody......

AAG Miller: Again, | mean we're, we're, we're speculating here. We're guessing but, in, in large
measure it would be up to you all what public use means, and whatever you all think it means is
what you're entitled to spend your $300,000.00 on.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Commission E. Garrido: So, we have that leverage?

AAG Miller: The way the bill is currently drafted you, you decide how the public will best benefit
from the spending of the $300,000.00.

Commission E. Garrido: There's nothing specific in the wording on that bill that says the public
use is equated to the raceway.

AAG Miller: Well, you, | would tell you, you; the way the bill is drafted you have to spend
$300,000.00 on the raceway on the land that is the raceway. But, that's a big piece of land and
there is a lot of issues there and it's up to you all to determine among the, among the many
priorities on that piece of property. What will, will benefit the public the most.

Commission D. Herrera: And, to add to that Commissicner Commission E. Garrido had a
suggestion that we subdivide the property to make it usable for the drag strip and more cross
group. That was the initial intent for one Public Law because technically the lot 7161-R1 is
identified as say one (1) million square meter, one {1) million plus?

Commission E. Garrido: Square meter.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 14



Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, right. Two hundred fifty-two (252) acres so, so the
recommendation from Commissioner Commission E. Garrido at the time was to make it affordable
for those and then we do an RFP or a concept of sponsorship concept where it's a win for the
users, win for the Land Trust and win for the general public. But, apparently as the weeks, the
days, the weeks, the months went by now; the group doesn’t want subdivision. The group that's
involved now wants the whole one (1) million square meter. Now where does that put us and they
want to occupy the property? Zero rent or zero tax or so where does that put the.... a prior victim of
CHamoru Land Trust Commission at that position is now, now we're in that eight (8) senators are to
implement this Public Law or Bilt 325-37. But then again, like you said, it authorizes us, right?

AAG Miller: Well, we all, we all are here to implement the laws that eight (8) senators and the
governor ultimately agreed and......

Commission D. Herrera: To change the law?
AAG Miller: And this bill you know. .....
Commission E. Garrido: It's still a bill though.

AAG Miller: This, this bill is still a bill you know represents a set of ideas that the legislature
thought worthy of discussion. There will be you know a debate and hearings and, and anybody and
everybody including you all have the opportunity to comment and, and provide input. | have no
doubt that you know the, the folks who are today advocating, their plan, their vision for that property
are talking to you know, talking to the senators, talking to the govemor and saying here...... we, we
want to do this and, and here’s why this is an excellent idea.

Commission D. Herrera: Can you put on screen 7161 {addressing CLTC staff)? It's okay, we
don't want to [inaudible] it right? We already put one hour in this subject but you're right.

AAG Miller:  But, you're right it, it, the at the same time the legislature should be hearing from as
many voices as possible on what is the what is the most appropriate use for that land and what the
future should hold for.

Commission D, Herrera: Okay.
Madam Chair A, Bordallo: [inaudible]

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, yeah, the chairwoman is saying that we're discussing it and we
did a preliminary what that?

Madam Chair A. Bordallo We have concerns.

Commission D. Herrera: Here's the map of the one million square meter, 250 acre and we had a
preliminary projection that we could put about 400 half an acre lot here; 400 and we did, we
discussed that when we were there last month that's half an acre with the sewer in it we can do 800
lots. Now we go down to [inaudible] at 500 squares from four (4) to eight (8) maybe twelve
hundred (1200} lots. So, the mission for the CHamoru Land Trust is to provide residential leases
and this beautiful size of property we wanted 1o accommodate the drift drag and motorcross but
apparently now they want to contral the whole so the......

AAG Miller: | have no doubt that the legislature would like to hear fram anybody and everybody
as to what the most appropriate future is for that particular piece of property. But, for the folks who
sit over here, our job is just to do whatever the legislature and the governor tells us to do.

Commission D. Herrera: Not the commission?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 15



AAG Miller: We all, we all have to do whatever the govemor tells. We don’t over here we don't get
to have opinions. You get to have opinions and the legislature gets to have opinions.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, alright thank you sir.

Acting AD J Cruz: | think when we get to the that section or that item on the agenda |, I'll take
note of everybody's recommendations and whether the board supports it or not or whether they
would want amendments. I'll compile all of that; prepare a response and send it to the legislature.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Commission E. Garrido: Because this particular bill we had no input.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: That's right.

Commission E, Garrido: In the construction of this bill. This was all special interest inputs.

Acting AD J Cruz: | guess the benefit is at least they didn't hear it yet. There’s no public hearing
so we still have time to for me to gather you guy’s comments or recommendations or amendments
to the bill and we can prepare the, the board’s testimony and provide.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay. Okay Director thank you. Next go ahead you're closing your
remarks.

Acting AD J Cruz: So, still on the compliance section the compliance team is conducting
compliance inspections in Piti. This task should be completed in the next two weeks.

CLTC INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT:

Acting AD J Cruz: The next item on the report is CLTC's enhancement of its infrastructure. So,
the funding for this project came from the Office of Insular Affairs Technical Assistance Program
also known as TAP. CLTC received two hundred thirty-nine thousand, six hundred, ninety-three
dollars ($239,693.00) for this project. Currently we're waiting on the purchase order for the website
development and the PO for the RFP publications. The publications is for CLTC's RFP that will go
out for these scanning and digitizing of all of our documents and the creation and development of
our web based data system software. So, the software will be not as sophisticated as DLM's land
web system although when the, when, when a person applies, they'll be given a | guess a numeric
number or identifier from anywhere for as long as they have internet access, they're able to log on
through our website; able to punch in their username password and then they'll be able to see all
the documents relevant to their lease or file in that sense. So, we're, that's what web base data
system software is for. So, everything, that starts coming in, we'll be able to start scanning it and
digitizing it and all that other great stuff so less time pulling out files and going through it. We'll all
be able to see it online.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Commission E. Garrido: Who would be the support for that? .
Acting AD J Cruz: Currently the Project Manager's Otech. Anything related to computers,
software, hardware would be Otech. We are requesting for the maintenance cost for the next five
(5) years so we can budget for that.

Commission E. Garrido: |, | know our data is very sensitive and it's something that has to be
continually archived. That's the part that 'm trying to inquire about right now its to be secured we
need a data bank that will accommodate and have a backup maintenance plan in play for it and it

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 16



should be redundant. That way if something happens to one of the servers [inaudible] can pick
up.

Acting AD J Cruz: All our specs for this project is routed through Otech and is approved by Otech.

Commission E. Garrido: But, what, what was the scope that Otech is approving?
{inaudible]...mini main or PCs or what?

Acting AD J Cruz: We can provide a copy of the specs for review. But | do, what | do know that
they'll be stored in a cloud server. That's as much as | know as to where it's going to be stored but
we'll be mare than happy to provide a copy of this.

Commission E. Garrido: The cloud's okay, but | think we need an alternate ather than the cloud.
We need something, so that if something if the cloud gets hacked, we have a secondary.

Acting AD J Cruz: |, | believe it's within this specs but we'll provide a copy.
Commission E. Garrido: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: Like | was mentioning, for the RFP we, we anticipate to publish the RFP
availability in September and award the contract by October and the project should be compieted
within 6 to 8 months after the contract award. So, before the end of next fiscal year we should be
up and running.

Commission D. Herrera: So, this would be expended under the fiscal year or be paid pre -paid?
Acting AD J Cruz: Portion.
Commission D, Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: It's, it's through the funding from the Office of Insular Affairs; it's a grand, grand
money.

Commiission D, Herrera: Okay.

BUDGET BILL:

Acting AD J Cruz: So, the next item is | recently received a copy of the Budget bill; the draft
budget bill that's being discussed. We compared it to our initiai submission; it's about seventy
thousand dollars {$70,000.00) less so I'm going to respond accordingly and try to argue to add the
additional seventy thousand ($70,000.00) but we’ll go from there.

Commission D. Herrera: Was there a reason why they cut 707

Acting AD J Cruz: Well, usually.

Commission E. Garrido: They never pass a budget that is presented [inaudible]

Acting AD J Cruz: And normally like for the case of CLTC many years ago we were financially
independent. We relied on just our special fund but as the leases mature and expire our fixed
revenue extreme decreases so currently |, | believe we're only projecting at collecting between
$650 to $700,000.00 annually. Because we, our expenditures are far greater than that we need a
supplemental from the General Fund. The only fund that CLTC has that allows for operational cost
is the CLTC Operations Fund. Every other fund is restricted to certain types of expenditures.

Commission D. Herrera: QOperation Fund is about 300k or?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg- 17



Acting AD J Cruz: For the draft bill?

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah.

Acting AD J Cruz: It's about six hundred-sixty-six thousand ($666,000.00).

Commission D. Herrera: QOkay.

Acting AD J Cruz: And then we have a small portion from the Infrastructure Fund, but the
Infrastructure Fund Expenditures are restricted to certain; | think it's land registration surveying,
infrastructure, telecommunications. Although that, that appropriation amount is only twenty-one
thousand dollars {$21,000.00).

Commission D. Herrera: Twenty-one for survey?

Acting AD J Cruz: Just for that fund itself and then the difference is the General Fund which is
about $800 some thousand dollars. So, now we're heavily reliant on the General Fund for our
operations,

Commission D. Herrera: And the 800k is coming the General Fund?

Acting AD J Cruz: General Fund.

Commiission E. Garrido: Do we have.... I'm sorry go ahead and finish.

Commission D. Herrera: Go ahead.

Commission E. Garrido: Do we have a working relationship with Department of Land
Management survey team?

Acting AD J Cruz: From what has happened in the past is we can send up requests but | believe
even Land management itself has just so much employees themselves too with a lot of projects, but
nonetheless we can request for some assistance in surveying.

Commission E. Garrido: | think, | think if we could have some sort of memorandum of
understanding with them it would be a lot cheaper than cutsourcing to private surveyors. Now how
fast can do it that's a different story.

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: We're still hoping that we can come in and request. These funds are
tentative right? On that bill that was passed?

Acting AD J Cruz: For the next fiscal year correct.

Commission D. Commission D. Herrera: So, so we can still come in and request additional 70
or....

Acting AD J Cruz: Yes. [, I'l be sending a response to Speaker Terlaje. She's, her office is who
sent the draft budget bill.

Commission D. Herrera: So, for the appropriation we have to go through channel?

Acting AD J Cruz: She’s our oversight chair, so.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 18



Commission D. Herrera: Because of land.

Acting AD J Cruz: Yeah.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: She'll be the one there batting for us.
Commission D. Herrera: 1see. Okay.

Commission E. Garrido: No excuse me, Senator Duenas was batting for us. Just a few days ago
he commented that he was willing to financially help CLTC in order {6 approve staffing and his
financing. So maybe we should include him in that.

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay, noted.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, so [inaudible] that we were mentioning that it was only
appropriated twenty-one thousand (21,000.00)?

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: So, remember we had 223 lots that were on unsurvey properties or un,
unregistered.

Acting AD J Cruz: So, what is our status of that? What's our process to register the 223 lots and
all the other lots? Because remember we were discussing Lot 7161-R1 that it was unregistered
based on the map, but then we found the certificate of title. So that lot is registered?

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: So, how so what's our status with the other 223 we request for the
attorney.

Acting AD J Cruz: [ believe lot 286 in Piti is still pending. | know that had started several years
ago. We'll be sending Attorney Miller an email of the listing of all the unregistered Lots in the order
of importance. The order is based on or the importance is determined on how many leases were
awarded within that track.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: There's if Fm not mistaken, there's | believe one track has about 50 some
leases awarded. Others have 10, 20 and so forth, but you're correct; there's CLTC has issued 223
leases to applicants on unregistered property. -

Commission D. Herrera: Okay. So, the process of that Attorney, is generally we get we take the
223 lots subcategorize it on cat one, two and three whatever lot and then next process is to file it in
court?

AAG Miller: This is where we pick up the topic of our relationship with DLM. The, the biggest
challenge in getting any land registered is getting a correct survey. The, we, we need an accurate
survey before we can really initiate any of the subsequent processes. | have had a couple of quick
conversations with the DLM Director who indicated that you know whenever we had a list of the
tracks, we wanted to focus on we should get together and visit because he indicated you know they
may have done some or all of the survey work already. They just haven't finalized it to the point

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutas of August 15, 2024

pg. 19



where it's stamped and signed and, and publicly filed but, so we, we need to get the list of the
unregistered lots together and then the first thing to do will be go talk to DLM; see what paperwork
they have in the file about those lots and then see what we need to do to add on to that paper so
that we are in a position to be able to, to make those filings in court and get those registration
complete.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, so in addition to that 223 when we were processing the 30 plus or
so Small Business Administration victims from Mawar, we found several that were on unregistered
land. So, | guess that's another status where those victims are a high priority; the ones from Mawar
that we were providing the loan guarantee. You may recall that we kind of had to hustle or fast
track to get the collateral for the escrow to support the new SBA mortgages. So, and | don't see
any of the status here for the SBA constituents, right? We still have them do we stiil have?

Acting AD J Cruz: There's | believe ten.
Commission D. Herrera: Ten more?
Acting AD J Cruz: | believe so.

Commission D. Herrera: Because | met ane constituent out here that was waiting also so I'm not
sure if they're on unregistered property or if it was just a loan guarantee and considering that
they're victims of the typhoon, | guess we can say that they're a high priority also because they're
living in substandard condition and the typhoon season is in again.

AAG Miller: Sure. | mean the you know the, again |, | assume but don’t know that and this is what
the, the registration process is all about when, when we have the surveys, when we make the
filings in court and say that CHamoru Land Trust claims of these lands that nobody else is going to
show up and say | claim it too.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: That's right.

AAG Miller: if, if there if nobody else make a claim then the registration process moves along
pretty efficiently once we have the, the surveys in place.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, in addition to that | understand we have to go to the Attorney
General to have a process can we add in addition to the budget right, to augment the budget to hire
private attorneys to specifically focus on the unsurvey properties, the 223 plus the 11,000 acres that
we have. | know we have 11,000 acres and as you mentioned that to do a proper registration, we
need a proper mapping and we need to have a proper mapping, we got to have a proper survey.
Now, if you guys recall the issue with the Rabon case; simple, | think that's [inaudible] and the
property was divided, subdivided in a guarter acre and it was supposed to be a half an acre
because it was on top of the water land zone but the person was given a property that was
surveyed; that was surveyed but it was surveyed on a quarter acre which violated safe water or the,
what's that the [inaudible] requirement of having and half an acre. So, the point I'm trying to get is
that the subdivision property that that particular group there was 123 lots and | did the research on
that one; there's 23 lots in Adacao and all the 23 were issued a lease. All the 23 were not in
compliance with the half an acre requirement. All the 23 most likely more or less occupied the
property and have built. Now, considering that we cannot build on a quarter acre with a septic and
leaching field without the sewer.... The families there now have this demand where the properties
cannot be surveyed by a surveyor. Now Surveyor B, we can say surveyor A surveyed the property
and surveyed it at a quarter acre which the requirement is what's the size?

Acting AD J Cruz: Half acre.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 20



Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Half an acre.

Commission D. Herrera: So, surveyor A cut it in quarter acre. Surveyor B came in was hired by
constituent and we instructed the constituent there’s a list of surveyors here if you like to go to your
property; you can choose from any of the surveyor B. Surveyor B came in used surveyor's A
subdivision that was not, did, did not go to the Guam Land Use Commission to determine the size
of property number one, and if there was any water, power, sewer in that property. So, surveyor B
retraced the surveyor A's property. Constituent came in applied for the Guam Housing or VA
veteran. Build was approved from the VA; build the home in 2012, paid the loan off in 2022. The
constituent came because her husband died to succeed; she was denied because of the mis-
surveyed property back in 98 of a subdivision that didn't go through the Guam Land Use
Commission requirement for all the seven (7) agencies to determine if you're top a water lens or do
you have a buffer zone and all the other requirements. So, now we're in that dilemma. How, how
many of those properties that we have in the north? | requested last, last month, right? Alf the
properties from Fadian to Anderson. How many properties do we have there from Fadian to
Anderson? it's a couple of thousand acres. Then from Fadian down Route 1; we were just talking
about lot 10123, and 10123 slated for subdivision and development and that's why we were trying
to engage and merge with the USDA to have a subsidized income and debt ratio to apply to
develop the 366 lots. Now, down from [inaudible] down from 10123 to Swamp Road, Chalan
Lahe, Chalan Paluan, some of them, some of those properties have no sewer.

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: So, that's another priority that we, we wanted to address now is what is
the status of those that are on unregistered property that are the victims of Mawar. That are on
unregistered property were given a loan now that's just one that did not get a Ican from the VA that
completed a home, paid the home and on and their own top of [inaudible]. The survey map that
they're on was not never registered or recorded as approved. So, right now we're in that dilemma;
how many of those constituents are on those water lands? Maybe | can ask the Director here on
Swamp Road those are half acre or quarter acre? Swamp Road, Chalan Lahe, Chalan Palauan?
Acting AD J Cruz: Half. Supposed to be half.

Commission D. Herrera: So.

Acting AD J Cruz: Some are bigger than half.

Commission D. Herrera: But | remember that that those properties were stated for land for the
landless.

Acting AD J Cruz: That's Tract 10, 1022.
Commission D, Herrera: 1022 quarter acra?
Acting AD J Cruz: Less than quarter.

Commission D. Herrera: Less than quarter; no sewer. Now we have a dilemma; people have
built homes 500 and square, 5007

Acting AD J Cruz: Less than 500.
Commission D. Herrera: Less than five (5). So, if you have the water, power, sewer, where good

density is okay and we did that since back in 95, 2000 right? 95, 2005 now it's 2024. It's about
twenty (20) years ago. So, now we're in that dilemma so that's the question | like to bring up is that

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
py. 21



if we can request for additional funds to hire additional surveyors to fast track what we're trying to
do. Because, if we go if we're going to proceed at this speed with the resources that we have I'm,
I'm sure it's kind of difficult for you to do four (4). How many agencies you cover four (4)?

AAG Miller: Four.

Commission D. Herrera: Four agencies because 223 lots that are being occupied, we got 11,000
acres that we don't know if they're really if they're really registered, unregistered in land claimants.
Have they been surveyed? Maybe yes, maybe no; but like you said we have to accurately bring the
surveyors in; do the research on the documentation; is there any original landowner claiming set,
set the marks do the registration process and then we're good to go. We're ready for another 10 to
another 100 years; cause right now the properties that we have and I've been requesting this from
the Director to kind of give us the general island wide. The island and | guess you gave it to me in
red lines and white lines... no, so.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: | want to ask a question. On those quarter acre lots you had
mentioned before in our meeting about putting the two-quarter acre lots to half acre.

Acting AD J Cruz: Two (2} combining correct,
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Yeah. What, what area is that?

Acting AD J Cruz: So, to speak to Commissioner Commission D. Herrera's question about the
quarter acre lots and Ms. Rabon, so Attorney Miller and | had a meeting with the Speaker. So, the
process before for CLTC was when maps were drawn, created and everything they none of the
maps went through the map review process with DLM. That was back in the '‘90's when it started in
'98 and stuff like that. Later on, the maps were being required to start going through the map
review process and then they introduced a bill and enacted into law which is now known as 31,
Public Law 31-17. This law grandfathers all the in-house maps that were done prior to the
requirement of going through the map review process. Although the, the law did require or did
approve or grandfather the maps that were prepared and signed by a professional land surveyor
and approved by the CLTC Director. So, the, the map that or the area that Commissioner
Commission D. Herrera is speaking about in Adacao, that map was only signed by the, the land
surveyor and in our discussions with the Speaker, she's open to hearing our argument to extend
the timeline for the, for the Administrative Director to, to approve that in-house map that didn’t meet
the requirements. So, what we're doing is compiling all the in-house maps that, that were signed by
a professional land surveyor, but lacks the Administrative Director's approval and we're going to
send it to her to review and hopefully she can provide some kind of amendment to this public law.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, hold that thought. So, the 32 lots that we're talking about in
Adacao?

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Commission D. Herrera: Right, did not go through the Guam Land Use
Commission requirement and, and is that the discussion is to have the signatures from the Land
Management Head and the head here to have them approve?

Acting AD J Cruz: No.

Commission D. Herrera: Asis, as is? I'm just trying to clarify.

Acting AD J Cruz: It's the, the map was signed by and certified by the land surveyor so what it
lacked was the Administrative Director from CLTC to sign and approve.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 22



Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: So, we're compiling all those maps and going to share it with the Speaker.
Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: And hopefully she's amendable to amending the law.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay. So, keep that in thought right, so remember the case that we're
talking about the successor; the successor used that same lot on the same map, but that same
map did not go through the Guam Land Use Commission. The Guam Land Use Commission will
go through the seven (7) AG... seven 97; Regulatory Agencies if we approve that as is now right, it
it's already violating the quarter acre requirement to be half an acre. So, we're not really fixing the,
we're fixing the symptom no the cause, the cause is that we got to go back because right now that
property right, is situated next to the main road and that 32 acres right, have a buffer zone. Buffer
zone between the main road and the subdivision of 32. So, we, we understand the Guam
Waterworks came in here, | think six (6) months ago to request for a right of way for one of their
pumps, now they're installing a sewer water system there, but it's going to be in Carnation Road or
what was the name of that main road?

Acting AD J Cruz: Both sides, it's going to be in both sides.

Commission D. Herrera: It's going to be in the [inaudible] area?

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: Verify because no the map that she gave us the McDonald that came
here was only showing us the map on the main road, so.

Acting AD J Cruz: We just had and since you brought that up, we just met with GWA this week.
Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: That [inaudible] project for the sewer upgrade and installation will turn dirt, will
turn | believe October.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: FY2025,

Commission D. Herrera: For the main road and the subdivision?

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct. She provided us some maps but we'll also provide you.

Commission D. Herrera: Please. So, 50 you see you know so we don't | mean it's like I'm going
beyond and stepping on my tongue right. So, if that's applicable to that part then | again that would
be one part.

Acting AD J Cruz: Yeah.

Commission D. Herrera: At the sewer water and the guarter acre requirement so, and then will
that would resolve that 32 constituents that are on the property now. Now, and | think the property

is also unregistered.

Acting AD J Cruz: I'm not sure,

CLTC Regutar Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 23



Commission D. Herrera: Verify because | was searching for the title and |, and the map itself is
unregistered. The original basic lot before the and cut off the subdivision for the 32 just, just to
verify because that's what happened to us on, | think there was one here that we relocated right.
The [inaudible] or something right, the person was on that lot then he decided to relocate to
another propenrty so.

Acting AD J Cruz: We, we'll get that information and share.
Commission D. Commission D. Herrera: Thank you, sir.

Acting AD J Cruz: Welcome. Also, in our since we disclosed that we've met with GWA just this
week, | believe it was Tuesday, so GWA, several years ago we, we presented GWA the option of
instead of monetary purchasing of the lots from like how it was in the past maybe we can work
some kind of in-kind services in lieu of monetary payment. At that time that wasn't an option for
them, but in this meeting that just occurred this week, GWA now is open to in-kind services, and we
also did speak to the idea of the SUDA Program and that there could be a tri-party type of
arrangement with GWA, CLTC and RCAC. RCAC is the non-profit organization that works heavily
and a lot with USDA. They know the packaging; they understand all the requirements. We've done
we had discussions and meetings with representative from RCAC and regarding SUDA. And so, so
that was the conversation during that meeting. We're just waiting for GWA to come back to us and
that they're acceptable to that process. Also, in and, in the past, what has been done was they
would purchase the lots we transfer in fee simple.

Commission D. Herrera: GWA?

Acting AD J Cruz: To GWA. |did mention that now we will present to the board that instead of
any conveyance of property we do a long-term lease now.

Commission D. Commission D. Herrera: Oh, for water, Guam Waterworks?

Acting AD J Cruz: For Guam Waterworks instead of decreasing our inventory by transferring lots
and sending it to them and all that other great stuff. So, they’re open to that too but they just need
to get the approval of their General Manager and they'll get back to us.

Commission D. Herrera: GWA?

Acting AD J Cruz: Yes.

Commission D, Herrera: Now in addition GWA has a, | mean CHamoru Land Trust has properties
next to the gold course and GHURA? Is that GHURA right after. ..

Acting AD J Cruz: Yeah 501.
Commission D. Herrera: 501 GHURA in between is about 10 lots of Land Trust?
Acting AD J Cruz: | believe so. [inaudible]...! think that's what it is yeah, yeah, 1 think so.

Commission D. Herrera: So, there's a sewer line that runs right underneath that subdivision. |
have the map. You guys are aware of that?

Acting AD J Cruz: We understand that there’s a sewer line withing the: but we don’t have the
map.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

Y. 24



Commission D. Herrera: Okay. So, how do we do that? | mean, | mean you know you can verify
that sewer line was there before the subdivision came and then the same surveyor came in and
subdivided the property. This is in addition to the Adacao. Now this is the one down at Butulo.

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: So, the property was subdivided there was a sewer line that connects
from GHURA 5027

Acting AD J Cruz: 501.

Commission D. Herrera: 501. Then from GHURA 501 like from the main road, GHURA 501 and
then the or the, the sewer goes under five. | mean the CHamoru Land Trust; how many lots are
there? | think about 10.

Acting AD J Cruz: Along the road?

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, remember next to 501 there’s about 20 lots.
CLTC Staff G. Eay: Adjacent to the same side, right?

Commission D. Herrera: Right, right.

CLTC Staff G. Eay: There's lots there.

Commission D. Herrera: So, in the middle of that subdivision right: a sewer line, here's the here’s
the road. Here's the subdivision; the sewer line runs parallel to the road, but it's about 100ft in
underneath the subdivision and |, that was brought to my attention because they were going fo.
One lot owner was digging and they somehow, they noticed that there was a sewer line on the
bottom. They didn’t know it was a sewer line but when they double check with Guam Waterworks,
they're saying your properties right on top of the main sewer line. So, see that's another request
that if we can ask for additional more funds for surveyors to come in and like you said accurately
survey the property in accordance to the Guam line. Because if that went to the Land Use
Commission right, the subdivision in Butulu and if it went to the proper process that the Guam Land
Use commission, the commission would have discovered that there’s a sewer line under that
subdivision, right? Because they will bring the Guam Water works, GPA, GTA or not GTA,
Department of Act, right. And they have the committee and normally that's what they do, they have
the committee meeting and they're saying we're going to subdivide this specific lot 100 acres or
we'll use 10122, you know the.... we use the Raceway for an example. We want to put the 1200
subdivision on the Raceway, so they'll call all the agencies; Guam Waterworks and they, they'll
brainstorm what's on that property if there's oil spili or, so what was the acre on the Raceway?
2507 Yeah, 252, so we could put 1200 lots that are down to 500 square meters, no. So, all the
agencies would be there from the Guam Land Use Commission, no. | don't think there’s any sewer
line going an the Guam Raceway. The former....

Acting AD J Cruz: Yeah. But, it's not far so....
Commission D. Herrera: So, just a sewer line?

Acting AD J Cruz: Yeah, if you use a shortcut like going to the back side of Perez Acres, there's a
sewer line along that road.

Commission D. Herrera: Oh, on the other side of route, the west of route 157

Acting AD J Cruz: The shortcut going to like the McDonald's.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

Pg. 25



Commission D. Herrera: Okay. So, that'll be easy for us to develop the 250 acres and tie into. ...
Acting AD J Cruz: It's, it's not two withing 200ft, but its, it's also not within,

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: It's not that far.

Commission D. Herrera: So, 200 is the magic number?

Acting AD J Cruz: The norm, right for the requirements to hook up.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

CLTC Staff G. Eay: But the easement that you're talking about, that was put in place for the Perez
Acres subdivision.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, the ...

CLTC Staff G. Eay: So, there's still some public requirements from...
Commission D. Herrera: Route one to fifteen?

CLTC Staff G. Eay: Right, [inaudible]

Commission D. Herrera: Atftomey that's the, the road that we stood on and you know there was a
lot of traffic on the other side home, so, but back to, to we need to check that because one that guy
was going 1o put a he was digging | guess for septic tank or leeching field and he saw a pipe line.
So, he was asking can he drill into the Guam Waterworks pipeline under his house. Here's the
lawn, here's the sewer line, so he was digging for septic tank and leeching, and they found the
sewer line, So, can he tap into it?

Acting AD J Cruz: |, | don't know. [ don't think so.

CLTC Staff G. Eay: In a case like that, in the past in the early 50’s and 60’s there were when
[inaudible]... put their lines, they, they have their own mapping but the problem is not all the
agencies has that [inaudible]....... to see and, and because fike you said, it didn't go through the
CHamoru Land Trust Commission, it has to go first to the ARC; the Application Review Committee.

Commission D. Herrera: There, there.

CLTC Staff G, Eay: Consist of all line agencies [inaudible] .... Hey listen, we have, we have
reports being there or a sewer line on that on that property. So, that would stop the development.

Commission D. Herrera: So, the ARC would discover that?

CLTC Staff G. Eay: Who would discover that.

Commission D. Herrera: So, he was, he was going to drill there and | said you knaow double
check with Guam Waterworks because. So, anyway Guam Waterworks certified that it was a
pressure sewer; what do you call that Glenn? When is the sewers pressurized, not, not, force
{inaudible].

CLTC Staff G. Eay: Yeah.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 26



Commission D. Herrera: So, if you drill that the sewer would have....
Acting AD J Cruz: Exploded or....

Commission D. Herrera: come up from the golf course, the GHURA.
CLTC Staff G. Eay: Yeah.

Commission D. Herrera: So, so please advise the Speaker that if we, we're going to shortcut and
fust sign the maps it's going to backfire on the, what do you call us landlords.

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay. We'll, we'll take into account that we'll go.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, Speaker wants ....

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Time up, 5 minutes, 10 minutes recess. Yeah.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: But you need to call the recess.

Commission E. Garrido: She did.

Madam Chair A. Bordalio: Ten minutes.

10 MINUTES BREAK @2:39pm

Meeting Resumed @ 2:49pm

BILL 334-37:

Acting AD Acting AD J Cruz: The next item is Bill 334-37 which was authored and introduced by
Speaker Terlaje. We provided a copy to everyone. If you have any comments regarding the bill
please forward it to me. Ill compile it and we can put it on the agenda for next month and we can
have an open discussion and we’'ll gather whatever amendments or suggestions the board may
have.

Commission D, Herrera: That's the bill from the Attorey General?

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

AAG Miller: The, the intent of that bill is to give the commission all the authority it needs to fix
history.

Commission D. Herrera: The defects?

AAG Miller: All the defects. As we've talked about a number of times its generally speaking you
know passing new bills only, only deals with the future. So, we, we need the legislature to give us
special legal authority to try and remedy all these, these issues we are talking about in past and,
and in the couple of informal conversations we've had, there's been some recent activity to that but
there also been a direction that if we do this, we're only doing this once so you people better get it
right.

Commission E. Garrido: So, there is a timeline for us to apply that?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 27



AAG Miller: Wel, | think you know, you all know better than me. That, that the legislature will be
focused on the budget for the foreseeable future and then we have the election in November. So,
again, you know better than me how, how likely they are to take up ......

Commission D. Herrera: You said there’s an auction in November?

AAG Miller: Election.

Commission D. Herrera: Oh. Oh. What's that?

AAG Miller: But yes, the, the sooner we can because the, the challenge for us will be that to, to
get enough legal authority so that whatever the problem is we can fix it.

Commission D. Herrera: A question; we're going to for example, minimum one acre and
constituents have two acres, we, we're going to be delegating the authority to modify the statute to
change from one acre to two? That bill would do that?

AAG Miller: That the way it's currently written.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

AAG Miller: The way it's currently written it would simply say one acre is good enough. Keep your
one acre.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, and give up the second or something like that?

Acting AD J Cruz: it will, it will allow the, the board to, to | guess ratify whatever was done. But,
then if the const... if the lessee is not in compliance there's a certain period, they have to come to
be compliant.

Commission D. Herrera: So, to ratify whatever was done so what was done was that the
constituent was only allowed one acre, but the constituent was given two acres just as an analogy.
50, the board can be given that delegation of authority to say your sins are forgiven?

AAG Miller: See what the legislature wants to do.

Acting AD J Cruz: In the current form that's the way it was.

Commission D. Herrera: So, we need to amend that particular language?

AAG Miller: Well, we need your input to, to make sure we've, we've covered you know, all the
issues that need to be covered so that we don't have to go back to the legislature.

Commission D. Herrera: What's our timeline before the public hearing?

Acting AD J Cruz: We don’t know yet. That's why we provided you guys; as soon as we got it. If,
like | said, if you guys have any commends or recommendations, forward it to me, I'll compile it and
if it's not heard soon at least the next board meeting can be discussed.

Commission D. Herrera: so maybe we'll have a working session aside from this and that.. ..

AAG Miller: That would be great.

Commission D. Herrera: Right?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minuias of August 15, 2024

pg. 28



Acting AD J Cruz: That's possible.

Commission D, Herrera: Yeah, right?

Acting AD J Cruz: So, the next item, so the next item is the shrine map, the popular shrine map. |
signed the shrine map. | signed the shrine map; initially it was drawn out at 14 acres, but the law
only allows for five (5} acres. Attomey Miller can discuss or explain about....

Commission E. Garrido: You're talking about the cemetery map.

Acting AD J Cruz: The one at Oka Point yes.

AAG Miller: The legislature made it clear that 5 acres means 5 acres.

Commission E. Garrido: Oh, it said two to five acres, right.

AAG Miller: Two to five acres. Sao, the Department of Parks and Rec who's in charge of, of
eventually building the shrine and the Department of Land Management are continuing to, to talk to
see how that the, the last map that everybody got to see needs to be modified and they'll be coming
forward saan with a new map that will not exceed 5 acres being reserved for the shrine.
Commission D. Herrera: So, it's going to be 5 acres on the block map?

AAG Miller: Two to five acres. A minimum of two, a maximum of five.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, got it.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: That's the law.

Acting AD J Cruz: That, that concludes my Director's Report.

Old Business:

PBS GUAM/KGTF-TV 12
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Okay, as we go down old business if we have discussed it. Skip it.

Acting AD J Cruz: No, we can maintain it. It's not, it shouldn’t take that long the items. So, the
first item is PBS Guam/KGTF-TV 12. Currently they have a, a valid license agreement for Lot 10-
R3-Block 10-Tract 9 in the municipality of Barrigada. Ms. Ina Carillo, the General Manager of PBS
sent in a request to extend their deferment payment so what's happening now is in lieu of any
monetary payments, PBS provides the services of recording our meetings. So, recording our
meetings, Ms., and they have been; their rent payments have been deferred for the incline services.

Commission D. Herrera: At the Bairigada property.

Acting AD J Cruz: Yes. So, Ms. Carillo is requesting an extension for an additional 10 years,
although their license is going to expire 12/31/2028. If the board should, is inclined to extend the
incline services we would recommend only until the expiration of their lease which is in December
31° 2028.

Commission D. Herrera: Four more years.

Acting AD J Cruz: Yeah. Yeah, cause the 10 years will exceed ...

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 29



Cross talk.

Commission D. Herrera: Four more years. Four more years. I've heard that before.
Acting AD J Cruz: Four and a half.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: What was, what was the billing per month?

Acting AD J Cruz: $850.00 a month.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: No that's the least; what’s their billing?

Acting AD J Cruz: In return they, they provide $850.00 worth of service.
Commission E. Garrido: Do we utilize that to this full amount or......

Acting AD J Cruz: So far s0 good. They've been here been doing our meetings twice a month.
They're here, so.

Commission E. Garrido: No, But | mean we have not exceeded that amount in kind services?
Acting AD J Cruz: We haven't received an invoice so we're fine.

Commission E. Garrido: Okay.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: We never received prior to this?

Acting AD J Cruz: We never received an invoice for their additional services of our twice a month
meetings and stuff like.

Commission D. Herrera: And that's the, the contract the contract up to 20287

Acting AD J Cruz: December 31, 2028

Commission E. Garrido: What is your recommendation on this?

Acting AD J Cruz: To extend just until December 31, 2028. The ten (10) years will surpass.
Commission D. Herrera: QOkay.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Are you in agreement Commissioners?

Commission D, Herrera: Oh. ['d like to make a motion to approve the extension; right for PBS?
Guam KGTF...

Acting AD J Cruz: Forin-kind services.

Commission D. Herrera: For in-kind services until December 31, 2028 on Lot number 10-R3,
Block D, Tract 9 Barrigada, consisting an area of 5,307 square meters.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Yeah. Let me see this agreement. They initial each page, but the last
page where they notarized, we don’t know who the signatories were. After 10.

Acting AD J Cruz: No, | think there's a missing page.

CLTC Reguiar Meeling Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 30



Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Yeah. Over here after this, there should be a signature. These two
notaries signed their names but who are the parties that signed it.

Acting AD J Cruz: They're going to get the; | think a page missing.
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Yeah, there is.

AAG Miller: Madam Chair if you'd like to, we can move on to item 5-B without voting on that
motion,

Acting AD J Cruz: You can come back.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Okay by me.

Acting AD J Cruz: So, we're going to table and come Back?

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Yeah, we’'ll just wait for them.

Acting AD J Cruz: QOkay.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: When they come back with.

GLOBAL RECYCLING:

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay. So, the next item 5-B Global Recycling is, is just an update for the
commission. On Monday, June 24™, we conducted a site inspection; from during our inspection, we
identified concerning activities that may have been a potential environmental concern. One of them
was, there is a tanker truck labeled diesel only that had dripping fluids from the pump and then you
can see other pictures here that's displayed on the TV here the storage of 55-gallon drums. What
appears to be like oil on the ground things like that. Can you go up more? (display on tv). ! don't
know if that’s like a manmade pond or.

CLTC Staff G. Eay: It's like a, a pond manmade pond where the lower end of the property receives
the, the runoff and off course in every rain it overflows because the, that capacity after 3 days of no
rain.

Commission D. Herrera: Did you ask them why that's like a berm? Is it, is it a berm?

CLTC Staff G. Eay: Ponding. This is a ponding manmade ponding basin that [inaudible] all the
run from the higher end to the lower end.

Acting AD J Cruz: So, so this is what we were talking about.

Commission D. Commission D. Herrera: The fuel?

Acting AD J Cruz: The fuel that's dripping

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: We, we did send a letter to EPA. We did not receive EPA’s yet; official report,
but we were informed that, that leaking is non-potable water. Although when we did a second site

inspection with Attorney Miller present. Glenn had stuck his hand in that pumnp.

Commission D. Herrera: It's not water?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 31



CLTC Staff G. Eay: And hand, the pump nuzzles and it was, it was a smell of diesel.
Commission D. Herrera: Maybe diesel and they were pumping; was it pumping?

Acting AD J Cruz: |t was just leaking. It was hanging down. So, we, we will send another letter to
EPA to conduct the second site inspection. At this time, we will be present.

Commission E. Garrido: Ask them for the analysis of the first inspection.

Acting AD J Cruz: We, we, we'll request for that report. Attorney Miller and | have been in small
discussions about how to move forward. We're going to compile that information and we'll present
it to the board at the next board meeting on assessing background and all that other great stuff and
environmental studies and things like that.

Commission D. Herrera: And the lease, what's the status? Was there, they're occupying it based
on a permit to enter?

Acting AD J Cruz: [ believe authorization to occupy, there, there really is no commercial license or
anything like that in place.

Commission D. Herrera: And did the attorney review that? Did you review just to see? | mean.

AAG Miller: Yeah. Again, you know this is, this is a perfect illustration of how you know, it's
straight forward for the commission to address lease related issues. You know, how much space
do you occupy and what do you owe us for occupying that space. You know the environmental
issues; we've got largely rely on Guam EPA in order to address concerns.

Commission D. Herrera: So, what's our alternative because right now they've been there for
almost 10 years? | remember they occupied the property based on a parallel movement in with
Koko, and then remember Koko Recycling. We owe again a liabifity of about 7 mil. in the beginning
and it's down now to about five, about 5 million, and | remember that back then they were going to,
or | guess we were going to [inaudible] the, the lease and | guess Koke was going to come in and
do a credit debit on their lease to occupy the 12 acres and so to | guess determine the price of the
12 acres. But first we have to go back and say what was owed from Global first.

Acting AD J Cruz: Yes. So, what, what we have in file or what they've submitted is two appraisal
reports. | think from a couple of years ago if not mare a little more. Like | mentioned earlier, we're
going to go back and try to compute and find any reasonable amount that it's acceptable to them
too and then moving forward discuss more with Attomey Miller on how to move forward and then
we'll present alf the, our suggestions and comments to the board and for you guys to decide.
Commission D. Herrera: So, roughly they, they've been there for 12 or do you know?

CLTC Staff G. Eay: Approximately 12.

Commission D. Herrera: And that's a 12- acre lot?

Acting AD J Cruz: Twelve to 15, something like that.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, so let's say 12, right; and the neighbor golf course is 200 acres,
and the 200 acres is, is paying about 25k.

Acting AD J Cruz: A month.

CLTC Regular Maeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 32



Commission D. Herrera: So, we divide the 25k maybe then you can get that on your 25. 200
acres divided by 25k, | mean you know it's, it's a neighboring; what's the number about for 12
acres? 200 acres divided by $25,000.00 per month.

CLTC Staff G. Eay: Well, when you use, you use for [inaudible]

Commission D. Herrera: But, just, just, we're trying to kind of get it a nutshell.

CLTC Staff G. Eay: {inaudible]

Acting AD J Cruz: It's kind of low... $25,000.00

Commission D. Herrera: | mean | know the golf course, it's a municipal so they're. ...

Acting AD J Cruz: About $1,800.00.

Commission D. Herrera: A month or an acre?

Acting AD J Cruz: An acre.

Commission D. Herrera: Correct, times 107

Acting AD J Cruz: $1,875.00 for the 15 acres, we use 15.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, and per month how much?

Acting AD J Cruz: Per month.

Commission D. Herrera: How much again?

Acting AD J Cruz: 1875.

Commission D. Herrera: 18,000.007

Acting AD J Cruz: Eighteen Hundred.

Commission D. Herrera: Eighteen Hundred times 12 years so we can credit debit the Koko
balance of 5 mil. Koko is not renting the Barrigada Heights no more, right?

Acting AD Cruz: Correct, | believe it's expired.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, so you see what I'm saying they're trying to merge and is going to
take over.

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct

Commission D. Herrera: And continue the operation and start deducting the balance of 5.8. But,
the occupancy from when Global came in to support Koko from that time on compute.

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay.

Commission D. Herrera: The clock starts there, because they were there for no at free rent, but
they were there because of Koko, right?

Acting AD J Cruz: they came in through a [inaudible] agreement with Koko.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 33



Commission D. Herrera: Right. Yeah, just in a nutshell and maybe Attomey can look at that.
Qkay, | don't know Madam Chair.

Acting AD J Cruz: We'll gather all the information; try to come up with the most.
Commission D. Herrera: Remember we discussed the statute of limitation for the 5.8 mil liability.
Acting AD J Cruz: During Attorney Gumataotao’s time.

Commission D, Herrera: Correct. Yeah, and he kind of describe or explain the difference
between a verbal and a written and | don't think we have any writien with Koko on the......

Acting AD J Cruz: Just authorization to occupy that's all.
Commission D. Herrera: And then that, that water goes down to the golf course Glenn?
Acting AD J Cruz: No that's more towards GPA site that's at the bottom,

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, so which one spills down into the golf course the, from the, where
the containers remember they were the.

CLTC Staff G. Eay: [inaudible] is the old transport station.
Commission D. Herrera: Okay, oh the EPA, where EPA now occupies.
CLTC Staff G. Eay: Exactly.

Commission D. Herrera: So, it leaks into there?

CLTC Staff G. Eay: I, it stops there with the [inaudible] you know catches the, but in case of
overflow it will traverse to the lot.

Commission D. Herrera: To the golf course.

CLTC Staff G. Eay: To the transport station.

Acting AD J Cruz: The old transport station building.

Commission D. Herrera: So, | recall that when we did the inspection with Commissioner
Commission E. Garrido we drove in to the backside where they were cutting apart the Matson
containers.

Acting AD J Cruz: So that wasn't there yet.

CLTC Staff G. Eay: We weren't able to see it because you go back.

Acting AD J Cruz: No, when we initially went to visit that [inaudible], was not there.

Commission D. Herrera: So, the neighbor golf course right, | think that's hole number 17 ar 18.
Anyway what's with the, the resolution already submitted?

Acting AD J Cruz: | believe so.

Commission D. Herrera: I'm just checking because.

CLTC Regular Mesting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 34



Acting AD J Cruz: Senator San Agustin [inaudible]

Commission D. Herrera: And then next door is their maintenance building.

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: Right. The golf courses maintenance so that spills into that?

Acting AD J Cruz: No, no. This is on the side closer to the Dededo transport station. The new
where the new EPA building is going to be built.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay. Got if; to route One.

Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission E, Garrido: Wasn't that initially part of their footprint? Koko, | mean Global?
Acting AD J Cruz: Which one?

Commission E. Garrido: Where the EPA.

Acting AD J Cruz: No, there was | think either a ¢hain link fence or a, a fence built from tires that
have been buried or compact.

Commission E. Garrido: No, but didn't, didn't Global at one point in time in the beginning occupy
that entire thing all the way out to Route 1?

Acting AD J Cruz: |don't think so.
Cross Tatk

Acting AD J Cruz: If anybody did, company did occupied part of the DPW transport station it was
Koko because they came in, in the beginning fo clean up all the waste and stuff like that.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: So, so that's the update for Global; by next meeting we should have some
numbers put together and line of attack.

Commission E. Garrido: Try and follow up though in the findings of the, of the site inspection
from EPA.

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay.

CONTINUATION BACK TO ITEM 5 - PBS Guam/KGTF-TV:

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay, Madam Chair if you can consider going back to item 5-A, | believe they
provided you with the last page of the license agreement.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Yes.

AAG Miller: So, we have, we have a motion we'll need a second and then we can vote.
Commission D. Herrera: | made a motion.

CLTC Ragular Mesting Minutes of Augusl 15, 2024
pg. 35



AAG Miller: You made the mation; we'll need a second to your motion.

Commission E. Garrido: Second motion.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: All in favor say ave.

All: Aye,

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Motion carried.

Acting AD J Cruz: Thank you.

Commission E. Garrido: That’s right we went on break.

TATA COMMUNICATIONS:

Acting AD J Cruz: So, the next item, item C is Tata Communications. Initially, the initial
submerge, present is Attorney Martinez and Mr. Benson from Tata Communications. The initial
license that was approved by the board signed by the Legal Counsel of Tata Communications
stateside was not approved by the Attorney General, so that's what forced us to have to go back
and make edits and changes to the Submerged Lands License Agreement. So, before you is the
Submerged Lands License Agreement that has been approved by our attorney, Attorney Miller; has
been reviewed by Attorney Martinez and now we just need the board'’s approval.

Commission D. Herrera: For?

Acting AD J Cruz: Their commercial submerged |lands license agreement for Hagat.

Commission E. Garrido: So, this is an open document right now,

Acting AD J Cruz: 3tili in [inaudible].

Commission E. Garrido: Changes can be made?

Acting AD J Cruz: Yes, but this document is in line with the, with Public Law 36-108.

Commission E. Garrido: Which is?

Acting AD J Cruz: The Guam Undersea Access for homes Act which is specifically for submerged
cables, submerged lands.

Commission E. Garrido: | do have a question. On five of page 15.

Attorney Martinez: | don't have the agreement in front of me but Fm assuming the questions
posed to your lawyer as posed to me.

AAG Miller: Okay, page five.

Commission E, Garrido: It says there under compensation landing fee of $100,000.00 shall be
paid within 30 days of approval. What is the definition of a landing fee or landing?

AAG Miller: Our definition is that you know the, the cable is physically present on the island.

Commission E. Garrido: Okay.

CLTC Regular Meeling Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 36



Attorney Martinez: Our definition is slightly different because the cables can be landed and not
functioning at all and it takes about a year and a half for the cables to be tested across the world so
our definition has been that's it's landed and active. So, we have two active landed cables at, at the
Hagat facility and we've got two landed that are going through that year and half process of testing.
So, the so the client the owner of the cables hasn't started paying anyone anything because it
hasn't been vetted and approved yet, and if it doesn’t work, they'll yank the cable and then we are
where we are,

Commission E. Garrido: But, during that process do you have control over the praperty? Correct?

Attorney Martinez: So, | think the misconception here is how this works. Tata owns a landing
facility that they built in 2001, it was process with the budget. That landing facility has certain
raceways that people can fand cables to these are by and large other people’s cables. Those
cables get landed and it takes about a year and a half to make sure that they work.

Commission E. Garrido: So, in other words the cable will come in and before you pay a dime it'll
be a year and a half later,

Attorney Martinez: Before we get paid a dime it's a year and a half.

Commission E. Garrido: No, but before you get paid a dime but I'm talking about CLTC because
that's CLTC property that you're the, the under [inaudible]

Attorney Martinez: So, this is |, | believe that, that it's understand.

Commission E. Garrido: It's like if | lease you my house and | have a missing door knob and it
takes me a year and a half or takes me a year and a half you're not going to pay rent even though
you're occupying the property.

Attorney Martinez: Waell, slightly different than that but | understand exactly what you're saying sir.
I understand. So, this is, this is just you know where we are. This is based on where ever the law
is. | guess we have to have that conversation with the legislation.

Acting AD J Cruz: In the law it required that the $100,000.00 be paid within 30 days of the
approval of the Bureau of Statistics and Guam Coast, Guam Coastal Management Program when
the construction installation or repair upgrade of the conduit infrastructure or cables is required. So,
like for Tata Communication for example now if they had landed a cable and it required a bsp
permit? Or approval then they would pay $100,000.00 landing fee, but since they have existing also
have existing cables, that fee doesn't apply to the existing. There’s a $100,000.00 annual fee for
the existing. So, the existing doesn't require construction which is all which also covers landing.

Commission E. Garrido: I'm just, I'm just bringing attention to this because to me in my opinion
it's slide and it's slide towards you guys. But, yet you're, you're in control of the property.

Attorney Martinez: We understand your concern sir. |, the legislature we, you know this process
was vetted [inaudible] in the legislature and this all took the, the bill that was ultimately passed
was different than what we all testified to but it is all that we have.

Acting AD J Cruz: So, I'm assuming once that cable runs through the conduit that's already it
considered installation so that a fee will be accessed for that.

Attorney Martinez: | mean if we receive an invoice then we'll have a conversation if there's a, if
there's a contest to the invoice and the timing of it, of course we haven't crossed that bridge yet, but
s0 this is where the legislature sort was going in a direction but they didn't sort of tie it, tie up the
loose end. We can have that conversation. Tata, that those lines are important to the, to the

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pa. 37



military and to the island it brings man wood to the island. Nobody wants this to not work and so
we're willing to have whatever conversation the law requires.

AAG Miller: |, | mean the, the dilemma here and, and the dilemma for both of us is frankly this
lease is almost word for word cut and paste from the statute and so we, there, that we haven't had
an opportunity on either side to try and change any of the words because we're all just taking the
words that the legislature gave us and saying okay, we'll, we’'ll write, we will write the lease that,
that the legislature directed us to write and now we'll start interpreting it.

Commission E. Garrido: So, what that's, what we're doing now, we're trying interpret it right?
AAG Miller: Yes.

Commission E. Garrido: But my position is still out there.

AAG Miller: Yeah. we, we as, as has been suggested.

Commission E. Garrido: That's what we're here for right? This just try and come into a mutual
agreement, correct.

Attorney Martinez: Well, with all, so there’s no confusion | have no authority to say to, to negotiate
anything with the commission. I'm here to answer questions however, yeah, and so when we are
issued when Tata has issued an invoice right, when that happens when this is approved
presumably invoices will come for different purposes, then we have an internal conversation and
that will go wherever it goes.

Commission E. Garrido: Isn't that sort of fike putting the wagon in front of the donkey?

Attorney Martinez: Well, so this facility was built in 2001; | think the wagon is in front of the
donkey.

Commission E. Garrido: Well, doesn't mean we have to maintain it then.
Cross talk

Commission E. Garrido: |, | know the importance of the communication cables coming, but also,
I'm seeing a defect and the way this is stated it's, it's a little bit skewed towards your advantage.

Attorney Martinez: So, |, | personally don't believe that's true but we did track what the law says
nearly verbatim. | mean we use exact words from the statute and so that interpretation either
happens internally when the, when the time is right or happens in a court which we really hope will
never happen. Regrettably well not regrettably; the system is set up so that the policy makers
make the decision and they have. This is what we've got. Yes sir.

Commission E, Garrido: Do we have the cover from the legislature on this?

Acting AD Acting AD J Cruz: Which one?

Commission E. Garrido: Like the Bill?

Acting AD J Cruz: The law, we can provide a copy.

Attorney Martinez: Yes sir.

Commission D. Herrera: To me? Okay, good afternoon. So, the facility was built in 20017

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 38



Attorney Martinez: It was built in 2001,

Commission D. Herrera: And then, the cable came in the in 2001 also?

Attorney Martinez: No.

Commission D. Herrera: 20207

Attorney Martinez: The cable, the, the cable facilities were built in 2001.

Commission D, Herrera: QOkay.

Attorney Martinez: But it was abandoned by the previous awner.

Commission D. Herrera: Did you stop that?

Attorney Martinez: No, the previous owner was Taiko

Commission D, Herrera: Okay

Attorney Martinez: Which was owned by Taicom Networks

Attorney Martinez: Okay.

Attorney Martinez: And in 2007, | believe it was; Taicom systems, the network which included
Guam was acquired by VENL America. VSNL America ultimately became Tata Communications
and how we came to own the asset. When | say we, and it's not me and my law office obviously. |
wish. It's Tata Communication.

Commission D. Herrera: So, your part of the ......

Attorney Martinez: No, I'm not. I'm a lawyer, I'm a, I'm a Lawyer; Blair Martinez.

Commission D. Herrera: Oh, okay. So, so can, can, what is the acronym for T?

Attorney Blas: Tata? It's a family name; it's an Indian company and it's actually the family name.
Commission D. Herrera: Okay, so that's the family name from India.

Attorney Blas: Yes.

Commission D, Herrera: Okay.

Attorney Martinez: So, it wasn’t until 2007 that the acquiring Tata decided well, we have the
facility; why aren’t we landing? So, it was in 2007 and 2008; 2007- 20087

Attorney Blas: From VSNL to Tata?

Attorney Martinez: No, the, the two landing.

Attorney Blas: Oh yeah, 2007-2008.

Attorney Martinez: 2007-2008, that was all the permitting for the landing.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pyg. 39



Commission D. Herrera: | see.

Attorney Martinez: So, there was a, a long duration of non-use and at that time the Attorney
Generals and the Department of Land Management were amongst the various people that were
involved in the conversation said you must go talk to CLTC. So, Tata entered into a 21-year
license.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Attorney Martinez: And they did it retroactively to the date the facility was built.

Commission D. Herrera: 2001.

Attorney Martinez: to 2001.

Commission D. Herrera: Who gives the permit? Army Corps?

Attorney Martinez: It's all; there are many, many permits involved so if |.

Commission D, Herrera: | mean you know to pass through the submerge land.

Attorney Martinez: Well, so | don't, we don’t do the permitting for that. The owners of the cables
actually hire a company and they do all the permitting with the GovGuam Agencies.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Attorney Martinez: But, to build the system it was GEPA, Guam Coastal Management, U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers, Guam Seashore Protection Commission, Well, there were [inaudible] and
there were public hearings.

Commission D, Herrera: Alright, | was listening to the hearing when you guys, what | kind of
understood about it is was the Army Corp that has the ultimate to provide the green light to pass
through the submerged land.

Attorney Martinez: So, they're one of the big ones. They're not the only one but they're one of the
big ones. Certainly, | would not discount the fact that GovGuam is involved every step of the way
because they really are important to the process.

Commission D. Herrera: Alright, thank you. So, then.

Commission E, Garrido: No, but Army Corp supersedes GovGuam.

Attorney Martinez: But we do all right, so these licenses if you see the list of licenses that we have
to go through and the public hearings are almost all GovGuam on public hearings.

Commission D. Herrera: Understand. Se, there’s one cable now that came to the {inaudible]

Attorney Martinez: There are two that are, that are operational and there are two that are not yet
operational.

Commission D. Herrera: And each cable has how many sub cables inside?
Mr. Benson: Just one cable.

Commission D. Herrera: Just one cable, no other multiple cables?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 40



Mr. Benson: It's not like terrestrial fibers; there's | think there's you know a number of fiber pairs,
but undersea cables are different than terrestrial fiber optic.

Commission D. Herrera: So, it's not a terrestrial fiber optic?

Mr. Benson: No, it's...

Commission D. Herrera: It's not paired out?

Mr. Benson: Well, they are paired but it's usually typically much fewer pairs.

Commission D. Herrera: So, each pair is paid by, you guys are paying Land Trust for one pair or
one cable?

Mr. Benson: Woell, it's single cable which includes the multiple pairs.
Commission D. Herrera: And how many multiple pairs are in the cable?
Mr. Benson: | don’t remember off hand; it varies per system.
Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Mr. Benson: Some are like eight pairs; some are four pairs,

Commission D. Herrera: So, can Google piggyback on that cable and can the other companies
from China piggyback on that cable or Department of Defense piggyback in that one cable?

Mr. Benson: They, they use the, the data capacity that the cable provides.

Commission D. Herrera: And, and when they use the data capacity do, they just pair, | mean do
they pay for that data capacity or do they piggyback on that one cable?

Mr. Benson: It's all the one cable.

Attorney Martinez: Yeah, still one cable, so even if they're pairings there not going on one cable.
Commission D. Herrera: Understand.

Attorney Martinez: It's the whole system because the way it breaks up the data and moves it.

Commission D, Herrera: Yes, yes. So, there's more than one rider in that one cable? Could you
say it's multiple pairs?

Mr. Benson: Yes.
Commission D. Herrera: So, each pair could be, again we say could be Google could be...

Mr. Benson: Well, that may may determine the owners but that wouldn't determine who what
capacity is on.

Commission D. Herrera: So, last several months | saw the cable layer outside of the light. But,
yeah so was that to lay a cable in or lay a cable out and interconnect it to Piti? Is that a new one?

Mr. Benson: That, yes, that's apricot.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 41



Commission D. Herrera: Apricot.
Mr. Benson: Yeah.

Commission D. Herrera: So, when apricot came in and out of the submerged land that's apricot
or the CHamoru Land Trust land fee for one hour in or are we being taken for another ride?

Attorney Martinez: Yeah, no, so when that becomes our position, this was this comes back to
Commissioner Commission E. Garrido’s point. Qur position is that when so that's gets connected:;
is that one connected yet?

Mr. Benson: No.

Attorney Martinez: So that was not yet or tested.

Cross Talk

Commission D. Herrera: No, no data coming through.

Attorney Martinez: That's right, so it’s not functioning yet. They just sort of laid the [inaudible]
Cross Talk

Mr. Benson: I'm not sure exactly. Yeah, we yeah, know it's amazing it really a huge capacity now.
Commission E. Garrido: What's the relationship the T1 and your cables?

Mr. Benson: Oh, it's, | couldn’t even, it's like T1 is like an ancient history or something.

Commission E. Garrido: Yeah, but | mean the capacity of the T1 compared to the capacity of
your new cables.

Mr. Benson: |, [ can’t do that math in my head, but | can answer that at a later time.
Commission E. Garrido: Fairly, fairly large correct.

Attorney Martinez: Yes, yeah and | think you're comparing sort of the freeway versus the fast car
s0 there......

Commission E. Garrido: I'm comparing a freeway with a super-duper freeway because cable
technology has only gone this way since its inception. So, you know going to what he's say, he's
trying to equate and redefine cable so if you, if you subdivide a portion of your main cable cause
you say,; they're, they come in pairs right, they're pairs?

Attorney Martinez: Yeah, so | think there’s, 1 think | see where the conversation is going. When
the cable comes it's bound; it's already bound. It, they lay; that owner owns that whoever he sells
capacity to is whoever he sells capacity to. But that label is it's not like another one gets snuck in
there. Landing is whatever land there.

Commission E. Garrido: I'm just saying, what are the total number of pairs for per what per
assembly?

Attorney Martinez: Yeah, so as Mr. Benson has that, that varies depending on the cable. But the
law doesn’t care about that, it says “a landing” and, and so it's not like a new cable is being added

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 42



into the existing cable so they're tricking the system. There’s a landing that ship isn't coming back
to add an extra cable. There’s one cable coming through with however many pairs that there are.

Commission D. Herrera: So, that ship that was there last couple of months you said it was laying
in or laying out?

Mr. Benson: It was land, well basically what it is, is it, it landed on Guam., Guam was the original
landing point and then it’s, it's laying the cable to the Philippines. That's the first segment and then
it goes later it'll connect into Asia.

Commission D. Herrera: So, that cable didn’t go into the Piti station?

Mr. Benson: No, there's just a single landing for the system.

Commission D. Herrera: So, when it landed in the [inaudible], so that cable goes underground
through the rights of way over to Cour or to the Exchange?

Cross Talk

Attorney Martinez: [t's that infrastructure.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, over to the rights of way into the you know what the public.
Attorney Martinez: Public easement.

Commission D. Herrera: Right, right all the way and it ends off in the that Exchange.

Mr. Benson: The Tata facility cable landing station.

Commission D, Herrera: Next to the power plant that's.

Mr. Benson: Yeah, it's in the Goro area.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, that's why we needed the map in that area. So, what's the power
bill in that facility.

Mr, Benson: I'm glad | don’t have to pay it, but it's a it's a good thing.

Commission D. Herrera: Good yeah, because we know that it's a, it's a highly consumable in
power to run the terabytes, right. So, yeah.

Mr. Benson: Well, it's very surprising; the technology has changed so much so dramatically.
Commission D. Herrera: Okay. Yeah, alright. Okay attorney.

AAG Miller: Again, Madam Chairman, members this lease is a cut and paste from the statute.
You know what, how we view when the landing fee is due you know how Tata views when the
landing is due, the, the what staff is looking for, what Tata is looking for is for the commission fo
decide that these words on paper are the words on paper that you all will agree to if, if we have a
positive vote today. Tata will go about the business of collecting the appropriate signatures from
their side on the lease and then we'll bring it back here for signatures on our side of the table and in
the meantime, we'll see how quickly they can make their table hot and maybe we won't have to
have any conversations about dates for when landing fees are due.

CLTC Regular Meeling Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 43



Commission E. Garrido: I'm just also questioning on 4 of 15 item G. FPm still kind of like stuck into
why does CLTC have to wait your cable is fully functional before we get any payment.

AAG Miller: Because these are the words of the legislature told us to use.

Commission E. Garrido: Well, we cannot, we cannot question it? Because we'’re supposed to
approve it before this goes any further, right. So, this is our, this is our time to be heard.

Attorney Martinez: Just as a, a taxpayer, a person who lives here; the legislature the laws sort of
trump everything that we do, so the license cannot violate what the law....

Commission E, Garrido: Is, is this already a law?
Attorney Martinez: The law already exists.
Commission E. Garrido: So, this is already a law,
Attorney Martinez: The agreement mirrors the law,

Acting AD J Cruz: The authority that gave CLTC that was given to [inaudible}. Dexter provided
you with a copy.

Commission E, Garrido: So, if this is already a law...
Attorney Martinez: No, no. No, this is a license.
Commission D. Herrera: Yeah.

Attorney Martinez: It cannot violate the law. It can't, you can't be more or less than the, it's got to
be the, unfortunate, | understand the predicament because you're having to follow the legislature’s
rules instead of creating them yourself, but that's what the policy makers did and what the governor
approved; and sort of the paradigm that we’re working with them.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, it's license and Attorney Miller | think they were explaining to us if
there was any violation or non-compliance with the license, Have you reviewed that?

AAG Miller: Yes, | mean we would write them a letter and tell them we think they're in non-
compliance and they wouid have us. They would write us back and tell us whether they agree or
disagree and what we're going tc do about it.

Commission D, Herrera: And in the meantime, the terabytes are going in flowing in.
AAG Miller: Absolutely, yup.

Commission D. Herrera: | hope it's not another Raceway. No, no seriously because you know
I'm learning about all these multiple approaches and muitiple integrated kind of configuration that
sometimes were stuck in the law while in the meantime we're losing cash flow and the commercial
is moving forward like example which mention one company that's been there for a decade and it
was zero rent because of some legal jargon on the language.

Attorney Martinez: So, well if | can, if | can answer to that, we, CLTC was getting paid a license
fee until the license expired in 2022, and this becomes effective October 2022, so we'll get an
invoice for the period of time that we haven't been able to pay because the license wasn’t executed,;
wasn't approved by the Attomey General's Office. Now, we'll get an invoice and you all will get that
money. It's, it's not in the wind, so we'll get an invoice for the, the active certainly you'll get, you're

CLTC Regular Meeling Minutes of August 15, 2024
rg. 44



going to get a, a payment and that's $100,000.00 a year for [inaudible] We, we have two active
cables.

Commission D. Herrera: I'm still trying to redefine the sub [inaudible] We will discuss that.
Attorney Martinez: Okay,

Commission E. Garrido: When cable is decommissioned, when you guys decommission a cable
does that mean that you're going o remove the cable also or you just going to abandon the cable?

Mr. Benscn: So, yeah, we haven't had any and | believe the law is written such that if the
removing the cable causes more disturbance than leaving it in place that it's okay. There’s | think it
was optional in the law. It's about, it's like a garden hose.

Commission E. Garrido: But, still if it's the commission that [inaudible], is not in use anymore
because it's defective.

Mr. Benson: No, typically it's very rare that a cable system is decommissioned. Typically, what
happens is the technology is advanced so much that it's just not really commercially viable.

Commission E. Garrido: You, you using that, using that logic, since it's already an antiquated
because newer systems come up and when you guys replace it with a new one....

Attorney Martinez: You get a new landing fee, license fee and then you get the new annual fees.
So, that's the law content.

Commission E. Garrido: And, and if you close shop who's going 1o be responsible for removing
the....

Commission D. Herrera: No, it's only like a garden hose, right. | mean.

Mr. Benson: Yeah. Its, it's the same is what's in the law; the Guahan law. It, it stipulates my
recollection is that if it causes more disturbance to remove it, it's optional to enforce us to remove it
or not,

Commission D. Herrera: Under the water?

Mr. Benson: Yes, yeah. | don't foresee that happening for a very long time.

AAG Miller: And there are, there’s Federal Regulation, federal law that covers this whole topic as
well.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Well, well | have to say | own property right next to [inaudible]
Commission D. Herrera: Oh, yeah. Right where the Spanish Bridge is.

Cross talk

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: So, when you guys land or whoever landed the cables it disturbed the
area when, when the waves come in it goes a different direction and it comes to my land and it
takes land out.

Mr. Benson: Oh no, ch no. We'll never getting a lease now.

Commission D. Herrera: So, you guys are attomeys?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 45



Attorney Martinez: Sorry, Mr. Benson works for Tata.
Mr. Benson: I'm the local manager for Tata. I'm a Tata employee.

Commission D. Herrera: | see, yeah. The reason why we're talking about that cable or was that
the water...

Madam Chair A. Bordalilo: He's from Hagat.

Commission D. Herrera: [inaudible]

Commission D. Herrera: But, anyway on the environmental to, with the hoses right because way
back when we were working with Asbestos, soling, lead paint, the government was saying it's okay,
it's safe.

Mr. Benson: No, | understand your concemns.

Commission D. Herrera: The water holes that you're talking about there may be swallowed by
some of the fish that we catch. So, | mean you know, | don't know.

Mr. Benson: No, it's not, it doesn't dissolve its very robust. It's designed to you know the, the
systems are warranted by the supplier for 25 years. They guarantee that itll maintain the system
performance for 25 years.

Commission D. Herrera: And, and then you know the current that goes there you know the
electric currents you know that bounces to do the fiber optic reaction.

Mr. Benson: Well, that's, that's mostly optical, but there is electrical current to feed the undersea
amplifiers.

Commission D. Herrera: So, the electromagnetic in that cable as it runs and then our fish goes
through it.

Mr. Benson: Yeah.
Commission D. Herrera: The seaweed that we eat and you know what | mean, then.

Mr. Benson: Well, |, yes, it's, it's shielded. It has shield. This is a fairly old technology by now so
they have a lot of knowledge of the environmental impact and it's really minimal.

Commission D, Herrera: That's what they told us when they ran the pipeline from the port up to
Anderson. [t was safe and then it was leaking on the ground. | mean, this is true.

Mr. Benson: | understand your concern, | do.

Commission E. Garrido: Also, one of my concerns on page 8 of 15; the first paragraph, it says
that you can consent to lease transfer and stuff like that without our approval. The very top. It says
licensee may without licensers consent lease or transfer and a lot of good stuff like that.

Attorney Martinez: We take the words the, the conduit and the duct space to third parties.

AAG Miller: We take the words the legislature [inaudible]

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 46



Attorney Martinez: Yeah, and that's, that raceway that comes in, we don't, we don't have
conversations with getting permission for the, for the attachment of the new cable. That's
specifically the transfer of conduit and duct space. So, when Google says we need to find a landing
facility and they talk to us and GTA and other people you're not involved in those conversations.
They find a place that they are comfortable; they, they land it and then that process in without the
CLTC approval. That's, this is this comes from the [inaudible]. That's not to say that's not saying
that the license itself is assignable. That's saying that the conduit that, that pull in these lines are
not part of the conversation.

Commiission E. Garrido: Okay. How many landing pipes are in use right now?

Attorney Martinez: Two are landed and functioning; two are landed one is not connected one is
being tested.

Commission E. Garrido: Repeat that please.

Attorney Martinez: Two, two are landed in functions; they work the data is coming through going
to the Army. Two of them, one is landed and being tested; it's in that testing process.

Commission E, Garrido: So, you, you have three?

Attorney Martinez: Yes. Two got active and one landed not active and a fourth one that’s landed
not connected to us yet. That's going to be connected and then it'll go through.

Commission E. Garrido: The four others?

Attorney Martinez: That's right.

Commission E. Garrido: Commissioner Commission D. Herrera do you have anything to say?
Commission D, Herrera: No, this is a legislative language; it's ....

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: What can we do.

Commission D. Herrera: Delete or and | guess the approval here is just for us to provide an
approval for the license, not lease. It's a license.

Attorney Martinez: It's a licensing.

Commission D. Herrera: Sir, right. It's a license,

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: GTA has the same thing, right?

Acting AD J Cruz: Yeah, but any, any submerged license since the [inaudible} of Guam will be
the same, this will be the template. Just know that when, if you guys do decide to approve this in its
form and all the signatures are done and we get back a signed copy, definitely I'm going to send
two invoices for the landed cables that had to be installed into the conduit and the two invoices for
the existing cable so that's $400,000.00.

Mr. Benson: Retroactive also.

Acting AD J Cruz: Or, or more because two years,

Commission E. Garrido: They won't pay, they waon't pay until the other cables are operation able.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 47



Acting AD J Cruz: That’s an operational fee. That's a different $100,000.00. So, the landing fee is
$100,000.00; through my understanding and Attorney Miller will have to discuss that with Attorney
Martinez is that when it says here "when the construction installation or repair upgrade of the
conduit infrastructure or cables is required”. So, since they bhad to put the cable through the
conduit.

Commission E, Garrido: They don’t, they won't start paying into its operational.
Acting AD J Cruz: That's a different thing.

Attorney Martinez: Commissioner if |, if | can, so, I'm not the guy who writes the checks; I'm just
the lawyer. | may they may tell me that I'm fired after this conversation. As soon as we get the
invoice, that will be sent to Tata in Virginia and they'll deal the payment, and so if we get a push
back then the conversation will be had through the CLTC'’s Director and, and Mr. Miller. These are
people who do business in every jurisdiction across Asia and...

Mr. Benson: But, this pretty straight forward.
Commission E. Garrido: Can | talk to the fawyer for a minute?
Attorney Martinez: You can talk to the lawyer sir.

Commission E. Garrido: You have two cables already that are operational and two that are not
operational, they bill you for the 4 cables, okay.

Attorney Martinez: Can, can you bill me for the 4 cables? 1, | honestly that's not part of my job so
| couldn't tell you the answer.

Commission E. Garrido: Bill, bill the under the cable company for the for....

Attorney Martinez: So, but you're asking me can you do that; | mean I'm assuming we're going to
get the invoices that and by we, that's not me that's Tata Communications

Commission E, Garrido: and that's why | said can you, that's why | was referring to I'm not saying
that you are Tata, I'm just saying that I'm, I'm trying to get a perspective from your side.

Attorney Martinez: | honestly don't know internally how they deal with the payment of anything.

Commission E. Garrido: Let me finish; | sign this, everybody here signs it alright, we send you
the first billing and you, you deny half of it because the two are not operational. What recourse
would we have at that point? Like | said, | want to talk to the lawyer.

Attorney Martinez: The law, the law actually provides for that, the iaw provides for, for the
remedies what when there's non-payment what happens when there’s, well no so, well that could
be it, but the law provides for it and it's built into this as well. So, if there's a, a defect of any kind
whether it's a covenant that's been breached or money hasn’t been paid then there's a process of
notice and then dealing with cure and, and then we’ll go through that, but it's, it's, we this a slight
variation over what you previously approved to tweak very specific language. But, it tracks the law
as, as the 2022 one did; this it just does it in a slightly different way, but it's exactly. | mean it's
verbatim if you went through the law and you took this section it would be exactly the same word in
the law. And, it does create because you're the landlord in this case it's or you're the, the licenser
so it does create a remedy for you if you know the, the licensee doesn’t do anything it's supposed
to do.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of Augusl 15, 2024

pg. 48



Commission E. Garrido: | don't, | don’t know just at this point in time | don't feel signing off on this.
| think | need to more time to think about it, digest it because we just got this now.

Attorney Martinez: Yeah, I'm just here to pitch it so whatever internally you all feel comfortable
with.

Commission E. Garrido: I'm just speaking for myself but | can't speak for the other twa.
Commission Mr. Commission D, Herrera?

Commission D. Herrera: I'm not a lawyer so but you know just listening to the public hearing about
the players that were there and then Mr. Cruz here kind of went through. He just did preliminary
research on some of the cables that were there. |think you found another stan hole, manhole or ...
Acting AD J Cruz: That's in Piti.

Commission D. Herrera: In Piti, but that's not involving Tata?

Acting AD J Cruz: We haven't finalized our data yet.

Commission D. Herrera: Honestly, | want to read through this but no, is time factor here? We
dont......

Mr. Benson: Waell to sign it to get the money.

Attorney Martinez: Your folks intermally can't invoice us for money until we have the license so
that's really, there's otherwise it's not there; no time issue it's just that we don't have a license,
We're, we're essentially on a holdover agreement that was provided to Tata in 2022.

Commission D. Herrera: License for the, for that's already operating.

Attorney Martinez: This is for the facility, this is for the facility so, 4 or 6 or 2 or whatever the
number is, it's for the facility in, I'm sorry in Hagat.

Commission D. Herrera: I'd like to refer to our attorney.

AAG Miller: Again, the words of this lease are the, are in the license are the, are the words of the
statute but nonetheless it, # you know, it is the commission’s responsibility to approve all the
agreements that, that get entered into it. Today, you can move to approve, you can move to table
for further consideration the next meeting. Entirely up to you all.

Commission D. Herrera: And it's according to the statute as written here by and these are the 6
legislates that, that introduced the bill and then | guess [inaudible]

Acting AD J Cruz: It's in accordance to Law 36-108.

AAG Miller: | mean if the Commissioner Commission E. Garrido wants to move to table for till the
next meeting.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Then we don't have all ...... [inaudible]
AAG Miller: So, you, you can study the statutes further.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, well fooking at the you know the authors of the bill do | have
confidence their caliber in in assessing or analyzing of the requirements. The ones | see here, |

CLTC Regular Meeling Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 49



kind of you know there's 15 of them so the authors | kind of have some confidence in their reliability
and trustworthy. Now, with, with the technical expertise maybe none of them are technicians or like
that but | will move to make a motion to approve the license but that's just me; it's only one and one
that's not in approval, so, | make a motion to approve the license based on the language that's
coming from the legislature, and the, because of the authors that I've seen here. So, that's my
motion one to approve the license.

AAG Miller: Madam chair we need a second, if we don't have a second perhaps there'll be a
substitute motion to the table.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: There’s no second?
Commission E. Garrido: No second.

Commission D. Herrera: She can vote?
AAG Miller: If she wants to second.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: We'll table it to the next week.

AAG Miller: Then we, we'll need a motion to table.

Commission E. Garrido: | move that we, we table this license until our next board meeting so that
we can have more time to, to look at it and try and adjust it more. This is not a yes or no, | just want
to scan through it more carefully and next time | can have better questions for you.

Attorney Martinez: Fll try to have better answers.

Commission E. Garrido: So, right now personally | do not feel comfortable signing off on this
even though the legislature already approved it. The legislature has been known to have defective
bills at times and defects in the laws so.

AAG Miller: Madam chair we'll need a vote on a motion to table.

Madam Chair A, Bordallo: Motion to tabie. We need to put it....

Commission E. Garrido: | motioned to table.

AAG Miller: So, we need a vote,

Commission E. Garrido: Did you second the motion?

Commission D. Herrera: No, no. That's one vote. |, | mean you know it's, it's a license. | mean
it's not a contract; | mean it's, a, it's a license. If you violate the license then we get the license back
tomorrow.

Commission E. Garrido: It's not that easy.

Commission D. Herrera: | mean [ understand.,

Attorney Martinez: But the law provides a, a little bit of buffer in there but yes.

Cross talk

Mr. Benson: The funds you'll be receiving are substantial and they will continue.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 50



Commission D. Herrera: What was that, what was that?

Mr. Bensen: The funds you'll be receiving will be substantial.
Commission D. Herrera: What is the fund? How much?
Attorney Martinez: It's a, each land is $100,000.00 each.
Commission D. Herrera: How much funds do Tata generate?
Attorney Martinez: That's not what the law asks for.

Commission D. Herrera: Understand, yeah, so, so giving me the $100,000.00 and you know what
Imean;itsa....

Mr. Benson: It's our, it's our customer owns it.

Commission D. Herrera: Understand.

AAG Miller: Madam chair we can vote on that motion to table.
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: | second.

Commission D, Herrera: Okay, so that, that approves that so, we'll see you guys’ next month.
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: make a vote.

Commission D, Herrera: I'm stili voting no.

AAG Miller: Motion to table approved two to one.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, two to one so that means its......
Cross talk

Madam Chair A, Bordallo: This is the first time we're not ...
AAG Miller: No, |, they said till next meeting.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Yeah, next meeting but just for clarity.
Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Madam Chair A, Bordallo: Yeah.

Acting AD J Cruz: But she didn't do like a roll call.

AAG Miller: That's okay.

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay.

Commission E. Garrido: Well, basically it was a tie because | made the motion, he didn't, she
seconded it, so she’s breaking it.

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay. So, we'll reach out to you.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
rg. 51



Attorney Martinez: Thank you.

Cross talk

Commission E. Garrido: This is, this is big. |, ldon’t wantto....

Attorney Martinez: Yes sir, we understand.

Commission E. Garrido: |, | don't want to feel like I'm betraying my island by selling out too cheap
or you know’ I'm not saying that your price is cheap, it's a good price. | just, | just want to make
sure we do have flexibility in case something goes astray.

Attorney Martinez: Yes, | understand.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: The cables are there already so soon.

Commission E. Garrido: That's why they're not to go away.

Attorney Martinez: Thank you.

Acting AD J Cruz: I'm going to hit enter and all the invoices are going to come out.

AAG Miller: We're on to new business now,

New Business:

DESIGNATION OF MR. JOSEPH B. CRUZ AS ACTING ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR.,
Commission E. Garrido: Joseph B, Cruz, who is that?

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Who is Joseph B. Cruz? Designation of Mr. Joseph B. Cruz as Acting
Administrative Director. Mr. Cruz do you have something to say?

Acting AD J Cruz: My acting is just in the absence of Acting director John Burch,
Commission D. Herrera: That's on the back page the one dated April 4th?

Acting AD J Cruz: May 13th. Because there was ... we provided in the packet; Miss Luces just
prepared it the salary of the last director that was board approved and then the last director that
was actually paid from CLTC, Because I've been holding this position for over 30 days, I'm entitled
to detail pay. There's a .... the Competitive Wage Act of 2024, the executive pay plan. It's provided
to you and it was prepared by Ms Luces. But in order o process any type of GG1 and to make
sure that it's legal we need the board to decide what would the salary be. So, Miss Luces provided
you with the executive pay plan like | mentioned and the information from the last salary annual
salary that was approved by the board and the last annual salary of the last Administrative Director.
Sounds weird but...

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Which step are you in right now?

Acting AD J Cruz: Currently I'm a classified empioyee, 'm a O7 | think. My step is O7, my annual
salary is a little over $76,000.00.

Commission D. Herrera: Is there a physician description on this one just to add it?

Acting AD J Cruz: tothe...

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 52



Commission D. Herrera: | mean you know but for both... for the executive.
Acting AD J Cruz: No, we don't have one in file

Commission D, Herrera: And the | guess the other question is that... there was a question about
the board having a delegation of authority right over activities that you know are operating in the
trust and | guess |, | send you that [inaudible]... I'm just frying to see the description what because
| understand the board... [inaudible]

Commiission E. Garrido: Mr. Cruz based on the.... this breakdown you gave us, you said your
currently making more than 767

Acting AD J Cruz: Alittle over 76, but that's through the general pay plan scale, the executive pay
plan scale is different from the general.

Commission E. Garrido: Yeah, because you're classified this is not.
Acting AD J Cruz: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: So even we made a decision here right even as a classified, that still
applies that's....

Acting AD J Cruz: I've been detailed to the ......
Commission D. Herrera: After 90 days, right?
Acting AD J Cruz: 30

Commission D, Herrera: After 30 days. So, my question here | was asking the attorney right the
... the difference between governing and policy just so cause I'm going to make a motion for this
one. But if our attorney can explain the difference between a policy board a policy commission and
a goveming board.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: We're the policy makers.

AAG Miller: | guess the | guess the best example |I; | could give you to illustrate what a
policymaking board is and because we've all spent... we, | spent a good chunk of last week talking
about what the Guam Board of Education was doing and what they weren’t doing and what they
were supposed to do and when they were supposed to do it. The Guam Board of education is a
policymaking board. They have no legal authority to do anything other than hire a Superintendent
and direct that Superintendent to implement the, the policies that they choose to make they can't,
they can't hire a teacher, they can’t hire a janitor; they can’t decide what the, what the, when the
school day starts or when the, the school day ends. That, they can make policies but the people
who actually make those policies to go work for the Superintendent and if the Board of Education
doesn't like how any particular school is being run or how a particular subject is being taught; all
they can do is tell the Superintendent to, to fix it. They can't tell the teacher what to do, they can',
they can't decide that history is being taught the right way or the wrong way. You all are in, you all
are in a very different position as an example of, of the last agenda item. You know, you, you run a
business, you're a landlord, you, you have business transactions that you do all the time. Some of
those transactions the Executive Director is authorized by the commission to make decisions on
and, and move transactions forward other transactions. We have to bring to you all, but, that lease
for example you we can tell you this is exactly what the, the words on that paper are exactly what
the legislature says the lease is supposed to be, but that doesn’t mean that you know that Mr. Cruz
can sign it and that doesn’t mean that Tata is going to get a lease without your consent. So that,
what that's, what makes you a governing Board.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 53



Commission D. Herrera: Governing Board. QOkay, understand now. Okay so, can | make a
motion now?

AAG Miller: You can always make a motion.

Commission D. Herrera: Alright so, | make a motion the executive pay for the Acting Director or
Acting Administrator.

Acting AD J Cruz: Sir, if you don’t mind, sorry for interrupting, we just received a letter the Acting
Administrative Director Mr. Burch. If we can just hand it out,

Commission D. Herrera: Want to read it out? Go ahead read it out. Just now? You want to read
it now? Can somebody read it out.

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay, | read it. Yeah, it's a memorandum addressed to Chairperson Bordallo,
Commissioner Herrera, Cammissioner Garrido from the Acting Administrative Director Mr. John
Burch. “Hafa Adai Commissioners, | hope this message finds you well. I'm writing to formerly
request the Board's approval for compensating Mr. Joseph Cruz for the additional responsibilities
he has undertaken during my extended period as the Acting Administrative Director. It has been
over three months since | have on sick leave and during this time, Mr. Cruz has diligently and
effectively managed the responsibilities of my role. His dedication and commitment to ensuring the
smooth operation of the CLTC has been exemplary. Given the significant efforts Mr. Cruz has put
forth, which have extended beyond his classified duties, | believe it is only fair and just to
compensate him for the extra workload shouldered during this period, in accordance with the
provisions of the law. | kindly ask the Board to consider and approve this request for Mr. Cruz's
compensation, acknowledging his exceptional contribution to maintaining the continuity of our
operations in my absence. Thank you for your attention to this matter. Si Yu'os Ma'ase John T.
Burch.”

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, question, so when we make a motion here right, for this
compensation when you return back in your normal duties, does the compensation follow you or
doesit......

Commission E. Garrido: [t reveris back.
Acting AD J Cruz: ['ll return back to my original classified salary.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, so, so again | make a motion Madam chair for the fair
compensation for Mr. Cruz reference to Executive Pay Plan step 22.

Commission E. Garrido: | second.
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Any discussion?
Acting AD J Cruz: | only need a note take.

Commission D, Herrera: The discussion is that we're a governing board so we're intertwined with
the Executive Administrative Director so ....

Commission E. Garrido: You've done an outstanding job so far and Mr. Herrera has been very
generous and I'll side with him there, so | did say, 1 did second.

Cross Talk

Acting AD J Cruz: Thank you. | just to make it know that my achievements here are, is team
effort, so | can’t take credit for everything. We have a staff who works hard too and they contribute
just as much as | contribute. It's my job to put everything together and make sense and to make

CLTC Reguiar Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 54



things flow properly. One thing | can say for sure today is that our FY2022 audit will be completed
or published today. So, I'm proud to say that CLTC has received | believe 11 consecutive years of
clean audit reports. So, but, but thank you and you know credit is also due to the employee.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Allin favour say aye.

All: Aye.

Madam Chair A, Bordallo: Motion carried.

Cross Talk

GUAM MOTORSPORTS ASSOCIATION:

Acting AD J Cruz: The next item 6-B Guam Motorsports Association.

AAG Miller: Is there more to talk about on this?

Commission D. Herrera: No, we have two views that are on the floor have [inaudibie]

Acting AD J Cruz: Madam chair we're going to proceed to the next item. So today representing
the Guam Motorsports Association is Mr. Ada, he was just here.

Unknown Representative: He stepped out.
Acting AD J Cruz: You want to move on to the next item, and we can circle back?
Commission E. Garride: Can we move on to Manuel Aguon,

Acting AD J Cruz: Again, there’'s nobody representing Mr. Aguon, His daughter; Mr, Kai was
supposed to provide is a POA and but because she's not here |, | believe we, we haven't received
the POA from Mr. Kai to speak on behalf of Mr. Aguon.

Acting AD J Cruz: Mr. Ada is here.
Commission E. Garrido: Letter C.

Acting AD J Cruz: Letter C, the OPA Request for Compliance Audit; because of the author or the,
the creation of Bill 334-37, we're going to ask that we cancel that item on the agenda. 334-37 we'll
provide the board hapefully with all the authority and to resolve our current issues that are delaying
our process.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: So next up?

Acting AD J Cruz: D. So, in your packet you have a copy of Bill 325-37; it's a, it's the bill you guys
briefly spoke about earier. There has not been any public hearing on this bill; this bill reads Bill
325-37 an act to authorize The CHamoru Land Trust Commission to lease all or a portion of Lot
number 7161-R1 in Yigo, Guam to the Guam Motorsports Association for the purpose of providing
families with a safe and regulated space for drag racing and other on and off-road motor racing,
motor biking and car shaws and activities and to further appropriate $300,000.00 from the General
Fund to the CHamoru Land Trust Commission for the purpose of ¢cleaning and preparing Lot 7161 -
R1 Yigo, for public use.

AAG Miller: So, Madam chair, members this item is on the agenda so that if, if collectively you
want to express perspectives that you want staff to write down and send to the legislature as being
representative of the commission as a whole we can have that conversation now and you can
direct; we'll, we'll have to have a vote on, on what the, what the commission’s official position is if, if
you want to take a collective position in the altermative if each of you simply want to express your
own point of view to the legislature in your on way then we won't have a, an official commission

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 55



perspective on the bill. Completely at your discretion whether you want to try and speak collectively
or you wish to speak just each individual.

Commission E. Garrido: | think it suits us to do a collective positioning to this bill. Discussion?
AAG Miller: Again, how whatever you want that collective position to be, we note.
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: [inaudible]. Mr. Commissioner Garrido said earlier.

Acting AD J Cruz: And really, raised the concern about the $300,000.00; | guess for clarity on
what the $300,000.00 will be used for [inaudible] clarify for public use so that's whatever the board
does chooses to spend it on | guess that long as it's within that lot should be okay.

AAG Miller: | mean in, you know in all these things there's a, a reasonableness standard if we, if
we took all $300,000.00 and you know, spent it to construct you know Guam’s most luxurious snack
bar that might cause some concern. But the way the bill is currently drafted it is at your discretion
what the public use is and so long as we're reasonable in, in how we articulate the public use then
yau're the last word on how the money get spent.

Acting AD J Cruz: | guess to start the discussion if, if | may; this bill is intended to sole source the
issuance of a lease to the Guam Motorsports Association or its successor entity for a period of 5
years or untit a new, new lease agreement for lot 7161-R1 is approved by, by the government
specifically for the operation of a raceway related support facilities and various out, outdoor events.
It, it goes on to, to further state that the proceeds from the lease shall be deposited into the
Infrastructure Fund and then again like it was discussed earlier that the $300,000.00 will be
apprapriated from the FY2024 General Fund revenues collected in excess of the adopted levels;
and then it also waves the requirements of the two appraisals.

Commission E. Garrido: Attorney Miller, does this qualify as a sole source?

AAG Miller: Okay, the lawyer answer is no simply because Guam law, Guam Procurement law has
a section that defines a, a sole source that, that is part of the procurement process this, when the
legislature chooses to give you direction as to how to run the commission that isn’t a procurement
that's a law, and so technically it's, it's, it's not a, it's not a sole source if in the sense that while
procurement kaw define sole source.

Commission D. Herrera: Define sole source.

AAG Miller: One you, you're, you're doing business with one entity and you make no effort
whatsoever to see if there’s any other entity that you want to do business with.

Commission D. Herrera: So, | want to buy a car; just buy from one source?

AAG Miller: Well, you can't; sole sourcing is, is a unique concept to the, to the government
because the government law, Guam government law and the law of practically every government
says that generally speaking when you're spending the taxpayers’ money you're going to go talk to
three, five, you're going to get as many bids to spend the money as, as might come in and there's a
whoie process by which you will evaluate.

Commission D. Herrera: Buy the car.

AAG Miller: To buy a car for example; here we are being directed to, to do a five- year lease with
one particular entity. So, that and that the purpose of that lease will be to engage in Motorsports on
some or all of that particular tract of land.

Commission D. Herrera: Can other now with the sole source for a car for example we can buy one
or three or four cars from four different suppliers?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 586



AAG Miller: That's how you're supposed to do it; that's how you generally do it.

Commission D. Herrera: But, let's say | want to buy a specific aircraft rescue fire fighting unit
specified for aircraft rescue fire, fire fighting know criteria on Federal Aviation Administration
requirement and there's only one supplier that can provide that and | buy from that supplier would
that qualify as a sole source?

AAG Miller: The, the law that and if that were the only vendor who, who could deliver that fire truck
on Guam then yes that, that is the, that is the statutory definition of an authorized permitted sole
source purchase.

Commission D. Herrera: So, is there any other human body out there that can operate a
raceway?

AAG Miller: | don't know.

Commission D. Herrera: so, do we go with reguest for proposal to make it clear for everybody
under the sun?

AAG Miller: That, that, that is the if, if you all wanted to do that today you could. The, the, the bill
that's in front of you and the, the discussion we're having is whether you all support, don't support
or have no opinion on, on negotiating with one particular vendor about operating Motorsports on
your land.

Commission D, Herrera: | understand. So, day one of the eviction we decided to do a either RFP
or what do you call that sponsorship. Remember that was we discussed that back then; what
happened to that? | mean you know we were supposed to activate that the legislature was asking
how many months can you guys start doing this process. | think we mentioned three to six months
and that would be fair for the apen public; either that or sponsorship.

AAG Miller: The today, |, today there are many options available to the, to the commission. The
bill though which is the topic of this discussion says negotiate with one party for the purpose of one
activity Motarspaorts on one, one; and the, the agenda item is to ask the commissicners do you have
a collective opinion on the piece of the legislation.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Well ...
Commission E. Garrido: Who is the Guam Motorsports Association versus the Guam Raceway?

Acting AD J Cruz: | believe the Guam Motorsport, sports is chaired and represented by Mr. Ada.
The Guam Racing Federation was chaired by Mr. Simpson or after that | think Mr. Crisostomo if I'm
not mistaken.

Commission D. Herrera: And have you met with any of these two or any other possible vendors in
the past?

Acting AD J Cruz: In the past we in the past we've, we've had some people who have interest in
leasing commercially leasing 7161-R1.

Commission D, Herrera: Okay.

Commission E. Garrido: Why is it we never got a letter of intent or, or an inquiry from Guam
Motorsports Association in writing?

Acting AD J Cruz: For the?

Commission E. Garrido: Interest,

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 57



Acting AD J Cruz: They're part of the agenda though.

Commission E, Garrido: But why have we never got anything in writing from them for to solicit for
an interest?

Acting AD J Cruz: | believe Miss Camacho had when they were here with Mr. Limtiaco.
Commission E. Garrido: But that was for the raceway.

Acting AD J Cruz: And also Mr. Has, | guess came in and publicly made comments. Mr, Ada
wanted a working session to present whatever information they had available to the board, although
instead of the working session Mr. Ada is here today to share with you whatever information he has
to share with guys,

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, so relative again to this bill......
Commission E. Garrido: Because we know nothing about the Motorsport Association.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: | have, | asked Mr. Ada who are his officers and people in their, you
know club or group. 1 never got an answer.

Acting AD J Cruz: Mr. Ada is here today and when we do call him up can ...

AAG Miller: Madam chair, members if, if we want to hold the discussion on the legislation while
you hear testimony and ask questions to whoever you'd like to we can take things in that sequence.
We can come back to the, to the commission's collective perspective on the bill after you hear from
and after you ask questions to whoever you'd like to ask questions.

Commission D. Herrera: | recommend we table this until we discuss that until next month
because you know the issues that we just mentioned right, we got the Mawar victims and then we
got the unsurveyed lands. These are all residential and people that are in need. This is a
Raceway, | mean you catch what I'm saying right. The priority here that we're weighing but if we
want to discuss this in its sense, it's a sole source in my definition number one, number two
$300,000.00 is you know very fractional to what needs to be done. Remember we made: we had a
visit up there last month so.

AAG Miller: Madam chair, members that's you know, it's your prerogative how you want to address
these agenda items just understand that if we lay this agenda, if we lay over the agenda item of the
commission taking a, a joint perspective on the legislation; if the legislation, if the legislation
chooses to have hearings or, or move forward bill without us having a meeting, taking a vote then
Mr. Cruz will have no aiternative but to report to the legislature that the commission as a group has
no opinion,

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Right.

Commission D. Herrera: Right and even if we do have an opinion, you already have eight that
has an opinion over our opinion. Understanding the balance of the combination. Am | not, right?
There's eight over there already that would say this is what they want.

Acting AD J Cruz: | think there’s 10 on the bill.
Commission E. Garrido: This is, this is a bill, this is not law.
Acting AD J Cruz: Right.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, so this bill has 10. So, its already veto, but if the govemor
accepts it or not, i mean ...

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 58



AAG Miller: Madam chairman and Commissioner, | mean I've worked with legislators for 25 years
and | can, there are a whole lot of bills that got no votes from people who signed on in the
beginning to sponsor them after, after the, you had a more robust and complete discussion. People
who thought it was a good idea at the beginning, didn't think it was a good idea at the end.

Commission D. Herrera: So, there’'s 10.
Commission E. Garrido: Well, | think ...
Commission D, Herrera: We table.

Commission E. Garrido: | think it's only fair that since the Motorsports Association is here that we
invite them to have a discussion. That's my view that's my thought, before we make a motion to
table it.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay.
Acting AD J Cruz: So, we'll table it and come back to it.

Commission D. Herrera: No, | agree bring them they're here; we already know what we want to
hear so we're going to hear the same.

Commission E. Garrido: That way we can ask them directly. I've been asking you questions that
I can ask directly from them and they should be able to provide information.

AAG Miller: Yeah, | guess you know Madam chair feel you know free to call up who, whoever
you'd like to call up.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: First of all, did we complete your ... the agenda?

SPORTSLAND SHOOTING RANGE:

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay, so we'll move to item E. Item E is Sportsland Shooting Range. We
received a letter from Mr. John J. Sablan whose president; he's the president and CEQ of
Sportsland Outdoor Shooting Range which is currently operating in Dededo. Mr. Sablan is
requesting to lease from CLTC a minimum of 15 acres of property for the purpose of relocating the
Sportsland Outdoor Shooting Range currently in Dededo.

Mr. Sablan: Good aftemoon.
Chair members: Buenas

Mr. Sablan: John ). Sablan representing Sportsland of Interface Inc., dba Sportsland Shooting
Range.

Taylor Sablan: My name is Taylor Sablan, i'm also representative of Sportsland.
Commission E. Garrido: Is there a relationship between the two of you?

Mr. Sablan: Yes.

Taylor Sablan: My dad.

Mr. Sablan: [tis a family business.

Commission E. Garrido: Reading your submittal letter sir, there's a part here that | kind of like
don't agree with.

Mr. Sablan: Okay.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 59



Commiission E. Garrido: And | would like you to amend it.

Mr. Sablan: Okay. [, | don't, 'm sorry | dan't have a copy of that actually.

Commission E. Garrido: Well, it deals with biological, agricultural clearances.

Mr. Sablan: | remember now.

Acting AD J Cruz: There's a copy for you.

Commission D. Herrera: |s there a picture of the facility is, or is see the shooting range or ....
Mr. Sablan: Qur current facility?

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah.

Mr. Sablan: So, our current facility is on Lot Number 10095-8 in off of NCS in Dededo where the, it
used to be called the Munoz, yes, the Munoz Shooting Range. So that's our current location.

Commission D. Herrera: And you put about 1.5 million towards?
Mr. Sablan: Yes.
Commission D. Herrera: So, it's better [inaudible] more facility like that?

Mr. Sablan: So, we, this, this particular our current location was approved by the CLTC back then
TLUC back in 1982-83 for use of shooting range; for shooting range and it’ private property; it's
owned by the Santos family, Teresita Santos | believe,

Commission E. Garrido: Oh, so you're leasing.

Mr. Sablan: We are leasing and it’s, it's 7 acres of property and, so there is a situation currently
that | don't know you guys want me to take the time fo explain to your history.

Commission D. Herrera: | thought that they...did you guys take pictures of ....

Acting AD J Cruz: No, that's his; what's listed in the letters is private property where they're
operating.

Commission D. Herrera: Alright, so it's an open range.
Mr. Sablan: Yes, it's a 7, it's an outdoor shooting range.
Commission D. Herrera: Okay.

Mr. Sablan: And my request is for 15 acres and |, the reason why | put that you know the
bioclogical; because we're, we're, we are for the government is hoping for us to relocate from our
current position or our current location, and | was asked to submit a, a letter to the CLTC requesting
for praperty. And, because it's not 100% my idea to move although I'm, I'm, that's a good idea right,
that I'd like to explore a little bit more. My, you know we, we put in a about 1.5 million in developing
our current location and to move to another location and start redeveloping again, it's another
undertaking and we're are a for-profit business and the idea came about that the Guam Motorsports
or the racetrack area is being, might be subdivided and we're looking for possibly to locate more
than you know the nuisance sports such as firing range and you know racing into one location. A
little parcel of land was identified that has basically already been cleared; so, | don't want being a
piece of property by the Government of Guam and only to find out that there's a snail or there's a
fadan tree that | cannot bulldoze and it’ middle of my shooting range. It's not going to work.

Commission D. Herrera: So, they showed you a property already?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. B8O



Mr. Sablan: [t, it was, it was just an idea but nothing said so...

Commission D. Herrera: So, where is the property?

Mr. Sablan: It's | believe it's in the within the racetrack property towards the north, the north.
Commission D, Herrera: Did you guys show him?

Acting AD J Cruz: No, not us.

Commission D. Herrera: Who?

Acting AD J Cruz: | believe it's the ......

Mr. Sablan: The Guam Motorsports.

Commission D. Herrera: The racetrack area or they showed you the property?
Mr. Sablan: Well, they showed me a property map.

Commission D. Herrera: You went into the property?

Mr. Sablan: No, | haven’t been into the property. It's just the map
Commission D. Herrera: Oh, ckay.

Mr. Sablan: The, | was talking with Hans Ada.

Commission D. Herrera: Hans?

Mr. Sablan: Yeah.

Commission D, Herrera: Okay. So, he showed you the, is that the hole Hans? The hole that was
the hole....

Hans Ada: No, not the hole.
Commission D. Herrera: the Crater side?

Hans Ada: No, so basically; so, Senator Quinata was suggesting that since you know the, the
Raceway and the fire range were both temporarily you know trying to find a home right now. He
was suggesting that why not move it over to 7161-R1 if we could figure this out so, that, that's
where the idea came from and then | was speaking with Mr. Sablan and suggesting certain areas
where it'll be safe you know and it'll be you know ideal for to have firing range.

Commission D. Herrera: Have you ever been to the crater, the crater in the north?
Hans Ada: No.

Commission D, Herrera: Okay.

Mr. Sablan: Talking about within the race track property?

Commission D. Herrera: Correct, yeah that was excavated also.

Mr. Sablan: Is that along the ...?

Commission D. Herrera: On the cliff line side.

Mr. Sablan: Oh, okay.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: May | ask why the government wants you to move?

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
py. 61



Mr. Sablan: So, there's, okay this is the story part. So, forgive me if | go on and interrupt anytime
you want. We took over the lease for that property and reopened the shooting range back in 2018
and from day one we were, we were hit with complaints noise complaints from one of the neighbors
you know surrounding the property. And that complaint went on for the next 5 years or six years;
and when it finally got to the Attorney General’'s office he made, he was the first one to make the
comment that he would like to have a long-term solution to our problem with the neighbors and he
thought it was a safety issue and he wants us to relocate and they were looking for property and he
had Joe Borja at our round table meeting in August of 2023, and they mentioned about relocating a
shooting range. So, that's how we got here.

Commission D. Herrera: Did Joe show you a possible site? Joe Borja?
Mr. Sablan: No, no they, they never mentioned the property number or, or you know lot numbers.

Acting AD J Cruz: So, if | may, we have been through the during the term of former Senator Tony
Ada if | remember correctly; | believe Ms. Camacho the Acting Administrator Director; so, through
his inquiry we have been, we, | guess going through our inventory and identifying possible sites that
may being accommodable to a shooting range. That listing is not completed yet, but we also had
inquiry from Senator Lujan, Jesse Lujan. Then we had other groups come in to inquire; | think it's
the Guam Shooting Club if I'm not mistaken; there was a couple. So, just to let the board know
what we have done internally already, although again the board’s going to have to decide whether
to move forward and to find a place, but although even before a commercial lease is even
considered we still have to go through the competitive bid process. So, it doesn’t necessarily mean
that Mr. Sablan or his company; if the board does decide to designate an area for shooting range
that it would be awarded to him to the competitive bid process.

Commission D, Herrera: You, you understand that competitive to bid?
Mr. Sablan: Yeah, |, | do understand that.

Commission D. Herrera: You understand that if you do piggy back with the, this group on this bill
that you don't have to go to the bidding.

Mr. Sablan: | don't understand that bidding process in that sense as far as joining, joining forces
that's what you mean.

Commission D. Herrera: We have 10 Senators to say go shoot over there.

Mr. Sablan: So, our, our situation is a little unique because the other people that are putting in
requests those are | believe those are non-profit organizations and I'm a for-profit business.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah.
Mr. Sablan: We both,
Commission D, Herrera: Profit and non-profit,

Commission E. Garrido: The area up in Yigo that you made reference to; since you're saying
biclogical, that's a limestone forest area.

Mr. Sablan: Right.

Commission E. Garrido: And part of that limestone is just starting or should be recuperating fram
something the previous tenant destroyed it.

Mr. Sablan: | heard, yes.

Commission E. Garrido: So, it wouldn’t be for you because then ......

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 62



Mr. Sablan: Well, what I, what | meant was with biclogicat and if you need me to reword that,
rephrase it then | would but, | didn't want because so, when | started my shooting range and it had
to be cleared by agriculture, they wanted to make sure that there’s no endangered trees or
endangered species and that's pretty much what | meant.

Commission E. Garrido: Yeah, there's a lot of Fadan up there also.

Mr. Sablan: In the quarry pit area? The one that's already clear around the ....
Commission E. Garrido: The quarry pit is too small.

Mr. Sablan: |, | wouldn't know, | don't know the size of that lot, but yeah that's what I'm ......
Commission E. Garrido: Are you looking for 7 acres? Quarry pit is too small.
Commission D. Herrera: Which Coral pit?

Commission E, Garrido: The quarry pit.

Commission D. Herrera: At 71617

Commission E. Garrido: Yes.

Commission D. Herrera: He's only operating a range right, not a long rifle range? Foot range?
Mr. Sablan: Yes, itis a long rifle.

Commission D. Herrera: What you do you want?

Mr. Sablan: Small arms range.

Commission E. Garrido: He's both, his current setup is both.

Cross Talk

Mr. Sablan: We're not going to be limited or our limits are going to be up to 50 Caliber.
Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, Piti shoots 50 Caliber.

Mr. Sablan: Right, but our property right now our current property is way bigger than Piti.
Commission D. Herrera: Oh, and open, but you have homes around.

Mr. Sablan: Correct.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, okay. So, you're willing to pay a commercial price?

Mr. Sablan: Well, you know ...

Commission D. Herrera: You're right now you're paying commercial on that.

Mr. Sablan: Correct,

Commission D, Herrera: 7 acres right.

Mr. Sablan: Correct and if we go by your calculations from the previous tenant, we're up by the golf
course in [inaudible] and my, my lease payment is about, it's about on it's amount the same right
now per acre; it's about $125.00 per acre. So, | don't have problem.

Commission D. Herrera: That about $1,800 a month.

Mr. Sablan: All, right now in our sit.... in our current location its about $2,000.00,

CLTC Regular Meeling Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 63



Commission D. Herrera: So, basically commercial values about 10% of the value right, not less
than 10. Something like that but we work that out. OCkay, so.

Acting AD J Cruz: If the Board, not to action his request but to direct us to continue and present
the board with various properties that potentially can be used for shooting range. The board just
needs to let us know and there's a whole process to it; just so if | may disclose it, if we're heading in
the competitive bid direction, we're going to have to present the list of properties to the board,
they're going to have to declare it for designated for commercial use. We're going to have to hold a
public hearing; after that public hearing we presented to the board, after that is done and they want
to designate it for commercial use or declare it through resolution. We send it to the legislature; the
legislature has 60 days. If they don't act withing the 60 days, on the 61st day it's automatically
declared and designated for commercial use. And then we just go to the RFP process which is
announcing the newspaper and all that other great stuff and the board will assemble commit, go
through it, we, it based on your proposal and based on what's required in the RFP. That's how your
proposal be rated, but again that doesn't necessarily mean that you wili be the successful bidder.

Mr. Sabian: Right.

Acting AD J Cruz: Just so that we have an understanding.

Mr. Sablan: Oh yeah.

Acting AD J Cruz: We have about &8 months.

Commission E. Garrido: You're, you're not limiting yourself to the north, are you?
Mr. Sablan: | kind, | kind of want to stay up the north. Stay up in the north.

Commission E. Garrido: Well, the reason why I'm asking I'm, I'm like stress, stressing that is |
believe we have a lot more open property like southem area, and down in the southern area you're
way far away from the waterlands.

Mr. Sablan: Well, I'd like to then you know if you have a list and Il look at it for sure. | mean still
small; | mean I'd like to be as close as ...

Commission E. Garrido: 'm not going to say yes or no but it this will go for more research.

Mr. Sablan: Right. It's only one of the criteria that | put out because | was asked you know, and,
and really you know |, | was tald by elected officials that they do not want to see my shooting range
reapen in its current location. So, it's kind of you know, it's not I, | mean | could still shoot on that
property. | could just disregard everything and, and just shoot on my property as a private property
owner, but we're trying, trying to do the right thing and | think the government’s position is, is you
know |, | would welcome it but, you know | would request the consideration of our current situation
when, when these, when this you know process is through and other people | know other people
are looking at it. 1 think we're the only for-profit business, but again you know we didn't ask for this
and we feel that we were you know, the process was how do you say, we were short changed in the
process along the way.

Commission D. Herrera: The other range in Chalan Pago you understand......
Mr. Sablan; One is a private property range also.
Commission D. Herrera: Short range | mean you know just ....

Mr. Sablan: Yes, pistol range.

CLTC Regular Mesting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. B4



Commission D. Herrera: So, it's less than 7 acres where [inaudible] but if you're shooting 50
Caliber right, so even 5 acres would do if the backdrop is just like Piti. Itis less than 5.

Mr. Sablan: Right, but for the volume that we were doing in our current position, 'm also, |, 1
requested in the letter for 15 acres to include buffer zones.

Commission D. Herrera: | understand. So, the closes structure that's around your property is
about 1500 ft?

Mr. Sablan: No, it's 50 yards away from our, from the shooting, well actually no it's, the property
line is, is somebody else’s backyard.

Commission D. Herrera: Oh, so that close so, legally it's to discharge the firearm still within that
range?

Mr. Sablan: Well, as a private property you have to be 50 yards away from the nearest occupied
being, but if you're registered shooting range ride up to the property.

Commission D. Herrera: Okay, if the neighbors are and yeah, but yours is an open range, right? If
you do an enclosed range would that help?

Mr. Sablan: Yes, but the you know the purpose of our business is outdoor shooting range. That’s
what we you know it's more expensive to do an indoor shooting range.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, the other one that's operating down in the south, they | think you
know you familiar with that range?

Mr. Sablan: | believe you're talking about the one in Talofofo.
Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, open range, right?

Mr. Sablan: It's open yes.

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah.

Commission E, Garrido: Didn't that close down?

Mr. Sablan: | believe they're closed right now.

Commission D, Herrera: Okay, so ......

AAG Miller: Madam chair, members what we're looking for now is a direction from the commission
the staff to better understand their requirements and for them to talk about finding some options.

Commission E. Garrido: Joey, can you meet with Mr. Sablan and lay out like a chart out course,
course of action and we can do the research and see what properties would be made available for
his consideration?

Acting AD J Cruz: Okay.

Commission D. Herrera: Just a point of information, there's 600 acres next to [inaudible]. The
600 acre was designated for the speedway. The 600 acre is situated where [inaudibie]. If you're
familiar with that area.

Mr. Sablan: Yes.

Commission D. Herrera: So, in that area there’s 600 acres, we did the plan and the configuration
of those property are healing terrain. Real good for motorcross but still good for backdrop for your
kind of operation. Neighbors to the Santos or the shooting range where you a 50 cal. So, so that's

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 65



600 acres; the reason why I'm putting that out because it's still designated under the Parks and
Recreations. So, that, that there's no problem if you were {oo parallel and tie in with them,
understanding the law, right with the cause that, that was designated back | guess in 95 when it
was Public Law 22-18, that lifestyle is 600 acres. 600 is more than enough, but the configuration of
the property. If you, if you've been to the Santos or the Piti range is similar, so that the Piti range is
on top of the rich; the 600 acres are rich and value. So, that's one and because it's under Parks and
Recs., we've been recommending that spot for the motorcross spot, and it's under Parks and
Recreation, there's no transfer as of this time. You under there, Joey knows the area.

Mr. Sablan: Well, you know the, the current or the former Raceway Park in Yigo right now, | that's
pretty much it's developed, it's ready you know they can continue Motorsports and there’s a spot
there right next to them that is safe to shoot any Caliber because they going, it's going out towards
the cliff line and that those areas are not occupied by any residences and | don't think they're; you
know it's going down.

Commission D. Herrera: They're developing 1,200 of homes there so that's the plan.
Mr. Sablan: Gotcha.

Commission D. Herrera: So, that's our primary mission is to issue a residential land.
Mr. Sablan: Not subsidize 71617

Commission D. Herrera: All of them, the entire population. That's, that's by law so you.

Acting AD J Cruz: We'll continue and compile and then we'll present it to the board, but we also
reach out to you.

Mr. Sablan: Okay thank you.

GUAM MOTORSPORTS ASSOCIATION:
Acting AD J Cruz: Okay, then Madam chair, so, we're circling back to item 6-B which is the Guam
Motor Sports Association represented by Mr. Ada; there anyone else with you?

Mr. Ada: Ryan.

AAG Miller: Madam chair just so you know |, | have to leave at 5:15.
Commission D. Herrera: What time is it now?

AAG Miller: Five minutes to 5.

Commission D. Herrera: Ob, 5:15,

AAG Miller: 4:55.

Commission D, Herrera: Oh, no but you have to leave at 5:15?
AAG Miller: Yes.

Mr. Ada: | sent some, some of these documents to the CLTC. Here you go. Can you pull those
up? | sent some documents to the, to the Admin. email and then if you could display it on the
monitor, please. Here you go. [l just go ahead and get started when we go on that, sc we could
save some time. 'm Hanz Ada, this is Ryan Castro; we're the Guam Motorsports Association. So,
Guam Motorsports Association — GMA is a new cerlified non-profit crganized and established to
respectfully open and responsibly operate 7161-R1 while inclusively representing all Guam
Raceway Park communities and activities, all the motorsports. So, |, | thank you for calling. Chair
Bordallo, 1, you were asking about if we were a motorcross association? |, 'm sorry | thought |; |

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 66



made it clear that we are, we represent all sports so we are a new non-profit wanting to operate the
race representing all.

Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Al people that have come to the legislature and given their, their
testimony it may not just involve certain graups but as a whole there were other people of ......

Mr. Ada: Okay, |, | was just referring to when we were speaking on the phone I, | wanted to sorry if |
didn't make that, that clear. But I've been here multiple times just, just trying to have you know like
we were going to have like a working session or anything so I'd love to answer any questions that
you have or, or wark with you just, just let me know. Call me at any time and I'll leave my contact
info.

Commission E. Garrido: When were you established? When did you say you got your ......
Mr. Ada: Officially we were certified, | picked up my certification like a month ago as a non-profit.
Commission E. Garrido: do you have, can we see your financial, your, your financial ....

Mr. Ada: well, we're, we're in the process right now of opening up a bank account. So, we've just
formed our, our organization.

Commission E. Garrido: No, I'm trying to think for the word is ....

Commission D. Herrera: Your tax report for the last 5 years.

Commission E. Garrido: they don’t have, they just ......

Mr, Ada: Articles, Articles of Corporation?

Commission E. Garrido: What are your financial resources? Who are your financial backers?

Mr. Ada: So, we so this, this question was brough up at the hearing. Our worth is that we are a
community; you know it's, it's a large community and they're, we're a motorsports group of all sorts
of people. Some people even motorsports. But very resourceful and we've all come together
volunteering so, | mean we're worth a lot and we demonstrated that because we've been able to, to
make this happen and operate this facility. Now as far as dollar amount goes that's, that's where
you know we, we, we don't have a history of the tax statements or anything since we're just new.

Commission E. Garrido: You're going, you're going into an operation that would require financial
statements so, whalt is your financial backing?

Mr. Castro: Our, our investment sir is, we're investing into the people and the community.
Commission E. Garrido: There's money that has to pass hands.

Mr. Castro: Even from previous the previous organization |, | wasn't involved with none of that, but
| am an [inaudible] racer too. So, what | understand and what I've seen before and what |
volunteered before is some of it, a lot of volunteer work was done up there as well. The money |
paid prior to the race and use that park and, and enjoy the park as it was given to the previous
federation and that's how they operate with, with how they had the events to, to do that. |, | think
there's no difference in what we're trying to do here today as a non-profit. | understand your
question; like we said we're new, we do not have any financial statement yet in hopes of opening,
reopening the raceway park we are looking for some sponsorship, we are looking at trying to get
volunteers up there to get it operational and hopefully then we can have a good financial staterment
with what's there. That's what we've been doing already way up to this day even with our non-profit
we, we are just asking volunteers to come out. We're looking for sponsorship so directly to your

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

py. 67



question as of today, we're just investing into the people and who's interested in trying to make this
happen or support it including you guys and we appreciate that.

Mr. Ada: Yeah, we're, we're a new group so we're not affiliated in any way with GRF, but we all
have a lot of experience; | raced professionally in the states, so we all have a lot of experience in
racing and how to operate a raceway and also just, just business in general and also the economics
and motor sports.

Commission E. Garrido: Well, since you mentioned economics, economics has a big part of what
you're trying to, to do. If you were to come to me right now and say | want to lease the raceway or
if you were to go to same sort of institution, you have to provide like feasibility studies, your financial
statements and a plan; some sort of master plan.

Mr. Ada: Correct, so whenever you look at a commercial property since Bill 287 was designating
the raceway as a commercial property you have to look at what is on that piece of property and,
and then do a feasibility study; what you know what is feasible to ask CLTC to ask in regards to
rental rates. Now you, this organization may not have five years of history of tax statements, but
the facility has 20, over 20 years of history and basically what we would do is we would just plug
and play; it's going to be different operators and we are, that's the history is that we're going to
operate almost immediately as soon as if we were able to come to an agreement. And that's really
is what the history is, is the revenue streams from how it's been previously operated since 1998.

Commission D. Herrera: Revenue stream.

Mr. Ada: Yes, so you have smoking wheels, you had EIF, you have the motorcross section, you
have Baja Bash the drag strip lay over to the next map. Start, start with the map that Mr. Herrera
proposed at the, the hearing.

Commission D. Herrera: Have you been meeting with our staff here?

Mr. Ada: I've met with Joey and Dexter. Well, | stopped by here |, | think, | think Joey's really busy.
There, there was some hearings he had to go to, but | was, | was popping in for a couple weeks
and | kept missing him; | came about five times.

Commission D. Herrera: You'll be providing the ...,
Mr. Ada: |just made these yesterday.
Acting AD J Cruz: That was just sent to us 30 minutes ago.

Mr. Ada: Yeah, | just made this like last night. So, this, this is the map; yes, this is the map that was
proposed, that you proposed Mr. Herrera at the, the hearing on June 20th. So some of the
questions that we had was is, is this the proposed subdivision how you wouid want to subdivide it or
is this just an identification of the different areas and, and the activities that take place on those
different parcels. Is, is that is that what that is? Is it more of identification or how would you want to
subdivide it is my question, That's the question. Mr, Herrera is that how you want to subdivide it?

Commission D. Herrera: Not me, that was proposed by our group.
Mr. Ada: Okay or CLTC is that....

Commission D. Herrera: That was to accommodate for you guys to function in a, in an interim
position. So, you can drag drift and do you motor cross.

Mr. Ada: Okay.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 68



Commission D. Herrera: But apparently the group changed their perception. Now the whole 250
acres, correct?

Mr. Ada: No, so that will be in the next [inaudible].

Commission D. Herrera: No, no but correct, you guys don't the ... we're trying to accommodate
the need of the community. You catch what I'm saying right, if you're a [inaudible] you can use the
drag strip; you're a drifter you can us the drift.

Mr. Ada: Yes,

Commission D. Herrera: You want a motorcross you can use the motocross, and we wanted to
accommodate you guys to do your support. But, apparently there’s a change in tune now you guys
want whoever now; they want the whole 1 million square meter. Am | correct?

Mr, Castro: That, that new bill it says the whole or portion,
Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, yeah befare the bill before the bill right.

Mr. Castro: Yes, we, we asked for, for to reopen as a new organization and yes that, the question
the answer is yes, we did ask for the whole property.

Commission D. Herrera: Right, so we want to accommadate right.
Mr. Castro: So, apparently what I'm hearing is that no we don't want be to ...
Mr. Ada: Here's this one that's one that answers your question.

AAG Miller: Madam Chair, commissioners if | can follow up on Commissioner Garrido’s line of
guestioning |, | think what he's concerned about is whatever deal we might strike with you, among
other thinks there’s an expectation that you will be writing us a check every month. We don't care
how you, legally earn the revenue to do that, but we need to know that every month the rent check
is going to come in. The activity you're engaging in here is from the land owner’s point of view; it's
risky. Sa, we're going to expect that you're going to have an insurance policy in place. The
insurance company’s going to want to get paid every singte month. Because of the activity you're
engaging in here is risky, we're going to expect that no matter what the activity is, that there are you
know there is professional emergency medical providers and, and ambulances and that the Guam
Police is participating and, and managing crowd control, and they're going to expect to get paid.
So, for us to get comfortable with, with the project yeah you know by the third or fourth of that
there’ll be new money in the bank. But, where's the, where is the money going to come from that's
going to pay the bills associated for those first couple of events until you know you you've had an
opportunity to, to build up a bank account because the insurance company gets paid month one, we
get paid month one. The, the ambulance operator paid as soon as you ask for an ambulance to be
on site, so haw do we how do we know you can pay those bills for the first event on the first day.

Mr. Ada: Well, part of that was issuing the $300,000.00 with Bill 325, so that was for preparation
and opening lot the lot for the raceway purpose activities that was what part of that was for was
what part of that was for was ...._.

AAG Miller: That's an interesting interpretation.

Mr. Ada: But that ....

Commission D. Herrera: Wait, wait, you're saying that the $300,000.00 was to go to pay for your
insurance and ....

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 69



Mr. Ada; No, no not that, but that what we can also do is we can have an x amount secured for like
a year if that something that'l make you guys comfortable so it'll be a year’'s worth of agreed upon
rent.

Commission D. Herrera: Way back or where you were racing before you ....
Mr. Ada: |raced professionally.

Commission D. Herrera: No, but have you managed a race track.

Mr. Ada: | have not managed a race track professionally but ....

Commission D. Herrera: Yeah, yeah. I'm just trying to align because you're going, you want to
manage this race track and you don't have any management background. I'm just.

Mr. Ada: Management background, | develop drivers professionally so then I'll also work...
Cross Talk
Mr. Ada: | didn't have a raceway under my name that | managed to answer your question.

Commission D. Herrera: But you know where we're getting at right, | mean we're landlords and,
and Joey if you can share for the last five to ten years that the Guam Racing Federation has
operated, what's the profit margin for Jand trust or the cash flow per month? Considering the rental
and the sharing of the no, operation?

Acting AD J Cruz: | believe the rental fee was 4,000.00 a month which is 48,000.00 a year. As far
as the, the 10% for the admission fee, it was really 10% of the sub leasing fee. | think the only
actual 10% that did come from the emission fee was the smoking wheel. Although as far as the
minimal extraction it was just based on what we were providing. So, those that the rate fluctuated
unfortunately it fluctuated without commission approval some companies 50 cents, some 75, some

Commission D. Herrera: So, just, just removing the extraction part and just the operation, that's
the cash flow that we've experienced of what you know what occurred there and remember the, the
group that ran that you know operate a car dealership. These are not, no you know they; they
operate businesses so if the profit margin or the Land Trust or the cash flow and again, in the
beginning we wanted to kind of work with you guys or whoever wants to work with us and when Mr.
Miller and Attorney Miller and Joey were recommending a or they were drafting a sponsorship or a
lease or license; that was the approach we wanied to, to accommodate the request from the
community.

Commission E. Garrido: Who are your officers?

Mr, Ada: Sao, I'm President, John Burch Jr is Vice President, Mike Limtiaco is Treasurer, Christina
Conquer is Secretary. Additional members at large Joey Crisostomo, Jen Camacho, Jeff Rios,
Timothy Wendon, Ryan M Castro, Jeffrey Jones, Jay Jones. So, one of the questions |, | had a
series of questions pertaining the rental rate so we coulid have something agreed upon or, or an
idea so we could get a feel.

Commission E. Garrido: You never submitted anything.
Mr. Ada: So that's what, what we could do is we could submit a proforma and ...
Commission E. Garrido: Well,

Mr. Ada: But, but in order to do that in order to have a, an agreement we have some guestions that
I'd like to ask and that, that will give us a better idea so that we can formulate a port proforma

CLTC Regular Mesting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 70



Commission E. Garrido: Before we give you permission you have to prove to us that you're
capable.

Mr. Ada: Correct.

Commission E. Garrido: That you have the financial backing. Because like the attomey said if, if
we lease you the property, we have an expectation of getting paid every month. Alright otherwise
you're out the door.

Mr, Ada: Well, the previous operator is retired, he stepped down. He officially stepped down.
Now, there's a number of people.

Commission E. Garrido: The previous president stepped down?
Mr. Ada: Yes, correct.
Commission E. Garrido: But the raceway does have an association still in, in existence.

Mr. Ada: But when you're asking in regards to the background; some of those operators they have
the history of actually of, of the, the financial knowing of, of the raceway so ......

Commission E. Garrido: I'm asking who your backers are and you, you were evading the
question.

Mr. Ada: No, there in regardless to financial backers we don't ......
Commission E. Garrido: Didn’t you just name Joey, the two Jones boys.

Mr. Castro: They're, they're part of the association that we have. | cannot speak on their behalf
that they're going to sponsor or we, financial backer. | know we all understand a non-profit.

Commission E. Garrido: So, what guaranties can you give me that you can pay the monthiy rent?

Mr. Castro: I'm going, like | said I'm speaking on my behalf of being a racer and paying the
previous Federation. I'm sure that the events they had up there generated enough money to pay if
it was 4,000.00 a month. | mean they lasted there how long for, for x amount of years.

Commission D. Herrera: You were paying the Federation.

Mr. Castro: Well, | paid a, | paid a race right | paid a enter and | paid a race in events. They had
and that's who | was, |, | was asked to volunteer; to be a part of this, and I'm just trying to answer
the questions that we had.

Commission D, Herrera: Okay, right.

Mr. Castro: So, if we open this raceway, I'm not sure how they opened it 2018, 20 years ago, |, I'm

AAG Miller: Madam chair, members |1 have to slip out, but let me just leave you with one final
thought for today. We've talked about sponsorships, we've talked about licenses, we, we've talked
about leases; from the lawyer's point of view what those really come down ta is time, and perhaps
the, the way to get this relationship started is with sponsorship which essentially means we'll rent
you, we'll for a reasonable amount of money we'll let you use some portion of this property for a
week. Just make, make up an example for and because you're only going to owe us a week’s
worth of rent and you're only going to have a buy an insurance policy that's good for a week; we
can get a lot more comfortable than you can handle a week and then if that works then you know,
you have your event, you get cash in the door and then you come back to us and say okay. Now

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 71



we've got the next two events in the queue and, | mean taking on responsibility for that entire
property on day one is a mighty big money.

Commission D. Herrera: But you catch that right, right we accommodate the what the attorney
right because right now right, you guys are saying you know there's no place to you know to do a
4.0 seconds down in a quarter.

Mr. Castro: Yes.
Commission D, Herrera: Right, is that a jet, yes?
Mr. Castro: Yes, that's fine. You can use that as an example.

Commission D. Herrera: But the point is that you have a place to get your, your adrenaline
injected into your bloodstream, right?

Cross Talk

Commission D. Herrera: Looks like you want the whole place right, no and how much are you
willing to pay for the 1 million square meter?

Mr. Ada: No, no not the whole 1 million; so, the map that | just gave you, so the last one it's roughly
around 100 acres.

Commission D. Herrera: So, you want 100 acres at how much?
Mr. Ada: That is the bare minimum of size.

Commission D, Herrera: How much, how much?

Mr. Ada: And that was the next question.

Commission D. Herrera: Are you willing to pay.

Mr. Ada: So, so we got to back up because these questions, | have to, | have to have a few
questions.

Commission D, Herrera: Okay, so because the attorney is going to wrap, we gaing to have to
table this because we don't want to say anything until he’s around.

Mr. Ada: Okay.

AAG Miller: | mean, we're, you know if you want to call Joey and make an appointment and we
can just chat in the office and ....

Mr. Ada: Yeah, that will be great that | just, there's concerns that | have because like | was saying
when | race professional and other racing facilities, they have full time staff, they have faculty, they
have ambulances their full time ready to go. This raceway is very different; it's unique. The
raceway was charging $20 for a drifter to race for the whole weekend whereas it was.... $20.00

Commission D. Herrera: How much do you guys pay before?

Mr. Ada: So, one racing ...,

Mr. Castro: So, to pay to get enter $10.00 to $20.00 ateast for the drag racing.
Commission D. Herrera: For that night?

Mr. Castro: Yes, for that night.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 72



Mr. Ada: But just for example’s sake like drifting it would be $20.00 to enter and that would include
the whole weekend, for the track for the whole weekend to compete.

Commission D. Herrera: Whole weekend or that night?

Mr. Ada: For the whole weekend; so, the whole event, the whole drifting event. So, if I'm a racer
and | do that on some of the states that I've competed on, in some of my formula series that I've
race in, it's almost $1,500.00 for the weekend.

Commission D. Herrera: Good for you.
Mr. Ada: No, but what I'm saying, but what I'm saying is that, track has a history...
Cross Talk

Mr. Ada: But, that's, but it gives you an idea that, that's what a track charges that does have faculty
and staff there all full time and the raceway had one employee there and they, he was getting paid
$1,000.00 ...

Commission D, Herrera: Gave you a chance right, so we're going to continue because we have
to work under the, the attorney.

Mr. Ada: | understand. Thank you for calling us. If you guys have any questions, we’ll put
together; we'll submit anything that you have questions about ...

Commission D, Herrera: What do you drive Ryan?

Mr. Castro: Me, | drive a Toyota truck; that's CHamoru culture; it's going to stay, it's gaing to stay in
CHamoru culture for my kids.

Commission D. Herrera: Turbo?

Mr. Castro: Turbo yes.

Acting AD J Cruz: Madam chair you going to table the res of the discussion and adjourn?
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: We're going to adjoumn.

Commission E. Garrido: | move we table

Cross Talk

Acting AD J Cruz: So, there's a motion to table the discussion on the Guam Motorsports.
Cross Talk

Commission D. Herrera: Table.

Madam Chair A, Bordallo: All in favour

All: Aye

Adjournment:
Madam Chair A. Bordallo: Now, we need to adjourn.
Commission D. Herrera: | motion to adjourn.

Commission E. Garrido: Second it.

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024

pg. 73



(***MEETING ENDED — NOTHING FOLLOWS ™~}

The meeting adjourned at approximately 5:21 PM.

Chairperson Arlene P. Bordallo: Mw ,ﬁw&d/@%@ Date: L&tz /t_ﬂl ﬂif’

Concurred by: % Date: /-9/7/]/;‘-;/_-(

Acting A;?(istrqgfé Director

Joseph B. Cruz

CLTC Regular Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2024
pg. 74



)
2.

O& }*& >/

g = : o
6,.%“hd Trust Gf‘\
g

Administrative Director’s Report



Old Business



Lot 10125-15 Dededo
Global Recycling/Koku Recycling
(No Attachment)



| Mina'trentai Siette Na Liheslaturan Gushan

THE THIRTY-SEVENTH GUAM LEGISLATURE | Mina'trentai Siette Na Liheslaturan Guahan
Bl HISTORY BILL STATUS
9/29/2023 10:36 AM

Joe S. San Agustin AN ACT TO AMEND THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE GUAM| 9/29/23

Roy A. B. Quinat: INTERNATIONAL COUNTRY CLUB, INCORPORATED.
179-37 (COR) oV A B Quinata g

Dwayne T.D. San Nicolas

[ William A. Parkinson

10:04 a.m.

CLERKS OFFICE Page 1



O© 0 I3 O »n B~ W N =

e e e e T
N WO = O

9/29/23 10:04 a.m.
mc

I MINA'TRENTAI SIETTE NA LIHESLATURAN GUAHAN
2023 (FIRST) Regular Session

Bill No. 179-37 (COR)

Introduced by: Joe S. San Agustin
Roy A. B. Quinata
Dwayne T. D. San Nicola
William A. Parkins

AN ACT TO AMEND THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE GUAM

INTERNATIONAL COUNTRY CLUB, INCORPORATED.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF GUAM:

Section 1. Legislative Findings and Intent. / Liheslaturan Gudhan finds that
Lot Number 1022-12, Mogfog, Municipality of Dededo is a trust property that is the
subject of that certain commercial lease agreement by and between the Chamorro
Land Trust Commission, as lessor, and Guam International Country Club, Inc.,
(GICC) as lessee, dated April 1, 2014, and recorded at the Department of Land
Management, Government of Guam, on April 4, 2014, under Document Number
863522. This commercial lease, currently with a 10% escalation clause every five
years, is estimated to produce $7,934,677.76 in rental income to the Chamorro Land
Trust over the remaining term of its lease which ends on January 31, 2039.

I Liheslaturan Gudhan further finds that the rental income payable during the
remaining term of this lease can potentially be used to help fund the Chamorro Land
Trust Endowment Fund in a material manner where the annual earnings of the fund

equal or exceed the annual rent being received from the lease while still preserving

1



O© 0 I O N A~ W N -

[\ I NG T NG N NG R NG N O B NS R NS R S N e e e T e e e T
<N SN A WD = O O N NN = O

the fund's principal in perpetuity.

I Liheslaturan Guahan further finds that the lessee, GICC, will be able to and
has agreed to both accelerate the payment of rent and to increase the escalation rate
provided that the lease is amended to incorporate an accelerated rent schedule, an
increased escalation rate for the purpose of determining the present value of all future
rent, an extension of the lease term, that the permitted use of the property be amended
to include the generation, storage and transmission of renewable solar power and
provided that the property is actually so used.

I Liheslaturan Guahan further finds that the GICC i1s seeking approval from /
Liheslaturan Guahan to approve amendments to their lease with the Chamorro Land
Trust Commission.

It 1s, therefore, the intent of I Liheslaturan Guahan to authorize the Chamorro
Land Trust Commission to approve the lease amendments with the GICC.

Section 2. Amendments to Lease. Notwithstanding 21 GCA §60115, 21
GCA §75A122, 21 GCA §75A103 and any other provision of law, I Liheslaturan
Gudhan hereby authorizes, approves and directs the Chamorro Land Trust to make
the following amendments to the subject lease agreement: a) the permitted
commercial uses of the property shall include the generation, storage and
transmission of renewable solar power; b) the lease term may be extended through
January 31, 2055; ¢) in the event the property is used for the generation, storage and
transmission of renewable solar power, for the purpose of determining the net
present value of future rent, the current rental escalation rate of 10% every five years
shall be increased to an escalation rate of 12% every five years; d) in the event the
property is used for the generation, storage and transmission of renewable solar
power, the lessee shall pay all rents due under the lease in advance at its net present
value, to be determined by a MAI certified and licensed real estate appraiser selected

by the Chamorro Land Trust, and shall be paid for by the Guam International
2



O© 0 I O N A~ W N -

[\ I NG T NG N NG R NG N O B NS R NS R S N e e e T e e e T
<N SN A WD = O O N NN = O

Country Club, Inc., utilizing a market based discount rate and will in no event be
less than Seven Million Dollars ($7,000,000) or more than Nine Million Dollars
($9,000,000), with 10% paid within 30 days of the date a power purchase agreement
is entered into with the Guam Power Authority that will utilize the property for the
generation, storage and transmission of renewable solar power and the remaining
90% paid within 30 days of the date solar power is first transmitted to the Guam
Power Authority under the power purchase agreement; e) in the event the property
1s used for the generation, storage and transmission of renewable solar power, lessee
will not be required to use the property for the operation of a golf course; f) until
such time the net present value of the accelerated rent is paid in full, lessee shall
continue to pay monthly rent in accordance with the lease agreement. The amended
lease shall be subject to execution by I Maga'haga (the Governor), the Chairman of
the Chamorro Land Trust Commission, attestation by / Segundu Na Maga'lahi (the
Lieutenant Governor), and approval as to form by the Attorney General of Guam,
pursuant to Title 21 GCA §60114(C); and g) in the event the property is not used for
the generation, storage and transmission of renewable solar power the provisions of
section 2 of this act shall be null and void.

Section 3. Ratification of Lease. Notwithstanding 21 GCA §60115,21 GCA
§75A122,21 GCA §75A103 and any other provision of law, I Liheslaturan Gudhan
hereby ratifies the lease agreement by and between the Chamorro Land Trust and
Guam International Country Club, Inc. dated April 1, 2014, affecting Lot Number
1022-12, Mogfog, Municipality of Dededo and all amendments thereto that are made
in accordance with this Act.

Section 4. Funding of CLTC Endowment Fund. In the event accelerated
rent is received by the Chamorro Land Trust in accordance with the lease agreement
by and between the Chamorro Land Trust and Guam International Country Club,

Inc. dated April 1, 2014, affecting Lot Number 1022-12, Mogfog, Municipality of
3



0 N N Bk~ WN

Dededo, as said lease is amended by this Act, all accelerated rent received shall be
transferred to the CLTC Endowment Fund and become a part of the fund's corpus.

Section 5. Severability. If any provision of this Act or its application to any
person or circumstance is found to be invalid or contrary to law, such invalidity shall
not affect other provisions or applications of this Act that can be given effect without
the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Act are
severable.

Section 6. Effective Date. This Act shall be effective upon enactment.



" Commissioner "

(Vacang)
Commissioner

Joseph 8. Cruz Jr.

Acting Adntinistrative Dircctor

Rev 09 30 21024

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

l P.O. Box 2950 Hagdtia, Gudhan 96932 ) Phone: 671-300-3296 Fax: & "i-300-3319

Qctober 3, 2024

Honorable Therese M. Terlaje

Speaker, 37™ Guam Legisltature

Committee on Health, Land, Justice and Culture
Guam Congress Building

163 Chalan Santo Papa

Hagatna, Guam 96910

SUBJECT: BILL 179-37

Dear Speaker Terlaje,

| recently learned that Bill 179-37 has been amended. Unfortunately, | nor the
board has received a copy of the Bill and have not discussed collectively whether
or not our support will continue based on the amendments. | respectfully request
that any further discussion regarding the amended Bill 178-37 be deferred until
the CLTC Board has had the opportunity to review and discuss it coflectively. |
will place the amended Bilt 179-37 on the board agenda for Gctober 2024, and
the CLTC Board will discuss it. Immediately after, CLTC will formally provide
written testimony on the amended Bilt 179-37.

If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at
(671) 300-3296.

Senseramente,

C lome el

Arlene P, Bordallp
Chairvoman

Cc:
CLTC Board Members
Honorable Senator Joe S. San Agustin



CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
Kumision Inangokkon Tano' Chamoru
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-001

Bilt No. 179-37 {COR} An Act to Amand the Chamorro Land Trust
Lease Agreament with the Guam International Country Club, Ine.

WHEREAS, the Chamarro Land Trust Commission (CLTC) was established te protect and administer
trust properties for the benefit of eligible beneficiaries, as mandated by the Chamorro Land Trust Act

enacted in 1975; ang

WHEREAS, \he CLTC requires continued funding to fulfill its mission, inctuding critical imtialives such
as property surveying. trust property registration, infrastructure developmeni, and providing home
loans for eligible beneficiaries; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to explore additional funding mechanisms to support the operations and
initiatives of the CLTC; and

WHEREAS, Lot Number 1022-12. Mogfog, Municipality of Dededo, is currenily subject to a
commercial lease agreement between the CLTC and Guam International Country Club, inc. {GICC),
dated April 1, 2014, recorded under Document Number 863522; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to 21 Guam Code Annotated Chapter 75A, Division 2, section 75A122, the
CLTC has the authority to include accelerated rent payments as a term and condition in commercial
leases; and

WHEREAS, incorporating an accelerated rent payment option in commercial leases can provide
immediate funding for the CLTC 1o carry out its mission effectively; and

WHEREAS, GICC has expressed willingness to accelerate renl payments and increase the escalation
rate, subject to certain lease amendments that incorporate an accelerated rent schedule, an extended
lease term, the inclusion of renewable solar power generation, storage, and transmission as permitted
uses of the property, and the actuat utilization of the property for such purpeses; and

WHEREAS, GICC has expressed willingness to setle arrears payment within thirty (30) calendar days
upon the passage of Bill No. 179-37 (COR), and

WHEREAS, GICC seeks approval from the Guam Legislature {o amend their lease agreement with
the Chamorro Land Trust Commission.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

Section 1. Findings and Intent

The CLTC acknowledges the aforementioned findings and expresses its intent (o request the 37"
Guam Legislature to approve the lease amendments proposed by the Guam Internatianal Country
Club, Inc., contingent upon the inclusion of the following ilems outlined in Section 2 of this resolution
in the amendment of Bill No. 179-37 {COR).

Section 2. Amendments to Lease
Notwithstanding relevant provisions of the law, the CLTC requests the 37" Guam Legislature to
approve the following amendments to the lease agreement:

a) The designation of approximatety five (5) hectares of Lot Number 1022-12 in Mogfag,
Municipality of Dededo, surrounding the area of the GICC Club House and the
Maintenance/Storage Building, aleng with its surrounding property of one acre, for the use of
the Chamorro Land Trust Commission (CLTC), is open to negotiations. However, the GICC
Club House, along with its surrounding property of at least five (5) acres, shall be exclusively
designated for the use of the CLTC. This designation aims to significantly reduce rental costs
for the CLTC, the Guam Ancestral Lands Commission (GALC), and the Department of Land
Management {DLM) by providing dedicated facilities. By having these dedicated facilities, the
need for external office spaces, such as the {TC Building, will be minimized.

Page i 1ol
Resolubion Mo 2024-001




The Lessee shall cooperate with the CLTC with respect to the reconfiguraticn of the GICC
Club House to accommodale office space for the CLTC, GALC, and DLM.

All components of the solar panels used for the solar farm must be free of per- and
polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) Additionally, the Lessee shall be required to remave the
components associated with the solar farm at the end of the {ease agreement. The removal

shall be recycled and shall not be dispesed of In Guam's landfitl

The Lessee shall be required lo provide a monetary guarantee, such as a cash deposil or
perormance band, lo ensure the financial security of the Lessor and the proper removal of the
components associaled with the solar farm al Ihe end of the lease agreemenl and the tmely
payment of rent. Additionally, the Lessee shall be required to provide an assessment of the
potential costs associaled with the removal of compeonents and any patential site restoration,
in order to determine amount of 3 monetary guarantee

e} The assessmenl will serve as a basis for determining the amount, 1aking into account factors
such as equipment removal, lang remediation, any necessary repars and the value of rent
payments. The purpose s o provide protection in The evenl thal the Lessee fails 1o fulfil ther
obligations, while aligning the financial guarantee with the estimated cost of the component's
removal and site restoralion

fy The CLTC shali be responsibie for the overhead mamtenance cosis of the lacilities and
greunds of bolh the GICC Club House and the Maintenance/Storage Building This includes
ihe upkeep and mantenance of the buildings as well as Ihe surrounding grounds

g} I the propery 18 nal used for renewable solar power, the provisions outhned in Sections 2{a)
through 2{e) of this resciution shall be null and void ”

h) The CLTC opposes lhe creation of a CLTC Endowment Fund and any mandate stipulating the
transfer of accelerated rent received in accordance with the amended lease agreement This
opposition s based on the specific mandate outlined in Bill Ne 179-37 (COR}

# 1} The GICC 15 to sallle arrears payment within Lhirty {30) calendar days upon the passage of Bill
No 179-37 (COR).

| )} The Lessee shall be requied to comply with applcable budding codes. envircnmental
regulations, and federal rules and requlatons related lo bulding construction and
gnvironmental protection including but not limited to the Inlernational Bullding Code ({IBC),
Americans with Disabililies Act (ADA). Clean Water Act (CWA), Clean Air Act (CAA), Nalional
Enwronmental Policy Act {NEPA), and Resource Conservation and Recovery Acl (RCRA), as
enforced by Guam and the United States, throughout the lease agreement

SO SAYETH THE CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION AND ITS CHAIRPERSON AND
ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR THIS 15th DAY OF FEBRUARY IN THE YEAR OF OUR LORD,
2024.

Lo e Tl 23 2024
OAVID HERRERA

CLTC Acting Chairperson

- A #i .
Y N
- f).‘/é-r- ‘ ,;lﬁf‘{/fg“{fj’g Date: _}C{j o?;’” :2(,](2{%
ARLENE P. BORDALLO - N

CLTC Commissioner

Date:_»& ~ Je (_:zg’___

EARL J. GARFIDO

Pope | ral
Wegalunian fg 1024 (2!




CHAMORRO LAND TRUST COMMISSION
Board of Commissioners Meeting
Staff Report

Guam International Country Club (GICC

1. FACTS:
. Location: Lot No. 10122-12, Municipality of Dededo

. Lot Size / Lease Type: 829, 124+/- sqm (less 28,328+/- sqm, GPA & GWA to use)/
Commercial Lease
c. Lease Instrument Number: 863522

oW

d. Field Description: Municipal Golf Facility
e. Complaint/lssue: Nonpayment of monthly lease fee; Amount Due as November 1, 2024
$534,574.04
Presence of endangered Marianas Moorhen — Concern raised to the
Dept of Agriculture
2. DETAILS:

a. On April 1, 2014 the CHamoru Land Trust Commission executed a Commercial Lease
Agreement with the Guam International Country Club Inc. in accordance with Public Law 22-
76.

b. Commercial Lease Term #1: The Lease shall be for a term beginning on February 1, 2014
and ending on January 31, 2039, upon the terms and conditions contained in this lease,
excepting the payment of rent shall be adjusted every five (5) years.

c. Commercial Lease Term #2: The initial annual rental amount shall be Two Hundred Sixty-
Two Thousand Two Hundred Ninety-Nine Dollars {$262,299.00) per yearly installment.
Commencing with the instaliment of rent due on February 1, 2014, and conlinuing for the
next five (5) yearly installments. Annual rental may be paid in monthly installments with
payments made by no later than the 15" of each month.

1. Commencing with the installment of rent due on February 1, 2019 and continuing
for the next five (5) yearly installments, the annual rent shall be Two Hundred
Eighty-Eight Thousand, Five Hundred Twenty-Nine Dollars ($288,529.00} per
yearly installment.

2. Commencing with the instaliment of rent due on February 1, 2024 and continuing
for the next five (5) yearly installments, the annual rent shall be Three Hundred
Seventeen Thousand, Three Hundred Eighty-Two Dollars ($317,382.00) per
yearly installment.

3. Commencing with the instaliment of rent due on February 1, 2029 and continuing
for the next five (5) yearly installments, the annual rent shall be Three Hundred
Forty-Nine Thousand, One Hundred Twenty Dollars ($349,120.00) per yearly
instaliment.

4. Commencing with the installment of rent due on February 1, 2024 and continuing

for the next five (5) yearly installments, the annual rent shall be Three Hundred
Eighty-Four Thousand, Thirty-Two Dollars ($384,032.00) per yearly installment.

W



d.

3. Actions:

Commercial Lease Term #8: To ensure affordable rates and adequate access to Guam
residents, TENANT shall establish a schedule of fees and preferential course reservation
periods to reasonably accommodate the demand of Guam residents for golf facilities. Guam
resident rates shall be comparable to rates charged in comparable municipal facilities in the
mainland United States, while non-resident rates may refiect the demand in the Guam
tourist market. Because resident rates and preferential course reservation periods are
required as a condition of this lease, TENANT is a public utility, subject to public regulation.

Commercial Lease Term #9: TENANT shall not be eligible to receive a qualifying certificate,
public program grant, tax holiday, exemption from applicable environmental law, rule or
regulation, or any other commercial or tourist development incentive under Guam law or
regulations. TENANT is eligible for grants of training or educational nature.

Commercial Leass Term #15: If the LESSEE shall fail to yield or pay such rent at the time
and in the manner described in Paragraph 2 or shall become bankrupt, or shall abandon the
said premises, or if this lease and the premises shall be attached or otherwise be taken by
operation of law, or if any assignment be made of the LESSEE’S property for the benefit of
creditors, or shall fail to observe or perform any of the covenants, terms, and conditions
herein contained and on its part to be observed and performed, LESSOR shall so notify by
personal service, registered mail or certified mail to the LESSEE at its last known address. if
such breach or default shall continue for a period of ninety {90) days, upon notification,
L ESSOR may at once re-enter such premises or any part thereof and upon or without such
entry, at its option, terminate this lease without prejudice to any other remedy or right of
action for arrears or rent or for any proceeding or other breach of contract. In the event of
such termination, all building and improvements thereon shall remain and become the
property of the LESSOR.

On August 5, 2020 an account statement was emailed to GICC representatives. Account
Statement reflects amount due $154,208.56.

On October 1, 2020 an account statement was emailed to GICC representatives. Accournt
Statement reflects amount due $178,352.64.

On June 28, 2021 a 1% Notice letter dated June 22, 2021 was delivered and received by
GICC. Amount due $394,749.36.

On July 13, 2021 CLTC received a letter dated July 8, 2021 from GICC. Letter detailed
GICC's history with CLTC and the impact of COVID-19.

On September 3, 2021 AAG Toft, Acting Administrative Director Camacho, PCIH Joey met
with GICC representatives.

On October 13, 2021 CLTC via email received a letter dated October 13, 2021 from GICC
acknowledging CLTC willingness to work on a payment plan with GICC. Also, GICC is
requested to be placed on the agenda for the next board meeting. GICC stated “as a
gesture of our good faith, beginning this November, we will resume paying 50% of the rent
due.”

On December 22, 2021 an account statement was emailed to GICC representatives.
Account Statement reflects amount due $539,013.84.

PR



h. Letter dated February 28, 2022 from GICC received requesting for a 50% rent reduction
from March 2020 to December 2022. According to the detailed payment plan submitted with
the letter lease rental arrears will be paid off by October 2025.

i. On April 19, 2022 CLTC delivered a letter to GICC informing them of the board’s decision at
the regular scheduled board meeting on March 17, 2022.

j. On June 21, 2022 an email was sent Mr. Yohei Koike inquiring whether GICC had a
response of CONcerns.

k. On June 21, 2022 Mr. Yohei Koike responds to the June 21, 2022 email. Mr. Koike email
reads “Since CLTC couldn’t accept the rent break during the terms of Pandemic, we will try
to comply with our proposal letter which was dated on February 28", On the other hand, we
would like to keep on seeking for the possibilities that CLTC and related government
authorities to give us some kind of rent break.”

I. On January 31, 2023 Planner |l Pierce Castro, Land Agent il Glenn Eay, and PCIV Joey
Cruz attempted to do a site inspection but were unsuccessful due to the front gate of GICC
being secured.

m. February 3, 2023 Mr. Yohei Koike, General Manager for GICC issued a letter that states
am reaching out to you today because | have been trying to pay January rent plus catch-up
rent, in accordance with a payment plan that was approved by CLTC board, but payment
has been repeatedly refused.” This letter was mailed through the certified mail services
through USPS. Included in the envelope was CLTC's Jetter dated April 19, 2022 and GICC
check no. 11750 in the amount of $36,066.12.

n. March 3, 2023 AD Taijeron issues a letter informing GICC that CLTC will not be accepting
the payment until our legal counsel has completed their review and the board had decided
on the next course of action. Letter was served by CLTC process servers on 3/8/2023.

o. April 20, 2023 CLTC board meeting, the Commissioners passed a motion to accept the
check payment from GICC, to make current rent payment monthly plus division of arrears
amount up through 2026 with a payment arrangement.

p. May 1, 2023 Mr. Yohei Koike issues a letter that states” | would like ta thank you for meeting
with me and giving GICC the opportunity to resume its payment plan”. He further states
«.,.the highest and best use of the property that is also enviraonmentally friendly may not be a
golf course but rather a solar energy facility”

q. September 13, 2023 Letter sent to Mr. Yohei Koike signed by AD Alice Taijeron regarding
monthly rental payments. As of September 7, 2023 the account receivable balance is
$685,342.28

r. June 19, 2024 email received from Megan Volsteadt of Department of Agriculture requesting
a site inspection at the GICC golf course

s. June 25, 2024 Inspection scheduled at the GICC by Jenny Luces, PC2, Glenn Eay, Land
Agent Il accompanied by Megan Volsteadt from Department of Agriculture, The group was
not given access and told by GICC Management - Mr. Yohei Koike and Mr.Jerry Tang that
CLTC and Dept. of Agricuiture should have a courtesy letter prior to inspection.

t. June 27, 2024 Letter sent via email to Mr.Yohei Koike regarding site inspection scheduled
for June 28, 2024.



u. June 27, 2024 Letter from Guam International Country Club Inc, signed by Mr. Yohei Koike
addressed to CLTC Acting AD Joseph Cruz, Commissioner Arlene Bordallo, Commissioner
David Herrera and Commissioner Earl Garrido. The letter states” at this time we welcome a
site visit from CLTC but we cannot permit the personnel from the Dept. of Agriculture to
accompany such a visit until such time we have received confirmation they are performing
“official duties”

v. June 28, 2024 Site inspection conducted by Jenny Luces, PC2, Glenn Eay, Land Agent Ill.
inspection report indicated areas of the golf course that has sightings of the endangered
Mariana Moorhen

w. June 28, 2024 Letter from Mr. Yohei Koike stating their full cooperation on the site visit
conducted and request the photos and videos taken by the CLTC staff will only be for
internal use pending clarification from the Dept. of Agriculture.

4. Summary

On June 28, 2021, CLTC issued a 1st Notice to the Guam International Country Club (GICC) regarding
their accounts receivable balance of $394,749.36. Later, CLTC received an email from GICC
acknowledging CLTC's willingness to work on a payment plan. As a gesture of good faith, GICC said
they would pay 50% of the monthly rent due starting November 2021. GICC made no payments.

The Guam International Country Club did not accept the payment schedule approved by the board at
the regularly scheduled board meeting on March 17, 2022. Instead, Mr. Yohei Koike, on his June 21,
2022, said, “Since CLTC couldn’t accept the rent break during the terms of Pandemic, we will try to
comply with our proposal letter, which was dated February 28. On the other hand, we would like to
keep on seeking for the possibilities that CLTC and related government authorities to give us some kind
of rent break.” Again, GICC did not make any payments before January 31, 2023.

As of February, the Guam International Country Clubs Accounts Receivable balance is $875,630.96.
GICC has made commitments that they did not comply with. If the June 28, 2021, notice is not
sufficient to meet the requirements of the commercial lease term #15, then CLTC should require GICC
to pay their accounts receivable balance in full. if GICC cannot make full payment in 80 days. CLTC
board should terminate the commercial lease agreement, take possession of all improvements as
authorized in the commercial lease agreement, and proceed with the commercial leasing process
follpwing CLTC's Commercial Rules and Regs.

Inspection report on the site visit conducted on June 28, 2024 indicates the presence of three (3)
Marianas Moorhen on three (3) areas of the GICC golf course that has a man-made lake.

FRE



1rustcn
o, Statement
£ b
2 2 ‘ : ‘I“ : Date 11/1/2024
W L
CLTC - Operations Fund
P.Q. Box 2950
Hagatna, Guam 96932
To:
Guam International Country Club )
495 Battulo St.
Dededo, GU 96929-4445
Amount Due Amount Enc.
$534,574.04
Date Transaction Amount Balance
09/30/20223 Balance forward 0%5,342.28
10/01/2023 INV #1574. Due 10/01/2023. 24,044.08 709,386.36
10/12/2023 PMT #2224055066 / 2539, -42,034.12 667,352.22
11/01/2023 INV #{575. Due 11/01/2023, 24,044 08 691,396.30
11/03/2023 PMT #2224061656 / 2599, +25.000.00 666,396.30
12/05/2023 PMT #2224069817/657. -42,034.14 624,362,106
01/01/2024 INV #1577. Due 01/01/2024, 24,044.08 H48.400.24
01/04/2024 PMT #2224077284 / 714. -42.034.14 606,372.10
02/01/2024 INV #1578. Due 02/01/2024, 26,448.50 632,820.60
02/01/2024 PMT #2224085659 / 689, -42,034.14 590,786.46
3/01/.2024 INV #1579, Due 03/01/2024, 26,448 50 617,234.96
03/01/2024 PMT #2224093690 / §27. -42,044 08 575,190.88
04/01/2024 INV #1580. Due 04/01/2024. 26,448.50 601,639.38
04/035/2024 PMT #2224105016 / §82. -42.034.14 550,605.24
05/01/2024 INV #1581. Due 05/01/2024, 26,448.50 586,053.74
05/10/2024 PMT #2225008208 / 932, -42.034.14 544.019.60
06/01/2024 INV #1582, Due 06/01/2024. 26,448.50 570,468.10
6/11/2024 PMT #2225017769 / 963. -42.034.14 528.433.96
06/28/2024 PMT #2225024484 / 711. -42,034.14 486,399 82
07/01/,2024 INV #1583, Due 07/01/2024. 26,448.50 512,848,32
07/29/2024 PMT #2225034574 / 586. -42.034.14 470,814.18
08/01/2024 INV #1584, Due 08/01/2024. 26,448.50 497.262.68
(08/30/2024 PMT #2225045792 7/ 653. -42,034.14 455.228.54
00/01/2024 INV #1585, Due 09/01/2024. 26,448.50 481,677.04
10/41/2024 INV #1586. Due 10/01/2024, 26,448.50 508,125.54
11/01/2024 INV #1587. Due 11/01/2024, 26,448.50 534,574.04
1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST | 61-90 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS
CURRENT DUE DUE DUE PAST DUE Amount Due
20,448.50 (.00 0.00 0.00 508,125.54 $534,574.04




Guam Intemational Country Club, Inc.
496 Batulo Street

Dededo, Guam 96929

Tel. 632-4422

VIA HAND DELIVERY

Joseph B. Cruz

Acting Director

Chamorro Land Trust Commission

590 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste. 222
Tamuning, Guam 96913

David B. Herrera

Commissioner

Chamorro Land Trust Commission

590 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste. 222
Tamuning, Guam 96913

—

June 27, 2024

Arlene P, Bordallo

Commissioner

Chamorro Land Trust Commission

590 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste. 222
Tamuning, Guam 96913

Earl J. Garrido

Commissioner

Chamorro Land Trust Commission

590 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste. 222
Tamuning, Guam 96913

Re: Guam International Country Club

Dear Acting Director Cruz,

We are in receipt of your letter dated June 27, 2024 regarding your request for a site visit. We
agree with the provision that you cited in our lease agreement and have no issue with personnel
from the Chamorro Land Trust Commission conducting a site visit nor do we have an issue with
personnel from the Department of Agriculture accompanying you on a site visit. What we are
concerned with is whether the personnel from the Department of Agriculture is acting or
performing "official duties” and whether they are acting with impartiality without improper
influence.

We have reason to question whether they are performing "official duties” and whether they are
acting with impartiality and without improper influence as their original request for a site visit
was at the instigation of Mr. Russell Young who opposes Bill 179-37. Moreover, we have
reason to believe that Mr. Russell Young misrepresented to these personnel that he was the golf
superintendent and representative of GICC. We have attached the following email dated June
15, 2024 between Mr. Young and the Ms. Megan Volsteadt, from Department of Agriculture, in
which Ms. Volsteadt is asking Mr. Young permission to do a site visit as if Mr. Young was
GICC's representative.

Our concern is further substantiated by Mr. Young's email to Mr. Yohei Koike dated June 15,
2024 in which Mr. Young is the person that informs Mr. Koike of a site visit by a biologist from



the Department of Agriculture. We were concerned why Mr. Young was able to make
appointments for the Department of Agriculture so Mr. Koike replied to Mr. Young on June 17,
2024 that GICC will work directly with the Department of Agriculture and that GICC would like
a letter from the Director of the Department of Agriculture to confirm that the site visit was an
official act. These emails are attached for your reference as well. Please understand that after
the incident with Guam Economic Development Authority's violation of the Open Government
Law and the publication of misinformation in the PDN that were subsequently retracted, we are
very apprehensive of potential government misconduct and/or misconduct of government
personnel. Finally, Mr. Young accompanied the personnel from the Department of Agriculture
to GICC when they attempted to conduct a site visit on June 26, 2024 - still without confirmation
by the Director of the Department of Agriculture that the site visit was an official act.

At this point in time, we think it is proper and in everyone's best interest to not act in haste and to
determine if the personne! from the Department of Agriculture have been improperly influenced
by Mr. Young and whether they are performing "official duties". Why is the Department of
Agriculture making an appointment with Mr. Young to inspect GICC? What else has Mr. Young
represented to them? These are necessary questions to answer to avoid another GEDA type
fiasco as it is appears that Mr. Young and possibly other persons have been doing their best to
get government employees to improperly act on their behalf as official acts.

There is a time and process for the involvement of the Department of Agriculture when it comes
to the development of real property. As you may know, the process of submitting and reviewing
a development plan is for the developer to submit its application to the Department of Land
Management which will do a preliminary application interview and then forward the application
to the relevant government agencies, including the Department of Agriculture, for their official
Position Statement. The developer will then have to address any concerns raised in the Position
Statement. We will work directly with the Department of Agriculture in accordance with the
process set forth by law. Why and for what purpose is the personnel from the Department of
Agriculture deviating from this process now?

In summary, at this time, we welcome a site visit from Chamorro Land Trust Commission
personnel but we cannot permit the personnel from the Department of Agriculture to accompany
such a visit unti! such time we have received confirmation that they are performing "official
duties" and that they have not been improperly influenced. This is in the best interest of
everyone involved. Thank you for your understanding.

Sincerely,

oheci Koike



---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Yohei Koike <koike@giccguam.com™
Date: Mon, Jun 17, 2024, 11:02 AM

Subject: Re: Fwd: GICC

To: Russell Young <youngolf888(@gmail.com>
Cc: <Megan. Volsteadt@doag.guam.gov>

Hi Russell,

Please have the director of the Department of Agriculture make the request in writing and mailed
to my office so that [ can respond formally. I can work directly with the Department regarding
its concerns, if any. Thank you.

Regards,
Yohei

On Jun 15, 2024 12:15, Russell Young <youngolf888@gmail.com> wrote:

Hi Yohei,

There is one of the biologists from the Guam Department of Agriculture that has requested a site
visit at the GICC Golf Course with me next week 17,18, or 21. Just want to get your

schedule and permission to use a cart if possible, (in the afternoon).

Thanks,

Russell

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Megan Volsteadt <Megan. Volsteadi@doag.guam.gov>

Date: Sat, Jun 15, 2024 at 9:59 AM

Subject: GICC

To: youngolf888@gmail.com <younpol{¥888(@gmail.com> '

Hafa Adai Mr. Young,

I’m Megan Volsteadt, one of the biologists at the Department of Agriculture. I'm emailing to
request a site visit to the golf course next week or the week after. Our available days next week
are the 17th (in the afternoon) and 18th, and possibly the 21st. Please let me know if any of those
days work for you.

Thank you,
Megan



— /‘ﬁ.\

Kumision Inangokkon Tano’ CHamoru
(CHamoru Land Trust Commission)

_ P.O. Box 2950 Hagdtila, Gudhan 96932 Phone: 671- 300-3296 Fax: 671-300-3319 |

June 27, 2024

TO: Yohei Koike
General Manager
Guam !nternational Country Club

FROM: Acting, Administrative Director
SUBJECT: SITE INSPECTION

Buenas yan Hafa Adail

" Please be advised that on Friday, June 28, 2024, personnel from the

" CHamoru Land Trust Commission, along with personnel from the Department
of Agriculture, will be conducting a site inspection of Lot 10122-12, which is

. the property leased to the Guam Intemational Country Club. The site

~ inspection is authorized through Term and Condition 17, which reads:

Cammlssmrer

“The LESSOR shall have the right to itself and to the agents and

(Vacam) representatives of the Government, in which said leased premises are
Lo ioney situated, to enter and cross any portion of said leased land for the purpose of
performing any public or official duties; provided, however, in the exercise of

pcting Aeomiatee irecior SUCh rights, the LESSOR shall not unreasonably interfere with LESSEE'S use
and enjoyment of the premises.”

If you should have any concerns please do not hesitate to contact me at
(671) 300-3296.

Senseramente,
Jo;e’pk/E; /

Rev. 10:19.2023



Guam International Ceuntty Club, Inc.
496 Batulo Street

Dededo, Guam 96929

Tel. 632-4422

June 28, 2024

VIA HAND DELIVERY

Joseph B. Cruz Arlene P. Bordallo

Acting Director (ommissioner

Chamorro Land Trust Commission Chamorro Land Trust Commission

590 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste. 222 590 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste. 222
Tamuning, Guam 96913 Tamuning, Guam 96913

David B. Herrera Earl J. Garrido

Commissioner Commissioner

Chamorro Land Trust Commission Chamorro Land Trust Commission

590 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste. 222 590 South Marine Corps Drive, Ste. 222
Tamuning, Guam 96913 Tamuning, Guam 96913

Re:  Guam International Country Cleb

Dear Acting Director Cruz,

We welcomed the site visit by Glenn and Jenny this morning and gave them our full cooperation.
They mentioned to us that the video and pictures thal they took will only be for CLTC internal
use and we appreciate this very much as we still have not received any clarification from the
Department of Agriculture on the concerns that we raised in our letter of June 27, 2024 - which
we also emailed to the Director of the Department of Agriculture. Our intention is to fully
cooperate with the Department of Agriculiure once our legitimate concerns have been addressed.

We look forward to meeting with you and the Commissioners of the Chamorro Land Trust
Commission regarding any questions that you may have regarding or related to the site visit this
morning. Please feel free 1o call or email us at any time when you wish to meet. Or if the site
visit will be a subject of a scheduled meeting of the Chamorro Land Trust Commission that we
be notified in advance. We will have a credentialed biologist present to help guide our
discussions.

Thank you for your cooperation and we look forward to meeting with you.




CHamoru Land Trust Commission
Staff Report

GUAM INTERNATIONAL COUNTRY CLUB (GICC)

FACTS:

Location: Lot 10122-12, Municipality of Yigo
Lot Size/ Lease Type: 829,124 Sq. Meters
Lease/ License Instrument Number: 863522
Field Description: Commercial

Matter/ Issue: Site Inspection

CHRONOLOGICAL FACTS:

June 19, 2024, 3:26 PM — CLTC received an email from Ms. Volsteadt requesting a site inspection to
verify the Marianas Moorhen birds population at GICC area.

June 25, 2024, 9:00 AM - The site inspection was initially scheduled with CLTC and Department of
Agriculture. However, it has been rescheduled due to Mr. Yohei Koike's request for a formal letter from
both agencies to conduct the site inspection as a courtesy.

June 27, 2024, 9:00 AM — Site inspection was conducted with CLTC staff only. The Department of
Agriculture was awaiting the letter of request.

FINDINGS:

On the 28th of June, 2024, at 9:00 AM, the CHamoru Land Trust Commission (CLTC) staff, namely Mr.
G. Eay and Ms. J. Luces, conducted a site inspection at the Guam International Country Club. The
objective of this site inspection was to verify the reported population of the endangered Marianas
Moorhen birds in select areas of the golf course.

Accompanied by Mr. Yohei Koike, the General Manager of GICC, and Mr. James Ji, GICC Consultant,
CLTC staff engaged in a collaborative effort to inspect all the manmade ponds where moorhens had
allegedly been sighted.

The site inspection concluded at approximately 10:30 AM, confirming the presence of moorhen activities.
However, despite the duration of the inspection, the CLTC staff were only able to observe three (3) birds
at the site. A visual representation of the map location where the birds were located is included for
reference.




GUAM INTERNATIONAL COUNTRY CLUB (GICC) MOORHEN BIRD (NSPECTION 6/28/2024




GUAM INERNATIONAL COUNT UB (GICC) MODRHEN BIRD INSPECTION 6/28/2024

<4 "ﬂ. i
eﬂ”’%‘a‘u

i -’F’ig N 'fr- t‘;u:-,o




GUAM COUNTRY CLUB {GICC) MOORHEN BIRD INSPECTION - 6/28/2024

Moorhen Bird was found on this
location and hid under heavy vegetation




appropriate safety regulations issued-by-erganizationssuchasthe NahionarHotReafAssocaion-e

the United-States-orMetorsport Australia-

6-3. Any use of the Premises for motorsports racing shall comply with the current

7.4.__The toilet rooms, toilets, urinals, wash bowls and other apparatus shall not be used
for any purpose other than that for which they were constructed and no foreign substance of any
kind whatsoever shall be thrown therein. The expense of any breakage, stoppage or damage
resulting from the violatien of this rule shall be borne by the Lessee who, or whose employees or
invitees, shall have caused the damage.

8.5. Lessee shall not mark, drive nails, screw or drill into the partitions, woodwork or
plaster or in any way deface the Premises or any part thereof, except to install normal wall
hangings. With approval of Lessar, Lessee may mount any wall structure or have electrical or other
work done in the Premises. Lessor reserves the right to direct electricians as to where and how
telephone and telegraph wires are to be introduced to the Premises. Lessee shall not cut or bore
holes for wires. Lessee shall not affix any floor covering to the floor of the Premises in any manner
except as appraved by Lessor. Lessee shall repair any damage resulting from noncompliance with

this rule.

9.6. Lessor reserves the right to exclude or expe! from the Premises any person who, in

Lessor’s judgment, is intoxicated or under the influence of liquor or drugs or who is in violation of
any of the Lessor’s Rules and Regulations.

10.7. Lessee shall comply with all safety, fire protection and evacuation procedures and
regulations established by Lessor or any governmental agency.

11-8. Lessee assumes any and all responsibility for protecting the Premises from theft,
robbery and pilferage, which includes keeping doors locked and other means of entry to the
Premises.

12.9. The requirements of Lessee will be attended to only upon appropriate application to
the office of the Lessor by an authorized individual. Empioyees of Lessor shall not perform any
waork or do anything outside of their regular duties unless under special instructions from Lessor.

13.10.Lessor may waive any one or more of these Rules and Regulations for the benefit of
Lessee or any other Lessee, but no such waiver by Lessor shall be construed as a waiver of such
Rules and Regulations in favor of Lessee or any other Lessee, nor prevent Lessor from thereafter
enforcing any such Rules and Regulations against any or all of the Lessees of the Building.

14:11. Lessor reserves the right to make such other and reasonable Rules and Regulations
as, in its judgment, may from time to time be needed for safety and security, for care and
cleanliness of the Premises and for the preservation of good order therein. Lessee agrees to abide

16
December 3, 2024



by all such Rules and Regulations hereinabove stated and any additional rules and regulations
which are adopted.

15.12.Lessee shall be responsible for the observance of all of the foregoing rules by Lessee’s
employees, agents, clients, licensees, customers, invitees and guests.

16-13.These Rules and Regulations are in addition to, and shall not be construed to in any
way modify or amend, in whole or in part, the terms, covenants, agreements and conditions of
any lease or license of premises in the Premises.

17
December 5, 2024



Yigo Race Tract

Lot 7161-R1
PL37-125



M Gma iI JM Casem <jhoana.casem@cltc.guam.gov>

Guam motorsport
1 message

Hans Ada || NG Thu, Nov 21, 2024 at 5:44 PM
Reply-To: cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov

To: cltc.admin@cltc.guam.gov

Screenshot_20241011_214521.jpg
588K



https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2655283a57&view=att&th=1934dae30b9d9546&attid=0.1&disp=inline&realattid=1934dadcb35ee9047391&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=2655283a57&view=att&th=1934dae30b9d9546&attid=0.1&disp=inline&realattid=1934dadcb35ee9047391&safe=1&zw




